#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.
Facility/Project ldentification

| Facility Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center - ICU & Med- Surmmaizatuon

Project S
Street Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue JAN 8 70720
City and Zip Code: Libertyville, IL 60048

County: Lake Health Service Area: 8 HEN%’[W&&H%%{Ba: A-09

_Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]
Exact Legal Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Street Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue

‘City and Zip Code: Libertyville, IL 60048

i Name of Registered Agent: Michael Kerns

{ " Reaistered Aaent Street Address: 3075 quhland Parkway, Suite 600
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515
Name of President: Matthew Primack

President Street Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue

President City and Zip Code: Libertyville, IL 60048

President Telephone Number: (847) 990-5201

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation U Partnership
O For-profit Corporation | Governmental
! Limited Liability Company | Sole Proprietorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liabitity companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE THE
'APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]
Name: Matthew Primack

Title: President

Company Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number: (847) 990-5201

E-mail Address: Matthew. Primack@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 362-1721

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permitl
Name: Myndee Balkan

Title: Manager, Business Development Planning

Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health Care

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number: (847) 990-5521

E-mail Address: Myndee.Balkan@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 573-4315

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTIONI. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center - ICU & Med-Surg Construction & Modernization
Project

Street Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue

City and Zip Code: Libertyville, IL 60048

{ County: Lake Health Service Area: 8 Health Planning Area: A-09

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]
Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health & Hospitals Corporation

Street Address: 3075 Hightand Parkway, Suite 600

City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 80515

Name of Registered Agent: Michael Kerns

Registered Agent Street Address: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515

Name of Chief Executive Officer: James H. Skogsbergh

Chief Executive Officer Street Address: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Chief Executive Officer City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515
Chief Executive Officer Telephone Number: (630) 572-9393

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
O For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
M| Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship L] Cther

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

[TAPPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]
Name: Matthew Primack

Title: President

Company Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address; 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number: (847) 990-5201

E-mail Address: Matthew.Primack@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 362-1721

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: Myndee Balkan

Title: Manager, Business Development Planning

Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health Care

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number: (847) 990-5521

E-mail Address: Myndee.Balkan@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 573-43156

CON -~ Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must he completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center - ICU & Med-Surg Construction & Modernization
Project

Street Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue

City and Zip Code: Libertyville, IL 60048

County: Lake Health Service Area: 8 Health Planning Area: A-09

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health Care Network

Street Address: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600

City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515

Name of Registered Agent: Michael Kerns

Registered Agent Street Address: 3075 Highland Parkway

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL_60515

Name of Chief Executive Officer: James H. Skogsbergh

Chief Executive Officer Street Address: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suute 600

Chief Executive Officer City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515

Chief Executive Officer Telephone Number: (630) 572-8393

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
] For-profit Corporation O Governmental
3 Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Parinerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1IN NUMERlC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AETER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM: ; ] (5

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Matthew Primack

Title: President

Company Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number; (847) 980-5201

E-mail Address: Matthew. Primack@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 362-1721

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Balkan

Title: Manager, Business Development Planning

Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health Care

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number: (847) 990-5521

E-mail Address: Myndee.Balkan@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 673-4315

CON ~ Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

LLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Condell Medical Center - ICU & Med-Surg Construction & Modernization
Project

Street Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue

City and Zip Code: Libertyville, IL 60048

County: Lake Health Service Area: 8 Health Planning Area: A-09

Applicant(s} [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.

Street Address: 750 W. Virginia

City and Zip Code: Milwaukee, WI 53204

Name of Registered Agent. The Corporation Trust Company

Registered Agent Street Address: Wilmingten, DE 19801

Name of Chief Executive Officer: - James H. Skogsbergh

Chief Executive Officer Street Address: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Chief Executive Officer City and Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515

Chief Executive Officer Telephone Number: (630) 572-9393

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
] For-profit Corporation O Governmental
| Limited Liability Company 1 Sole Proprietorship 1 Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. : '

Primary Confact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inguiries]

Name: Matthew Primack

Title: President

Company Name; Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Telephone Number: {847) 990-5201

E-mail Address: Matthew.Primack@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 362-1721

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Balkan

Title: Manager, Business Development Planning

Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health Care

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, iL 60048

Telephone Number: (847) 990-5521

E-mail Address: Myndee.Balkan@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: (847) 573-4315

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Post Exemption Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to exemption issuance-THIS PERSON MUST
BE EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name; Scott Nelson

Title Vice President, Planning, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.

Address. 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 400, Downers Grove, L 60515
Telephone Number.  (630) 929-5575

E-mail Address: scott.nelson@advocatehealth.com

Fax Number: {630) 990-4798

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legai Name of Site Owner: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address of Site Owner; 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor’'s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address of Site Owner: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

X Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
] For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company m Sole Proprietorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant} an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related {as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial
contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Flood Plain Requirements

[Refer to application instructions.] i5
Provide documentation that the pro;ect complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5

pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplam
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lltinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http:/iwww_hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
rlQheCk those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1110 Classification:
P4 Substantive

J _ Non-substantive

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification
as substantive or non-substantive.

Advocate Condell Medical Center, Advocate Health & Hospitals Corporation, Advocate Heath
Care Network and Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. the applicants, propose construction and
modernization of the Intensive Care Unit and Medical-Surgical Units at Advocate Condell
Medical Center, with the address 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048.

The project will include expansion and modernization of the current Intensive Care Unit (ICU) to
increase capacity from 17 to 32 beds. The fifth floor of the attached West Tower building is
being designed for relocation of 34 of the total medical-surgical beds from the original hospital
building increasing the medical-surgical bed capacity from 214 to 217 beds. The West Tower
construction will include relocation of the acute care dialysis stations increasing from 4 to 6
stations.

The Project will be completed in phases. The West Tower medical-surgical modernization will
be completed in Phase 1 to accommodate the ICU expansion in Phase 2.

The project is expected to cost $63,538,825 with 24,855 square feet of new construction (15,388
of clinical and 9,467 of non clinical) and 39,589 square feet of modernization (30,595 of clinical
and 8,994 of non-clinical space).

The West Tower Fifth floor will be designed for high efficiency patient care as well as energy
efficienct LEED Certification. The modernized ICU floor will have Healthy Roadmap Space
Certification (similar to LEED). The anticipated completion date is December 31, 2023.

The project is classified as a substantive project, as there is a change in bed capacity.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be
equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts

Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction {project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues {project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that wili be
or has heen acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project [ Yes B No
Purchase Price: §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

[1Yes [ No
if yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits} through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the
target utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project's architectural drawings:
] None or not applicable [ Preliminary
X Schematics [1 Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): 12/31/2023

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to
Part 1130.140):

[ Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

4 Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c})]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
Cancer Registry
APORS
B All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports
been submitted
All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for
permit being deemed incomplete,

CON = Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Cost Space Requirements

#20-004

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any

space is being reallocated for a different purpose.

Include outside wall measurements plus the

department's or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated

space.
Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposed Total' Gross Square Feet
That Is:
- New - Vacated
_ Dept. ! Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space
REVIEWABLE

| Medical Surgical

| Intensive Care

Diagnostic
| Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON-
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

CON ~ Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

#20-004

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/201% Edition

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for
the latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: Advocate Condell Medical

CITY: Libertyville

Center
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: 1/1/2018 to: 12/31/18

Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days Bed Proposed

Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 214 12,702 66,136 3 217
Obstetrics 26 1,184 3,032 0 26
Pediatrics 16 171 876 9] 16
Intensive Care 17 11,383 5,254 15 32
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation 0 0 0 0 0
AcutefChronic Mental lliness 0 0 0 0 0
Neonatal Intensive Care 0 0 0 0 0
General Long-Term Care 0 0 0 0 0
Specialized Long-Term Care 0 0 0 0 0
Long Term Acute Care 0 0 0 0 0
Other — Dedicated Obs. 6 g 311 0 0
TOTALS: 273 15,440 75,609 18 291

Source: Hospital Profile

CON - Construction/Modernization
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#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
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'CERTIFICATION

#20-004

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o Inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole

manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the scle general partner, when
two or more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two
or more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Advocate Condell Medical Center in
accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
application for permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies
that the data and information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and
correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that
the permit application fee required for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this day of

Signature of Notary

Seal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

request.
== A 44D
SIGNATURE SIGNATURE -
Matthew Primack William Santulli
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
President
Advocate Condell Medical Center Chief Operating Officer
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribeg and swarn to before me:
this /&7 day O&MMw?
g [f??'r\ W

Signature of Notary

JANET M. HOOD
2 OFFICIAL SEAL
. Notary Publi¢, State of lllinois

NP . PN
WY OSSO EXPITES

September 10, 2022

/3
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#20-004

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {cr the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist),

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when
two or more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when twa
or more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Advocate Condell Medical Center in
accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
application for permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies
that the data and information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and
correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that
the permit application fee required for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon
request.

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
Matthew Primack William Santulli
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
President
Advocate Condell Medical Center Chief Operating Officer
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Suhscribed and sworn to before me
this_J O dayof Do lgmber 24 this day of
Slgndfure of Signature of Notary
OFFICIAL SEAL 4
= TFFANVLNICHOLS  § Seal
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINQIS ¢
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0172621 ¢
*Insert EXACT leg S
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#20-004

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s}) are:

o inthe case of a corporaticn, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {(or the scle
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole ganeral partner, when
two or more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two
or more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Advocate Health & Hospitals
Corporation in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health
Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to
execute and file this application for permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The
undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided herein, and appended
hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. The
undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required for this application is
sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

W \r«rzs\u«( =t P ALY

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE ~
James H. Skogsbergh William Santulli

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

President and CEO Chief Operating Officer

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribegd and sworn to before me
this /4% _ day of /Qgc@‘—/ w2l this _/6 * day of _}> fe oo dov, 2017

é; Signature of Notary
Seal

JANET M. HOOD
&\ OFFICIAL SEAL
'» Notary Public, State of lllinois

[ |otyed mmmrtmu‘

JANET M. HOOD

: OFFICIAL SEAL .
Notary Publi¢, State of lNlingis

NG My-Commitssion Expiros

s September 10, 2022

/7
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#20-004

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
autherized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its cfficers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the scle
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when
two or more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two
or more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Advocate Health Care Network in
accordance with the requirements and pracedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
application for permit on hehalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies
that the data and information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and
correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that
the permit application fee required for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon
request.

%g\mfhvl

SIGNATURE

SIGNATURE -

James H. Skogsbergh

PRINTED NAME

President and CEQ

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this/6*"_ day O&MM/ g
Qg put wr. Yyt

Sig’ﬂature of Notary

Seal

JANET M. HOOD
OFFICIAL SEAL .

William Santulli
PRINTED NAME

Chief Operating Officer
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:

Subscribggl.and swern to before me
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/' Signature of Notary

JANET M. HOOD
OFFICIAL SEAL .
g Notar Public, State of tlinois

15%ion Cxpires
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. in accordance
with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act. The
undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will he paid upon request.

- S wzst[ =R Al

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 7

James H. Skogsbergh William Santulli

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

President and CEQ Chief QOperating Officer

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and swarn to beforg me Subscnbed and sw%n to before me

this/&*"" day of /¢ “ 20!9 this /4% day of_DLetmb o Jp!T

N el %i ). Slpor—

Sighature of Notary 7 Signature of Notary
Seal Seal
S .
P JANET M. HOOD

[,’(hea plicant ' OFFICIAL SEAL

Notary Public, Sluto ot llinois My Commi'ssion Expires

My Commission Expires September 10, 2022
September 10, 2022 :
e
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

SECTION il. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project

costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGRCUND OF APPLICANT

1.

A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and cerification if
applicable.

A listing of all health care facilities currenlly owned and/or operated in Illinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including comorate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility is
considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A cerlified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction and submit any police or court records regarding any matiers
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her,

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or direclive of any court or
governmental agency.

Authorization permifting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizalions. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

)f, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information reguirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable cbjectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facilily projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6} MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with cne or more providers ar
entities to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes; developing
allernative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2 Documentation shall consisi of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
both the shorl-term (within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE

Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE CF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not excessive,
This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and the
methodology applied.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, jusiify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a.  Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility's Medical Director.

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural
design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

¢. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE STANDARD | DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the

utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supporis the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 18, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

There is no shell space in the proposed project.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved,

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

N/A

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

SECTION V. SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

This Section is applicable to all projects proposing the establishment. expansion or
modernization of categories of service that are subject to CON review. as provided in the IHinois
Health Facilities Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960]. Itis comprised of information requirements for each

category of service, as well as charts for each service, indicating the review criteria that must be
addressed for each action (establishment, expansion, and modernization). Afteridentifying the

applicable review criteria for each category of service involved, read the criteria and provide the
required information APPLICABLE TO THE CRITERIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

A. Criterion 1110.200 - Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive Care
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Medical/Surgical,
Obstetric, Pediatric and/or Intensive Care categories of service must submit the following
information:

2. Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by action(s):

# Existing # Proposed

Category of Service Beds Beds

[] MedicaliSurgical
[] Obstetric

] Pediatric

[ [ Intensive Care

3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.200(b)(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 |ll. Adm. Code 1100 X

(formula calculation)
1110.200(b)(2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X

Residents
1110.200(b){3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X

Establishment of Category of Service
1110.200(b)(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - Expansion X

of Existing Category of Service
1110.200(b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.200{(c)(1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.200(c)(2) - Maldistribution X X
1110.200{c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
1110. 200{d)(1), (2), and (3) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.200(d}{4) - Occupancy X
1110.200(e) -  Staffing Availability X X
1110.200(f) - Performance Requirerments X X X
1110.200(q) - _ Assurances _ - X X -
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 18, iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. e,

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APFLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms = Key Rooms
[_]
u e [ S A 2t
0 . -
3. READ the applicable review criteria outiined below and submit the required documentation

for the criteria:

Project Type

Required Review Criteria

New Services or Facility or Equipment

' Service Modernization

{b) - Need Determination ~ Establishment

(c)(1) — Deteriorated Facilities

AND/OR

(¢)(2) - Necessary Expansion

PLUS

(c)(3)A) - Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

{c)(3)(B) - Utilization — Service or Facility

APPLICATION FORM.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 30, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's {the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
« Saction 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
s  Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VI. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources}:

a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges

PR showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated time table of receipts;

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
time period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time pericd, and
the anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent
financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount
of the issue, including any discounting anticipated,

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvements to the property and provision of capital
equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all
terms and conditions.

CON = Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance
accompanied by a statement of funding availabitity from an official of the governmental
unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms
of the amount and time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other
funds that will be used for the project.

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 23, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. i i
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/209 Edition

SECTION VII. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if.

1. "A”" Bond rating or better

2. All of the project's capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor,

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical andfor Projected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable iine item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance
Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another

organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization

~———————— Page 32 :



#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

SECTION VIl.1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by

submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the
balance sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at
least 2.0 times for hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converied to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Deht Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized

statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available;

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,

no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page}.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition
COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT COR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Depariment Total
{list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. FL. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (AxQC) (B xE) (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

SECTION IX. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL
SUBSTANTIVE PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS
3960/5.4]:

i 1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent
that it is feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
| reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the Hinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source”
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient
Quipatient
Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IH NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. s
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c]].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in llinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. if the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care™ means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3980/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 38.

1 CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges}
Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the
included attachments:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing 38-47
2 | Site Ownership 48-50
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be
identified with the % of ownership. - 51-60
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Etc. 651-64
& | Flood Plain Requirements 65-66
B | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 67-68
7 | Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 69-70
8 | Financial Commitment Document if required NA
9 | Cost Space Requirements 71-72
10 | Discontinuation NA
11 | Background of the Applicant 73-86
12 | Purpose of the Project 87-96
13 | Alternatives to the Project 97-100
14 | Size of the Project 101-102
15 | Project Service Utilization 103-107
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space NA
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space NA
Service Specific:
18 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU 108-129
19 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation NA
20 [ Acute Mental lliness NA
21 | Open Heart Surgery NA
22 | Cardiac Catheterization NA
23 | In-Center Hemodialysis NA
24 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery NA
25 | Selected Organ Transplaniation NA
26 | Kidney Transplantation NA
27 | Subacute Care Hospital Mode! NA
28 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center NA
29 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital NA
30 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 130-132
31 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services NA
32 | Birth Center NA
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
33 | Availability of Funds 133-144
34 | Financial Waiver 145
35 | Financial Viability 145
36 | Economic Feasibility 146-154
37 | Safety Net Impact Stalement 155-158
38 | Charity Care Information 158-160
Appendix 1 — Audited Financials 161-218
Appendix 2 — References 219-220
Appendix 3 — Isolation/Precaution Guidelines 221-252
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Type of Ownership of Applicants

B4 Non-profit Corporation (] Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
] Limited Liability Company H Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited pariner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #1, Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

File Number 6610-658-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE CONDELL MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 29, 2008, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

tny hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 10TH

day of DECEMBER A.D. 2019

WG, sam 10k
”
Authentication #: 1934401148 verifiable until 12/10:2020 M

Authenticals at: http:/Awvww.cyberdrivedlinols.com
SECRETARY OF BYATE

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 26TH

dayof MARCH A.D. 2019 .

Wi ’
Authentication # 1908501888 veriiable until 0:3126/2020 M

Aulhenticate at: hitp:liwww.cyberdriveilinois.com
SECRETARY OF STATE

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
= ¢ Pa 940 - e —
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File Number 1707-692-2

£

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of lllinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JUNE 14, 1923, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 26TH
dayof MARCH A.D. 2019

TR
I d
Authenlication #: 1808501884 verifiable until 03/26/2020 Q-W W

Authanticate at: http:/mwww.cyberdrivelllinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition
State Of Delaware
Entity Details

73112018 6:2428PM

File Number: 6845600 incorporation Date / Formation Date: 12/4/2017
Entity Name: ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
Entity King: Corporation Entity Type: Exempt
Residency: Domestic State: DELAWARE
Status. Bood Standing Status Date: 12/4/2017

Registered Agent Information
Name: THE CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY
Address: CORPORATION TRUST CENTER 1209 ORANGE ST
City: WILMINGTON Country:
State: DE Postal Code: 19601
Phone: 302-658-7581

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIE\.I’I\lr BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

OFFICE OF THE SERETARY OF STATE

JESSE WHITE » Secretary of State

APRIL 3, 2018 7155-851-7

+

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
118 W EDWARDS #200
SPRINGFIELD IL 62704

RE ADVOCATE AURCRA HBEALTH, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE NAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED.

CERTAIN NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNBY
GENERAL. UPON RECBIPT OF THE ENCLOSBD AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITABLE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICE OF THE ATTORNBY GENERAL,

100 W. RANDOLPH, 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60601, TELEPHONE

(312) 814-2595.

SINCERELY,

JESSE WHITE

SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES
CORPORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961

CON - Construction/Modernization

Attachment #1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

FORM NFP 113.16 (. Doc. 2000) FILED

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
T0 CONDUCT AFFAIAS IN . APR 0 3 2018

(LLINOIS (Foreign Corporations)
General Not For Proftt Corporation Act JESSE WHITE

SECRETARY OF STATE

e WSS-VS\\ pungresssr  Appeovet: O

e e Gubmit Ine duplicate ———-- Type or Print clearly In black Ink ———— Do not write above this fing — ——-—
1. a. Corporats Namo: Advocate Aurora Heahh, Inc.

b. Assumed Corporate Name (Complete only If the new corporata name Es not avallabie in this state.):

8y electing this assumad name, the Corporation hereby agrees NOT io use iis corporate name bn the Uansaction of
business in [Minols. Form NFP 104.15 is attached,

2. a. State or Country of Incomoration: Delaware
b. Date of Incopporation; December 4, 2017
¢, Perod of Ditration: Permanent
3. a. Address of Principal Oftice, wharover (ocatad; 3078 Highland Plwy.,
Downers Grove, IL 80515-1208

b. Address of Principat Office In liinats: 3078 Highland Piowy.,
Downers Grove, IL 805151208

4. Namo and Address of Registered Agen &nd Reglstered Office In Dfncls:

R ni: Ead J. Bames I _
‘ﬂ"mm — e ) Last Nama

Registered Office; 3075 Hightand Pkwy Sulte 600
Number

Downers Grove 60515 DuPage Co
Gty

TP Code County

"Bilta F (P10, Box kina 1s wiecceptahiz)

5. Slates and Countries tn which Corporation is admitted or qualified to conduct aftalrs; Wisconsin (application pending)
8. Names and respective addresses of Corporalion’s officers and directors:
StreciAddess iy Ssis TP

Presidant See attached
Secratary
Director
Dirsctor
Dirgctor

M there are additional afficera or more than thres directars, pleass atiach It

mwmammamﬁ.mmsd-c{.ﬂ

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

#20-004

1SS s\
Directors:
Name Address
Michelc Baker Richardson c/o Aurora Advocate Hoalth, Inc.
, 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60515
John F. Timmer ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highlend Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IT, 60515
Lynn Y, Crump-Caine c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Plcwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60515
K. Richard Jakle /o Aurora Advocats Hoalth, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Mark M. Harris </o Aurora Advocatc Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suito 600, Dowmers Grove, IL 60515
David B, Anderson c/o Auroma Advocate Health, Inc.
_ 3075 Highland Plowy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
James H. Skogsbergh </o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
_ 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Qrove, IL 60515
Joanne Disch ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc. :
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, Il 60515
John W. Danicls, Jr. ¢/o Aurora Advocate Heelth, Ine.
_ 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Joanne B, Baver ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
_ 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Charies Harvey c/o Aurora Advacate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Buits 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Rick Weiss c/o Aurors Advocaie Health, Inc.
_ 3075 Highland Pkwy Sulte 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Thomas Bolger ¢/o Aurora Advocates Health, Inc,
e 3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Nick W. Turkal ¢/o Aurora Advocate Henlth, Ine.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suito 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60315
2
4835-2008-20684.2
CON - Construction/Modernization
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“I5S-%911

Section 7: PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH THE CORPORATION IS ORGANIZED AND PROPOSES TO PURSUE IN
THE CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE:

The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for charitable, scicntific,
religious and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c){3) of the Intornal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amendcd (or the corresponding provisions of eny future United States
Internal Revenue Law) (hereinafter the “Code™); end limited as further provided in its Certificate
of Incorporation. Specifically, tho Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
the benefit of, to perform the functions of|, or to camy out the purposes of its supported
organizations, as listed below (the “Supported Organizations”). The Corporation is organized
and operated 2s a Type I functionally integrated supporting organization as defined in section
509(a)(3) of the Code and Treas. Reg. Section |.509(a)-4(i). The Corporation is organized for
the purpose of serving ns the parent organization of the Supported Organizations and ghall
exercise direction over the policics, programs and activities of the Supporied Olganuattons The
Corporation shall engage in activitics relating to the purposes described above, and invest in,
receive, hold, use, and dispose of all property, real or personal, as may be necessary or desirable
to carry {nto offect such purposcs. The Corporation is formed as a result of the affiliation of
Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois nonproﬁt corporation (“Advocate”) and Aurora
Health Cero, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock corporation {*Aurora”), in accordance with the terms
and conditions of that cestain Affiliation Agreement between Advocate and Aurora ‘dated
December 4, 2017 (the “Affillation Agreement™).

The Corporation’s Supported Organizations, which are described in Section 509(e}(1) or
Section 509(a)(2) of the Codg, are as follows:

¢ Advocatc Health and Hospitals s Aurors Health Care Central, Inc.
Corporation

» EHS Homo Health Care Scrvices, Inc.

s Aurora Psychistric Hospltal, Inc.
¢ Aurora Medical Center of Washington

* Advocate Charitable Foundation
s Advocate North Side Health Network

= Meridian Hospice

County, Inc.
Aurora Heslth Care North, Inc.
West Allis Mcmorial Hospitsl, Inc,

* Advocate Condell Medical Center Aurora Family Service, Inc.

« Advocate Sherman Hospital " Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh,
Inc.

+ Sherman West Court
Aurora Medical Group, Inc.

# Visiling Nurse Association of
Wisconsin, Inc.

* Aurora UW Academic Medical Group

4835-2895-4064.2

Kradwell School, Inc.
Aurora Advanced Healthcare, Inc.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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\S5-8511

¢ Aurora Health Care Metro, Inc. s AMG Illinois, Lad.

s Aurora Health Care Southemn Lakes, e Aurora Medical Center Grafton
Inc.

4535-2838-1084.2

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #1
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Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]
Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address of Site Owner: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL. 60048

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The proposed site is at 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL.
See Attachment #2, Exhibit 1.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #2
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Advocate Health Care

3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600 || Downers Grove, |Minois 60515 || T 630.572.9393|| advocatehealth.com

December 23, 2019

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, Second Floor
Springfield, IL. 62761

RE;: Advocate Condell Medical Center
—~ Construction & Modemization Project

Dear Ms. Avery:
This attestation letter is submitted to indicate that Advocate Condell Medical Center owns the site.

We trust this attestation complies with the State Agency Proof of Ownership requirement indicated in
the Permit application — September 2018 edition.

Respectfully,

=Y A

William Santulli
Chief Operating Officer
Advocate Aurora Health

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

This 20 day of Decemper2019.

Signature of Notary

(Seal of Notary)

OFFICIAL SEAL
CRISTIN G FOSTER
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:03/1323

e aTat

A faith-based health system serving Individuals, families and communities
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

Operating Identity/Licensee
Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner. Advocate Condell Medical Center

Address: 801 S. Milwaukee Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048

()X

o]
o]

Q

Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
For-profit Corperation J Governmental
Limited Liability Company [l Sole Proprietorship | Other

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois Certificate of Good Standing.
Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

TAPPEND DOGUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. .

Certificates of Good Standing for Advocate Condell Medical Center, Advocate Health and
Hospital Corporation, Advocate Health Care Network, and Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. are
included as Attachment #3, Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4.

CON = Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
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File Number 6610-658-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE CONDELL MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 29, 2008, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 10TH
day of DECEMBER A.D. 2019 .

Ly Tan 1538
,
Authenlication #: 1934401148 verifiabla until 12/10/2020 M W

Aushanticate al: http:fiwww.cyberdrivailineis.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
2 o Page 52 —_—
g Exhibit 1




#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 26TH

dayof MARCH A.D. 2019 .

R
WG man 160
4
Authentication # 1908501888 verflable unth 03/2612020 W W

Authenticate at: htip:/Awww.cyberdrivelllinois.com
SECRETARY OF STATE

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
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File Number 1707-692-2

A

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JUNE 14, 1923, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THiS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

ty hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 26TH

dayof MARCH AD. 2019 .

AT =3
. 261 15
’
Authentication #: 1908501854 verifiable untl 03/26/2020 Q-)M M

Authenticate at: hip:/Mww.cyberdriveilinols. com

SECRETARY OF BTATE

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition
State Of Delaware
Entity Datails

7312018 6:24:28PM

File Number. 6645600 Incorporation Date / Formation Date: 12/4/2017
Entity Name: ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
Entity Kind: Corporation Entity Type: Exempt
Residency. Domestic State; DELAWARE
Status: Good Standing Status Date: 12/472017

Registered Agent Information
Name: THE CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY
Address: CORPORATION TRUST CENTER 1209 ORANGE ST
City: WILMINGTON Country.
State: DE Postal Code: 18801
Phone: 302-858-7561

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
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OFFICE OF THE SERETARY OF STATE’

JESSE WHITE = Secretary of State

APRIL 3, 2018 7155-851-7

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
118 W EDWARDS #200
SPRINGFIELD IL 62704

RE ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC,

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE NAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDUED.

CERTAIN NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GBNERAL. UPON RECEIPT OF THE ENCLOSED AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITABLE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICE OF THE ATTCRNEY GENERAL,

IOOnWB. RANQ”DOLPH. 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60601, TELEPHONE

(312) B14-2595.

SINCERELY, .

JESSE WHITEB

SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES
CORPORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
F —.— e Pa e 56 ———
e Exhibit 4




#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APFLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition
. , .
FonuNFPl‘ls.'ls(mnn.m FILED
TO cmggms N AT
T SOMDICT AF . APRQgZ0m
Genaral Nol For mmm JESSE WHITE
of Stte
Secratary & SECRETARY OF STATE
a‘ 8, an:d&. Rm. 350
217-182-1
Remit paymant in th lorm of & casides's

--——mmwpucm----wpwmmhmu—---nonu-mmwwu-----
. 8. Corporate Name: _Advocats Aurors Heabh, Ine.
b. Assumed Corposals Nanie (Complete only li the new cormporate name is not avaflable in this siate.):

-h

By electing this assumed name, the Comoration hereby agrees NOT 1o use Its corporate nams In the transaction of
business in jEnols. Form NFP 104.15 Is attached.

2. State or Country of Incorporation: Delaware |
b. Date of incorporation: Docember 4, 2017
¢. Period of Duration: Permanent
3. a. Address of Principal Office, wherever located; 3076 Highland Plowy.,
Downers Grove, I 60515-1208
b. Address of Principal Office tn flinols; 3078 Mighlsnd Plowy.,
Downers Grove, IL80815-1208
Name and Address of Regiatered Agent and Registersd Ofiice in Minols:
Reglstered Agent: £art J. Bames )

Registered Office: 3076 Hightand Pewy Gufte 600
Downers Grove 60515 DuFage County
= oy

[

»

WD N T Namo

Brest _mﬂuihllm

ZiF Coda County
5. States and Countries [n which Corporation Is adilied or qualiied to condust affairs: Wisconsin (appication pending)
6. Names and respactive addresses of Comporation’s officers and directors:

Strost Addrass oty Sub IP

Prasident See pitached
Becratary

Director

Director

Director

it there are additions! officers or more than thres directors, please attach st
Privted by cutiorly of e Stai0 of Minois, Saeuary 2015 - 1 « C 190.16
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition
1SS s5\1
Dircctors:
Namo Address

Michcle Baker Richardson cfo Aurora Advocate Hoalth, Inc.

3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
John F. Timmer c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IEL 60515
Lynn Y. Crump-Caine c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Plowy Suite 600, Downcrs Grove, 1L 60515
K. Richard Jakle c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Plwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Mark M. Harrig clo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Sulte 600, Downers Grove, 1L §0515
David B. Anderson c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suitc 600, Downers Grove, IL. 60515
James H. Skogsbergh c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Joanne Disch c/o Aurore Advocate Health, Inc. :

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
John W. Danicls, Jr. c/o Aurora Advocate Heslth, Inc.

3075 Highland Plowy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Joanne B. Baver c/o Aurora Advocate Hoealth, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Charles Harvey c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

_‘ 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Rick Weiss c/o Aurors Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite §00, Downers Grove, IL 60313
Thomas Bolger c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Nick W. Turkal ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suito 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

4835-2088-4064.2

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
e —— e — Pa 358 - e
g Exhibit 4



#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

ISS-$511

Section 7: PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH THE CORPORATION IS ORGANIZED AND PROPOSES TO PURSUE IN
THE CONDUCT OF AFFATRS IN THIS STATE:

The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for cheritable, scientific,
religious and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenuc Code of 1986, as amendcd (or the corresponding provisions of eny future United States
Internal Revenue Law) (hereinafter the “Code”); and limited as further provided in its Certificate
of Incorporation, Specifically, tho Corporetion is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of its supported
organizations, as listed below (the “Supported Organizations”). The Corporation is organized
and operated as a Type I functionally integrated supporting otganization as defined in section
509(a)(3) of the Code and Treas. Reg. Section 1.509(a)}-4({i). The Corporation is orgenized for
the purpose of serving as the parent organization of the Supported Organizations and shall
exercise direction over the policies, programs and activities of the Supported Organizations. The
Corporation shall engage in activitics relating to the purposes described above, and invest in,
receive, hold, use, and dispose of all property, real or personal, as may be necessary or desinable
to carry into effect such purposes. The Corporation is formed as a result of the affiliation of
Advocate Health Care Network, an lllinois nonprofit corporation (“Advocate™) and Aurora
Heslth Care, Inc., a Wizconsin nonstock corporation (*Aurora™), in acoordance with the terms
end conditions of that certain Affiliation Agrcement between Advocats and Aurora'dated
Dacember 4, 2017 {the “Affillation Agreement”).

The Corporation’s Supported Organizations, which aro described in Section 509(a)(1) or
Section $509(}(2) of the Code, arc as follows:

¢ Advocatc Health and Hospitals s Autora Health Care Central, Inc.
Corporation
»  Aurora Paychiatric Hospital, Inc.
¢ EHS Homc Health Care Scrvices, Inc.
¢ Aurora Mcdical Center of Washington

* Advocate Charitablo Foundation County, Inc.

o Advocatc North Side Health Notwork »  Aurora Health Care North, Inc.

= Meridian Hospice o  West Allis Memorial Hospital, Inc,

* Advocate Condell Medical Center o Aurora Family Service, Inc.

« Advocate Sherman Hospital . 'ﬁum Medical Center of Oshkosh,
C.

e Sherman West Court
o Aurora Medical Group, Inc.
s Visiling Nurse Association of
Wisconsin, Inc. e Kradwell School, Inc.

*  Aurora UW Academic Medical Group e Aurora Advanced Healtheare, Inc.

4835-2030-4064,2
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W\SS- LS
o Aurora Health Care Metro, Inc. e AMG Illinois, Ltd.
[
= Aurora Health Care Southern Lakes, o  Aurora Medical Center Grafton
Inc.
L]
L]
4
4835.28884084.2
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #3
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Organizational Relationships

Provide {for each applicant} an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial

contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Attachment #4, Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 show the legacy organizations Advocate Health Care
Network and Aurora Health Care, Inc. that came together as Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #4
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POST-CLOSING ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

[ Advocate Aunzor;_Health, Inc.

iy T AN
Advocate He_alth Care Aurora Health Care, Inc.
Network ’

All of the Advocate Health Care Network (“Advocate™) entitics will xenain under the Advocate
corporate structure and all of the Aurora Health Care, Inc. (“Aurora”) entities will remain under
the Aurora corporate structure, shown on the previously included organizational charts for each
of Advocate and Aurora.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #4
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (hitp:/iwww.hfsrb.illinois.qov).

"APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

By their signatures on the Certification, the applicants certify that the site for the proposed
Project is not in a flood plain, as identified by the most recent FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map
for this location. The project is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. Therefore, it
complies with Illinois Executive Order #2006-5. Attachment 5, Exhibit 1.

CON - Constructlon/Modernization Attachment #5
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT €. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #6. The Historic Resources Preservation letter is provided as Exhibit 1.

CON - Construction/Modemization Attachment #6
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Illinois Department of
Natural Resources JB Priakes, Govemor
S )" Grc Notural Resources Way _ Springfietd, Hincis 637021271 Colleen Callahan, Direotor
NATURAL www.dnrillinois.gov  pMaiing Address: 1 0ld State Caphtal Plaza, Springfield, IL 62701
FAX (217) 524-7525
Lake County
Libextyville

CON - New Floor Addition for an ICU Expansion and Med-Surg Unit, Advocate Condell Medical Center
801 S, Milwaukee Ave.

SHPO Log #018091219
December 6, 2019

Janet M. Hood

Advocate Health Care

3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Downers Grove, IL 60515

Dear Ms. Hood:
This letter is to inform yon that we have reviewed the information provided concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project
area,

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of the Illinois State Agency
Historic Resoirces Pregervation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et. seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years
from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinols Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act {20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please call 217/782-4836.
Sincerely,

Fod< Gyl

Robert F. Appleman
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #6
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Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.
PROJECT COSTS AND SCURCES OF FUNDS
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NON-CLINICAL TOTAL
Preplanning Costs $ 282,785 $ 197,459 $ 480,244
Site Survey and Soil
Investigation $ 0 $ 75,000 $ 75,000
Site Preparation $ 389,012 $ 1,331,870 $ 1,720,882
Off Site Work $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
New Construction
Contracts $ 8,694,220 |  $ 9,462,554 [ % 18,156,774
Modernization Contracts S 12,184,786 5 6,822,183 $ 19,006,969
Contingencies $ 921,027 5 2,782,216 $ 3,703,243
‘:;:“ecwra'/ Engineering $ 1,587,750 | § 1,257,437 | ¢ 2,845,187
Consulting and Other Fees S 752,500 s 584,472 S 1,336,972
Movable or Other
Equipment {notin $ 8,151,216 S 1,171,750 $ 9,322,966
construction contracts)
Bond Issuance Expense s 220,394 $ 355,984 $ 576,378
(project related)
Net Interest Expense
During Construction [ 1,539,401 S 2,486,471 S 4,025,872
(project related)
Fair Market Value of $ 0 3 0 0
Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs ToBe '
Capitalized 5 357,800 $ 1,930,538 | $ 2,288,338
Acquisition of Building or
Other Property (excluding $ 0 s 0 $ 0
land)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $ 35,080,891 $ 28,457,934 $ 63,538,825
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $ 9,622,621 $ 7,805,956 $ 17,428,577
Pledges 0 0 0
Gifts and Bequests 0 0 0
Bond Issues [project
related) $ 25,458,270 $ 20,651,978 | $ 46,110,248
Mortgages 0 0 0
Leases (fair market value) 0 0 0
Governmental 0 0 .
Appropriations
Grants Y ) 0
Other Funds and Sources 0 0 s 0
TOTAL SCURCES OF FUNDS S 35,080,891 1 28,457,934 $ 63,538,825
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #7
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NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF
THE APPLICATION FORM.

Itemization of Costs

Items Cost

Pre-Planning S 480,244
Site and Facility Planning 100,044
Programming thru Conceptual & Pre-Construction Planning 380,200

Site survey {zoning, site survey) $ 75,000

Site Preparation $ 1,720,882
Prep Work {Demo, and Staging) 389,842
Fuel Tank Storage 87,595
Site Staging for Construction 659,043
Earthwork, drainage, stone, foundation prep 584,402

New Construction Contracts S 18,156,774

Modernization Contracts S 19,006,569

ContIngencies $ 3,703,243

Architect/Eng. Fees S 2,845,187

Consulting and Other Fees S 1,336,972
Const. Admin & Misc. Consultants 150,000
A/E RFI + Operational Consultants / Misc. Analysis 224,600
Reimbursables/ Renderings / Misc. support 125,800
MEP /Envelope, LEED Commissioning 275,000
Miscellaneous 561,572

Movable / Equipment S 9,322,966
Modular Headwalls 391,216
ICU Patient Room Equipment 4,320,000
Med/Surg Patient Rocom Equipment 3,840,000
Misc. Equipment 234,330
PACS Hardware / Server / Station Equipment 310,000
General Equip. 227,420

Bond Issuance / Finance Expense S 576,378

Net Interest 5 4,025,872

Other Costs to be Capitalized S 2,288,338
FF&E 1,084,550
Utilities / Taps 223,560
Data Infrastructure, wireless, telecom 606,300
Miscellaneous other costs 373,428

TOTAL $ 63,538,825

CON = Construction/Madernization Attachment #7
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being realiocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
department's or area's portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

Cost Space
Department Gross p d Total Department G g
Square Feet roposed Total Department Gross Square
Feet
. New . Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Propoesed Const. Modernized | AsIs Space
Reviewable
ICU $ 18,895,686 9,093 21,914 | 15,388 6,526 0 0
Medical/Surgical Nursing Unit | ¢ 15 149 543 | 19,792 | 21,831 o 21,81 0 0
{5 Tower)
Medical/Surgical Nursing Unit | ¢ 115049 | 11,183 | 20,330 0 538 | 19,792 0
(2 East)
Dialysis $ 927,613 538 1,700 0 1,700 0 538
Total Clinical | § 35,080,891 | 40,606 65,775 | 15,388 30,595 | 19,792 538
Non-Reviewable
G § 1,876,537 0| 2217| 1651 566 0 0
support
Staff Support $ 1,895,261 0 2,437 912 1,525 0 0
Education Spaces $ 744,196 0 645 0 645 0 0]
Building System/Support $ 4,623,110 0 6,609 | 3,266 2,317 596 )
Security $ 321,899 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Corridors / Waiting $ 2,300,764 0 3,095 811 2,284 0 0
Reception/Waiting b - 0 0 0 0 0 0
Material Management $ 984,615 0 1,054 597 457 0 0
g\\('lVI;lm Offices (vacated space $ ) 0 4,135 0 o| 4135 0
Education (vacated space 3W) | §$ - 0 1,353 0 0| 1,353 0
On-call (vacated space 3W) $ - 0 4,162 0 0| 4,162 0
Building Storage (vacated $ ) 0 1,533 0 o| 1,533 0
space 3W)
Air-Handling Units (roof) $ 6225373 0 1,800 1,800 0 0 0
Boiler Installation $ 5,556,012 0 1,200 0 1,200 0 0
Elevator § 3,930,168 0 0 430 0 0 0
Total Non-Clinical | $ 28,457,934 0 30,240 | 9,467 8,994 | 11,779 0
Total | § 63,538,825 | 40,606 | 96,015 | 24,855 39,589 | 31,571 538
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #9
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The 3W Unit vacated space will include:
¢ Classroom/Conference Room space - Formal classroom space is needed as Advocate Condell
is a Level 1 Trauma Center and the EMS Resource Hospital with an EMT-Paramedic
Training Program. Currently, there is insufficient space to meet the needs of increasing
EMT-Paramedic class size and trauma related education for nursing, EMS and physicians
(Advance Trauma Life Support).
» Nursing education -There is an increasing need of increased classroom/conference space for:
o Post clinical conferences for the nursing students from the collaborating colleges and
universities present at Advocate Condell Medical Center. The various nursing programs
represent all levels (associate, baccalaureate, and master’s degrees) of nursing education.

o General nursing orientation, annual skill competency validation, and ongoing education
required for ongoing nursing education of staff at all levels.

e Administrative Offices — Offices for nursing management, stroke coordinators and clinical
staff. They currently use family conference space and other public spaces.

e On-call rooms — There are currently 3 physician on-call rooms. Four additional rooms will be
utilized to provide on-call space for Trauma surgeons, Intensivist physicians, Anesthesiology
and on-call surgeons who must remain on site.

o Building storage — This will include bed storage including beds that are stored on the fifth
floor of the West Tower and throughout the hospital.

The Dialysis vacated space will include:
¢ Clinician offices for the medical surgical unit staff

Attachment #9

CON - Construction/Modernization
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SECTION Ill. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project

costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

6.

10.

A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

A listing of all health care facilities currently owned andfor operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility is
considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A ceriified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned andfor operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A cerfified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of olher states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applicaiions may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and cerlify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update andfor clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

See Attachment #11, Exhibits 1-7.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #11
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1. The listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including
licensing, and certification if applicable.

Attachment 11, Exhibit 1 is the listing of all the facilities owned by Advocate Health and
Hospital Corporation. Exhibit 2 is the current state hospital license for Advocate Condell
Medical Center. The most recent DNV accreditation certificate for the Hospital is included as
Attachment 11, Exhibit 3.

2. Certified Listing of Any Adverse Action Against Any Facility Owned or Operated by
the Applicant

By the signatures on the Certification pages, the applicants attest there have been no adverse
actions against any facility owned and/or operated by Advocate Health and Hospitals
Corporation or Advocate Health Care Network, as demonstrated by compliance with the
CMS Conditions of Participation with Medicare and Medicaid, during the three years prior to
the filing of this application.

3. Authorization Permitting IHFPB and DPH to Access Necessary Documentation

By the signatures on the Certification pages, the applicants hereby authorize the Illinois
Health Facilities and Services Review Board and the Illinois Department of Public Health to
access information in order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response
to the requirements of this subsection, or to obtain any documentation or information which
the State Board or Department of Public Health find pertinent to this subsection.

4. Exception for Filing Multiple Certificates of Need in One Year

Not applicable. This is the first certificate of need application filed by Advocate Condell
Medical Center in 2020.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #11
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S. The licensing, certification, and accreditation numbers of each organization owned
or operated by Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, along with relevant
identification numbers, are listed below.

e License DNV
Facility Location No. Accreditation No.
Advocate Condell Medical | 801 S. Milwaukee Ave,, 0005579 211487-2019-AHC-
Center Libertyville, IL USA-NIAHO

Additional hospitals owned and operated as a part of Advocate Health Care Network:

License DNV
Facility Location No. Accreditation No.

Advocate BroMenn Medical 1304 Franklin Ave. 0005645 189504-2018-AHC-
Center Normal, IL USA-NIAHO
Advocate Christ Medical 4440 W. 95" St. 0000315 197946-2019-AHC-
Center Oak Lawn, IL USA-NIAHO
Advocate Eureka Hospital IE?;;('a fvllgor 0005652 1895;7;_233}&%{0
Advocate Good Samaritan 3815 Highland Ave. 0003384 176404-2018-AHC-
Hospital Downers Grove, IL USA-NIAHO

450 W. Highway,
Advo.cate Good Shepherd 497 0003475 261250-2018--AHC-
Hospital Barrington, IL USA-NIAHO
Advocate Lutheran General 1775 Dempster 0004796 178979-2018-AHC-
Hospital Park Ridge, IL USA-NIAHO
Advocate Illinois Masonic 836 W. Wellington 0005165 192082-2018-AHC-
Medical Center Chicago, IL USA-NIAHO
T e T 142.5 N. Randall Rd 0005884 246588-2017-AHC-

Elgin, IL USA-NIAHO
Advocate South Suburban 17800 S. Kedzie Ave 0004697 190161-2018-AHC-
Hospital Hazel Crest, IL USA-NIAHO

rd
Advocate Trinity Hospital glzigagfi e 0004176 | P0EL20 1AM
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #11
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CERTIFICATE OF
ACCREDITATION

Certificate No.: Initial date: Valid until:
211487-2019-AHC-USA-NIAHO 12/12/2019 12/12/2022

This is to certify that:

Advocate Condell Medical Center
801 S. Milwaukee Ave, Libertyville, IL 60048

has been found to comply with the requirements of the:

NIAHO® Hospital Accreditation Program

Pursuant to the authority granted to DNV GL Healthcare USA, Inc. by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services,
this organization Is deemed in compliance with the Medicare Conditlons of Participation
for Hospitals (42 C.F.R. §482).

This certificate is valid for a period of three (3) years from the Effective Date of
Accreditation.

For the Accreditation Body:
DNV GL - Healthcare
Katy, TX

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
fAsie—

Patrick Horine
Chief Execultive Officer

Lack of continead fifilmant of the cond Intha Certfication/Acred o render this Carth elid
% 6L« Hashheacs, 460 Trchne Canter Drive, Sulbe 104, Mitford OH, #1158, Tek 513-547.0343 s eghmtheare cons
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File Number 6610-658-6

ts Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE CONDELL MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 29, 2008, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 10TH

day of DECEMBER A.D. 2019

U’Q. sam 18 L
ld
Aulhentication #: 1934401148 verifiable unti 12/10/2020 NY P W@

Authenticate at: hitp:/Avww. cyberdriveillinols.com
SECRETARY OF STATE

CON - Construction/Modernization
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File Number 1004-695-5

Mt

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 26TH

dayof MARCH A.D. 2019

D 2
’
Authentication #: 1908501608 verifiable until 03/26/2020 M

Authenticate at: hitp:fwww.cyberdriveillinols.com
SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 1707-692-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of lllinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORFORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JUNE 14, 1923, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 26TH

dayof MARCH AD. 2019 .

v : 4
Authentication #: 1908501884 verifiable until 03/26/2020 W W

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdrivaillinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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State Of Delaware
Entity Details

713172018 6:24:28PM

File Nurmber; 6645600 Incorporation Date / Formation Date; 12/4/2017
Entity Name: ADVOCATE AURORAHEALTH, INC.
Entity Kind: Corporation Entity Type: Exempt
Residency: Domestic State: DELAWARE
Status; Good Standing Status Date: 120412017

Reglstered Agent Information
Name; THE CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY
Address: CORPORATION TRUST CENTER 1208 ORANGE ST
City: WILMINGTON Country:
State: DE Postal Code: 19801
Phone: 302-658-7581

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #11

CRTL PR S — P 81 DR S B
. Exhibit 7



#20-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
JESSE WHITE e Secretary of State

APRIL 3,2018 7155-851-7

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
118 W EDWARDS #200
SPRINGFIELD JL 62704

RE ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE NAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE 1S HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED.

CERTAIN NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. UPON RECEIPT OF THE ENCLOSED AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITABLE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICB OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL,

Iﬂozwa. RA;;;;OLPH. 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60501, TELEPHONB

(312) 814-2595,

SINCERELY, .

JESSE WHITE

SBCRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES
CORPORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #11
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FORM NFP 113.15 (rev, Dec. 2008) F'LED
LY . 03 208
Ganerat Noi For Proft Act JESSE WHITE
ol Giatn
Bucretary Bt SECRETARY OF STATE
i 8. Becond 58, Am. 350
EETEk'L

R L\~ T -1 ' P -

== Gutwnit In duplicate ———— Type or Print clearly In black Ink ——~~ Do niot writs above this Ing ————
1. &, Corporats Name: _Advocate Aurors Hesith, Inc,

b. Assumed Corporate Name (Complets only if the new corporate name is not avalisble in this state.):

By electing this assumed name, the Comporation hereby agrees NOT to use ita coporsts name in the transaction of
basiness bn inots. Form NFP 104.18 s atiached.

3. & Address of Principal Office, wherever localsd: 3076 Highland Phwy.,
Downers Grovs, (L _60518-1208

b. Address of Principal Offics In [linots: 3078 Highiand Pkwy.,
Cowners Grove, IL 805141208

4. Name and Address of Registerad Ageni and Reglstered Offico iny (inols:
Registerad Agent; Eart J. Barmes [l —_

Fovi Nama Vikds Name Lot Nems
Rogistared Ofiice: 3075 Hightand Pikwy Suite 600
Numbar — ~Streel &ita 7 (P10, Box alona b unacceptabi)

Downers Grove 60515 DuPage County
Cwy 7P Code Counly

5. States and Countries in which Corporation Is admitted or qualiied to conduct affairs: Wisconsin (appication pending)
6. Names and respective addresses of Corporation's officers and directors:
Skrect Addrass Chy Siote P

President Sea attached
Secratary
Direcior

Director i :
Dirgctor

i there are additional officers or more than three dinectors, please atiach list.
Priniad by auhorty of the Sizto of Tinols, Jesmsary 2015+ 1 -C 180.15
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1185 15\
Directors:
Name Address
Michele Baker Richardson ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60515
John F. Timmer ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downsrs Qrove, IL 60515
Lynn Y. Crump-Csinc c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suito 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60515
K. Richard Jaklc c/o Aurora Advacate Hoalth, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 605135
Mark M. Harris ¢fo Aurors Advocate Health, Inc,
3075 Hightand Pkwy Suito 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
David B. Anderson c/o Aurore Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, L 60515
James H. Skogsbergh ¢/o Aurom Advocats Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Qrove, 1L 60515
Joanne Disch c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc. '
_ 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60513
John W. Daniels, Jr. ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
_ 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, L, 60515
Joanne B. Bauer c/o Aurors Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 80515
Charles Harvey ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Plowy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Rick Weiss ¢/o Aurora Advocato Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Buite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Thomas Bolger c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Nick W. Turkal c/o Aurom Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suitc 600, Bowners Grove, IL 60515

4835-2383-4064.2
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NS5-%511

Section 7: PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH THE CORPORATION IS ORGANIZED AND PROPOSES TO PURSUE IN
THE CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE:

The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for charitable, scicatific,
religious and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501{c){3) of the Intcrnat
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States
Intemal Revenue Law) (hereinafter the “Code™); and fimited as further provided in its Centificate
of Incorporation. Specifically, the Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to camy out the purposes of its supported
organizations, as listed below (the “Supported Organizations”). The Corporation is organized
and operated as a Type IIT functionally integrated supporting organization as definéd in section
509(a)(3) of the Codse and Treas. Reg. Section 1.509(a)-4{i}. The Corporation is organized for
the purpase of serving as the parent organization of the Supported Organizations and thail
exercise direction over the policies, programs and activities of the Supported Organizations. The
Corporation shall engage In activitics rclating to the purposes described above, and invest in,
reccive, hold, use, and dispose of all property, real or personal, o3 may be necessary or desirable
to carry into offect such purposes. The Corporation is formed as a result of the affiliation of
Advoeate Health Care Network, an Illinois nonprofit corporation (*Advocate™) and Aurora
Heslth Care, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock corporaticn (*Aurora™), in accordance with the terms
and conditions of that certain Affiliation Agreement between Advocats and Aurora dated
Docember 4, 2017 (the “Affiliation Agreement”).

The Corporation®s Supported Organtaations, which are described in Section 509(a)(1) or
Section 509(a)(2) of the Code, are as follows:

* Advocato Health and Hospitats s Aurora Heslth Caro Central, Inc.
Corporation
e EHS Homo Heslth Caro Scrvices, Inc.

s Aurom Paychiatric Hospital, Inc.

¢ Aurora Medical Conter of Washington
County, Ins,

o Advocate North Side Health Network e Aurora Health Care North, Inc.

¢ Advecate Charitable Foundation

CON - Construction/Modernization
= - Page 85

» Moeridian Hospice

¢ Advacate Condell Medical Center
+ Advocate Sherman Hospital

o Sherman West Court

+ Visiling Nurse Association of
Wisconsin, Inc,

e  Aurora UW Academic Medical Group

4835-2035-4084.2

West Allis Memorial Hospital, Inc.

Aurora Family Service, Inc.

" Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh,

Inc.
Avurora Medical Group, Inc.
Kradwell School, [nc.

Aurora Advanced Hoalthcare, Inc.

Attachment #11
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\S5-8511

* Aurcre Health Care Metro, Inc. e AMG Hlinois, Lid.

Ll
» Aurcra Health Care Southem Lakes, s Aurora Medical Center Grafton
Inc.
L]
4
4835-2088-4084.2
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PRQJECT

7. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the heaith care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

8. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant's definition,

9. Idenfify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

10. Cite the sources of the documentation.

11. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the poputation’'s
health status and well-being.

12. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE; Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report.
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-8) MUST SE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

1. Document that the Project will provide health services that improve the health care or
well-being of the market area population to be served.

The purpose of the proposed Project is to continue to provide access to high quality, inpatient
care at Advocate Condell Medical Center (Condell) to support the health care needs of the
residents of Lake County, Illinois. The project proposes to expand the ICU capacity from 17 to
32 beds and build out the fifth floor of the West Tower building to create a new medical-surgical
unit adding three additional medical-surgical beds to replace an outdated medical-surgical unit in
the main hospital building.

In 2014, a Master Facility Plan and needs assessment was prepared by the consulting firm of
Kurt Salmon and Associates (KSA). It was a comprehensive plan encompassing a review of all
services and buildings on the campus. The plan identified significant needs to be addressed
specifically the ICU bed capacity and the space, capacity and congestion of the intermediate
medical-surgical care unit. It was determined that the medical-surgical and ICU capacity needed
to be right-sized for the current services and long-term needs of the communities that Condell
serves.

As the only Level 1 Trauma hospital in Lake County, ICU beds are often at maximum
occupancy. Condell has seen an increasing number of the most critically-ill patients. As the
volumes in neurosurgery, cardiac and critical care services grow, patients flow into the ICU.
Many advanced procedures require patients to be monitored and receive care for extended
periods of time. The need for critical care capacity will continue to be compounded with key
service line expansion such Condell’s transition to becoming a Comprehensive Stroke Center
and the physician additions in the Advocate Aurora Health System.

Concurrent to expanding Condell’s critical care capacity, the 2014 KSA assessment also
identified the hospital’s need to add new medical-surgical capacity while restructuring and
GON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #12
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modernizing its current inpatient bed capacity to enhance the quality of care. KSA recommends
that 20-30% of all acute beds be classified as critical care beds. In the current configuration, less
than 8% of adult beds are classified as critical care.

This project is designed to provide capacity for the patient growth seen over the last five years
and expected to continue with the older population growth projected in Lake County and the
increased destination services developed as Advocate Aurora Health.

The current medical-surgical unit is located in the hospital section built over 57 years ago. The
rooms in this original unit are undersized in functional space compared with current standards
and the unit location serves as a hospital connector to many units and services and functions as a
corridor within the hospital.

The current medical-surgical units are often at capacity and based on the growth of inpatient
days, additional medical-surgical beds are included in the project. The modernized medical-
surgical rooms will include updated technology that is difficult to provide in a facility designed
more than 50 years ago. The proposed units will be designed with workstations and supply
storage needed in each patient room.

The new medical-surgical unit in the West Tower will be designed as universal care patient
rooms to allow patients to receive the appropriate care in the right unit of the hospital. This
enhanced unit will enable greater flexibility to care for the increasing acuity of all inpatients.
The dialysis service for inpatients that require dialysis during their admission for other medical
care will be expanded and modernized and located in one suite on West Tower 5% Floor. The
new dialysis suite will include 6 stations: 4 stations in one dialysis room and 2 additional private
rooms.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.
Advocate Condell Medical Center is a major provider of health care to the residents of Lake
County, serving the residents of Libertyville and Lake County since 1928. It is located in the
IHFSRB Planning Area A-09 as shown in Attachment 12, Exhibit 1.

The Hospital’s service area includes 19 zip codes that comprise 88% of the hospital’s inpatient
admissions and 85% of the ICU admissions. See Attachment 12, Exhibit 2 for a map of the
hospital’s service area.

Population projections for the Advocate Condell Medical Center Service Area are provided in
the table below. Although the total population in the service area is expected to have modest
growth, the 65+ age population is projected to grow by 20%, expecting an increase of over
15,000 additional older residents.

Advocate Condell Total Service Area Demographics

Age Group | 2019 Population 2024 Population 2019 % of Total | Population Change
0-17 136,999 128,478 24.5% (6.2%)
18-44 190,413 189,655 34.0% (0.4%)
45-64 155,575 150,885 27.8% (3.0%)

65+ 76,980 92,220 13.8% 19.8%
TOTAL 559,967 561,238 100.0% 0.3%

Source: Claritis 2019

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #12
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The population for the entire Planning Area A-09, illustrated a projected 8% growth in total
population. Similar to the Advocate Condell Medical Center service area, the 65+ age
population is projected to grow by 31%, expecting an increase of over 30,000 additional older
residents.

The hospital has continued to adapt to the changing health care needs and provide the continuum
of health care services to families that live in the hospital’s defined service area.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and
appropriate for the project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.] add
deficiencies of the existing unit

As the regions’ only tertiary care facility, Condell requires the proposed infrastructure to

appropriately support the higher level of specialty care needed with the trauma cases and

significant volume growth in cardiac and neurosurgery inpatients. Expanded services such as

Watchman, ECMO (extracorporeal membrane oxygenation) and CRRT (continuous renal

replacement therapy) increase the number of high acuity conditions treated. These advanced

services are now available to patients in Lake County, no longer requiring residents to leave the
service area for this type of care.

The following services represent Condell’s ability to provide specialty therapies for the severely
critically ill, These therapies are increasing in volume and will increase the average ICU length
of stay due to the nature of the critical illness and duration of therapy. An increase in volume of
these patients and the long length of stay will result in an increase of ICU bed utilization.

a. Impellais utilized in complex cardiac procedures and in acute severe heart failure to “provide
a steady supply of oxygen to all tissues and organs in the body” (ABIOMED, 2019).

b. The WATCHMAN device (procedure) is used to permanently close off the atrial appendage
and keep those blood clots from escaping in the patients with atrial fibrillation. Patients with
atrial fibrillation are at great risk for strokes. This is a high acuity procedure with significant
risk associated with it. This is becoming a standard of care thus increasing acuity and
volume that will increase the use of critical care beds.

¢. Extracorporeal Membrane Oxygenation (ECMO) provides prolonged support for those
unable to support organ perfusion to sustain life. This therapy can have a duration from days
to weeks; extending the overall length of stay to encompass the duration of therapy and the
extended recovery due to severity of illness. This service will be expanded to encompass the
ability to provide this therapy during a cardiac arrest known as ¢CPR in order fo improve the
chance of survival from sudden cardiac arrest for identified patients.

d. Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy (CRRT) is a method of providing dialysis support in
the critically ill who cannot tolerate intermittent dialysis. Duration of therapy is two days at
a minimum, but typically ranges up to two weeks. The severity of illness, acute recovery and
the duration of therapy increases the patient ICU length of stay. (Baxter, 2019)

The increasing patient acuity and volume requiring critical care beds is also impacted by
Advocate Condell’s designation as a Certified Stroke Center and a Certified Chest Pain Center.

These designations serve the community as the primary recipient of patients from the Emergency
Medical Services teams throughout the communities in our service area.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #12
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a. As a Stroke Center, services have been expanding as evidenced most recently by the
implementation of TeleStroke capability for immediate access to a neurologist for all patients
presenting with stroke symptoms and potentially requiring antithrombotic medications to
treat the stroke.

b. As a Certified Chest Pain Center, Advocate Condell provides comprehensive cardiovascular
services including PCI (percutaneous coronary intervention, i.e. stents), invasive cardiac
support utilizing the Impella and the Intraortic Balloon Pump (IABP) as well cardiothoracic
and vascular surgery.

As the only Level 1 Trauma Center in Lake County, Advocate Condell has received an
increasing number of Emergency Room patients with many types of trauma including gunshot
wounds. These patients impact the need for additional ICU beds. The number of these patients
has more than doubled over the last 4 years.

Advocate Condell Emergency Department
Year . Gunshot Wounds
2015 13
2016 19
12017 29
2018 48

Source: Hospital records

Additional needs addressed in the project focus on specific population groups. The current ICU
facilities are limited in meeting the needs of the bariatric population. As outlined in the
attachment, there is a significant growth in the bariatric population. The new facility will have
four rooms designed and equipped to meet the needs of the bariatric population. These changes
include increased space to accommodate the size of the patient care furniture (bed and chair), a
1000-pound ceiling lift for patient mobility as well as patient and staff safety. All toilet facilities
will be upgraded to full bathrooms with floor mounted toilets allowing adaptation to the bariatric
patient in all rooms.

Infection prevention is a priority in the ICU as these patients are immune compromised.
Currently, the ICU has one negative pressure room to protect the remaining patients and staff
from airborne transmission and all other supplies for infection prevention are maintained in
mobile carts kept in the areas of egress. Currently, the mobile carts limit space for patient
movement throughout the unit. The new ICU will have three negative air flow rooms; two will
have all the accommodations for the bariatric population. The mobile carts will be eliminated as
each room will have in-wall cabinets outside of each room as well as disposal systems for
isolation supplies allowing retrieval of the waste without entering the patient room.

Advocate Condell has consistently operated the ICU at over 90% occupancy; exceeding the state
standard of 60%. ICU bed utilization is increasingly at 100% of the current capacity and
critically ill patients are then cared for outside of the current ICU unit. This “overflow” ICU
population is cared for in the current step-down unit. Appropriately trained ICU staff from the
ICU provide the critical care required. This physical expansion outside of the ICU results in a
reduction and/or relocation of step-down beds onto other medical-surgical nursing units. The
staff are increasingly challenged to manage bed placement and the ability to move patients from
the ED and surgery to the appropriate nursing unit to optimize their care. The lack of ICU

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #12
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available beds adversely effects patients needing optimal care and created an unnecessary
bottleneck for surgical services, the ED and other holding areas waiting for an available ICU
bed.

The newly designed medical-surgical unit will include 3 additional beds as outlined by the
projected growth for inpatient days. The project will consist of improving the design of the
patient care room, including modernization, addressing deficiencies in the size and functionality
of the current units, and be located in an area that improves patient transport and hospital traffic.

Upgrades to the building systems and design will include LEED certification and Healthy Spaces
Roadmap Certification and improve efficiency in patient care, energy efficiency and
sustainability.

The increased need for additional ICU beds has been well documented at Condell and will be
magnified with significant growth in the number of patients requiring ICU services in the area.
This will be due to advanced technology and growth in the older population in Lake County and
the HSA. This parallels the state’s inventory and bed determination showing a current need for
10 additional ICU beds and this will be further pressured with the projected growth of over
30,000 additional 65 years and older residents. (ESRI census data).

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

Advocate Condell Medical Center Master Facility Plan

Illinois Department of Public Health Hospital Licensing Code

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) Administrative Rules
IHA COMPdata

AIA/FGI Guidelines for Design and Construction of Health Care Facilities
Advocate Condell Medical Center Admission Data

Claritas and the US Census Bureau

HFSRB Hospital Profiles

HFSRB Inventories and Data

Health care literature regarding current trends

Advocate Condell Medical Center Public Relations archives

Lake County and Libertyville building codes

Master Facility Plan, Kurt Salmon

DaVita Dialysis corporation

Sg2 Impact of Change Forecast: Rising Acuity, Impact Growth Trends 2019
Reference pages listed are provided in Appendix 2, pages 218-219.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well
as the population’s health status and well-being.

The primary purpose of the project is to provide health services that improve healthcare or

wellbeing of the market are served. The proposed project will provide enhanced patient,

physician and team member satisfaction.
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The improvements in the physical space will include:

a. Meeting the physical, psychosocial and emotional needs of the patients, families and staff is
the primary focus of this project following an evidence-based approach to support optimum
performance.

The new facility design will improve access to supplies and equipment, especially when time
is of the essence. Strategically located storage areas will disperse supplies, medications and
equipment among three Interdisciplinary Team Centers (ITC). (Hamilton & McCuskey
Shepley, 2010, p. 133)

Each ITC will support the functions of the multidisciplinary team including physicians,
nurses, pharmacists, respiratory therapists, etc. thus the “nurses’ station” is replaced with
centralized multifunctional spaces to support the entire healthcare team. (Hamilton &
McCuskey Shepley, 2010, pp. 90 - 91; 127)

b. Each room is larger to accommodate the increasing technology and equipment required to
care for the complex critically ill patient while standardization of all rooms ensures continual
familiarity and intuitive functions for the healthcare team. Reduction in variability in room
configuration and supply placement supports optimum function and performance (Hamilton
& McCuskey Shepley, 2010, p. XV).

The concept and trend of increasing the size of the critical care room is supported by the
American Institute of Architects (AIA), Society of Critical Care Medicine (SCCM) and the
American Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN). The design of each patient room
provides four zones of care (1) the patient, (2) the family, (3) the healthcare providers and (4)
a hygiene zone to support infection prevention and hygiene needs of the patient.

¢. The addition of a family zone in each room supports the evidence-based practice of family
centered care. Increasing family access to the patient promotes the family’s ability to
participate in multidisciplinary rounds, provide input into the development of the patient plan
of care, be present during resuscitation/procedures (if desired), and decrease the sense of
abandonment/separation. Increasing family presence decreases psychologic impact of
critical illness causing post ICU syndrome for both the patient and the family. (American
Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN), 2015)

Family-centered care is further supported with family support areas for private consultation
and/or bereavement, storage of belongings in each room, a mother’s room to accommodate
hygiene care of small children and nursing mothers. Facilities will “encourage the kind of
strong support for the critical care patient” while affording the opportunity for self-care by
the visitor (Hamilton & McCuskey Shepley, 2010, p. 125).

d. The new ICU environment will improve the working environment of the staff caring for
these patients. There will spaces for a library and conference room to promote education,
locker rooms, breakroom and serenity space to meet the privacy, psychosocial and emotional
needs of the healthcare team in a highly charged healthcare environment. Staff specific
spaces will allow innovative solutions to the stress of caring in the critical care environment
such as Code Lavender for private personal support in difficult situations.

This demonstrates the ethical and moral commitment not only to the patients served but also
the teams providing care. This is consistent with the healthy work environment standards
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #12
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promoted by the American Association Critical Care Nurses (AACN). (American
Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN), 2005)

“Experts recommend using a statistically-based service-volume projection method to determine
the number of beds needed” (Hamilton & McCuskey Shepley, 2010, pp. 66 - 67). This was
applied in Advocate Condell calculation of the number of beds needed.

Sg2, a national Consulting Firm, forecasts that “inpatient growth is poised to change. While IP
volume growth is expected to be flat, case mix acuity will rise and result in an increase in
average length of stay (5%) and total patient days (7%) over the 10-year horizon. Demographic
changes, improved survivorship, increase prevalence of chronic conditions will fuel the acuity
rise in the inpatient setting. The Medicare population is expected to balloon to a 35% increase
over the next 10 years. This will include more Medicare inpatient volumes, critical care volumes
and chronic disease admissions. These case mix changes will require careful resource and
facility planning to adequately meet future demand.”

Inpatient Discharges Forecast, Adull

US Population, 2019-2029 B Dischanges Forecast

(! Days Foretast
24%
18%
i 16% 15%
9%
% 9%
—_ I B
Overall Overal Critcal Care  Chronic Dissase  Meticare
Discharges Days
2019 Discharges Baseline M — 1.5M 1.6M 14M
2019 Days Baseling - 144M 12M 15M T4M

Nata: Anglysis exchudas 0-17 age group. Beurses: Impact of Change®, 2049; HCUP Nationz| inpatient Samipla (N1S). Hoatheara Cost and Utlizaion Project
{HCUP} 2016. Agancy for Heattheare Resaarch and Cualky, Rockvite, MD; Claras Pop-Facts®, 2016; S¢? Analysis, 2019

Source: Sg2 forecast data

At the completion of the project, the Hospital will have the 32 Intensive Care beds to meet the
needs of Lake County’s critically ill patients that come to Advocate Condell. The rooms will be
sized and configured to meet the Advocate and current industry standards; providing the
necessary space for staff to care for patients. The necessary controls will be integrated into the
rooms to provide the needs for this patient population. Having the appropriate number of
medical-surgical and intensive care beds will improve access and allow the for the timely and
appropriate placement of all patients needing critical care.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that
relate to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

The phasing of this project was well thought out to provide the safest, high quality care and

minimized disruption to patients and clinicians. The first phase of the project includes

modernization of Tower 5 to include 34 medical-surgical beds and the relocation and expansion

of dialysis services.
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The next phase will be to vacate 34 beds on East 2 (current medical-surgical unit/located below
ICU construction) and move these patients to Tower 5. With the completion of the expanded
ICU floor to 32 beds, medical-surgical patients will be moved back to East 2, allowing the
closure of the West 3 medical-surgical unit.

The entire project is expected to be completed and operational by December 31, 2023.

CON = Construction/Modernization Attachment #12
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PLANNING AREA A-9: Lake County
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ADVOCATE CONDELL MEDICAL CENTER SERVICE AREA MAP
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ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives fo the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
both the short-term {within one to three years after project completion) and leng-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. piqee

As part of the overall Advocate Condell Medical Center Master Facility Planning process it was
determined that it was critical to address the need for expansion and modernization of the
medical-surgical and intensive care unit (ICU) floors in the next phase. The conclusion of this
assessment identified the need for additional capacity while restructuring and modernizing the
current inpatient bed capacity to enhance quality of care.

There is an immediate need to increase the number of ICU beds to accommodate cusrent patients
and growth projected in the service area. This project will implement the right-sizing of
Condell’s inpatient critical care capacity to provide the safest, most flexible environment for
treating the most critically-ill patients. The construction of a new medical-surgical floor is
needed to address additional medical-surgical beds and the outdated space in the original
building to meet the needs of current inpatients.

Alternative One — Modernize and expand the ICU unit without modernizing the West
tower medical surgical floor

This option increases access for ICU patients, however not address the significant facility needs
for the outdated medical-surgical unit. The medical-surgical unit, West3, is almost 60 years old
and is significantly undersized in functional space compared with current standards. The
location of West 3, creates challenges as the unit location connects to many units and services
and functions as a corridor within the hospital. The dialysis bays are undersized and are
insufficient for current dialysis patient volume. In addition, the inclusion of the 5% floor build-
out in the planned scope allows for the floor below the vertical expansion to be unoccupied
during construction. In this option, however, the vertical expansion would have to be completed
in three phases, driving higher cost.

Cost: $41,750,000 - Rejected
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Alternative Two —Modernize the West Tower space to create a medical surgical unit
without including the ICU unit expansion

The current ICU unit does not provide an adequate number of beds; therefore, the appropriate
level of care for ICU level patients. Critical care patients are either being cared for in marginally
appropriate settings (intermediate unit for ICU level patients and medical-surgical units for
intermediate level patients). Patients may be downgraded to lower levels of intensity care faster
that desired to maximize available beds in current units. Patients would continue to wait in the
Emergency Department for an ICU bed or others would be prematurely stepped down to other
units. The shortage will only intensify with the older population growth expected in this service
area and the acuity projected for these patients. As the only Level 1 Trauma Center in Lake
County, access to ICU capacity is essential.

Cost: 323,100,000 - Rejected

Alternative Three - Utilize and refer to other Hospital locations

The services addressed in the project do not fit within the “joint venture” concept. Relying on
the option for the patients to be referred or transferred to other hospitals when Advocate Condell
is at capacity may seem like a solution in a crisis, Many of these patients present to the
Emergency Department with immediate and critical health care needs. For patients who present
needing immediate critical care, the Emergency Medical Treatment and Labor Act (EMTALA)
requires hospitals to provide stabilizing treatment within its capacity. Current industry standards
indicate that transferring patients in the course of admission to intensive care jeopardized
continuity of care. This alternative does not address the long-range need for service at this site.
The physicians admitting these patients are on the staff at Advocate Condell Medical Center and
this would not allow the continuity of care for these patients. This would be disruptive for
patients to have their care provided at multiple locations.

Cost: No Additional Cost -Rejected

Alternative Four — Build two_additional floors on the West Tower to accommodate all
medical surgical patients from the main building including expansion of the ICU unit

The construction of multiple floors to include all medical-surgical units and the intensive care
unit would address the capacity and appropriate design space for these patients. Since the West
Tower was not built with the structural capacity for vertical expansion, however, extensive
structural reinforcement would be necessary in order to prepare the building structure for vertical
expansion, In addition, extensive costs would be required for the relocation of existing rooftop
mechanical equipment.

As good financial stewards of Advocate Aurora Health, this plan was ruled infeasible due to the
exorbitant cost and extensive negative impact to ongoing hospital operations.

Cost: $76,950,000 - Rejected
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Alternative Five — Construct new space and modernize the existing ICU unit to include 32
ICU beds in the main hospital and build out space in the West Tower to accommodate 34
medical surgical beds in modern private rooms.

This option was selected as it would improve patient access for current patients with the
appropriate bed capacity in the ICU and medical-surgical units and right-size the space to
support Condell’s inpatient critical care capacity.

This project will enhance safety, quality of care, and provide the necessary facility improvements
to support the future of the hospital providing the safest, most flexible environment for treating
critically-ill patients.

Cost: $63,538,825 - Accepted
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:
3. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and if shall include the basis used for determining the space and
the methodology applied.

4. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility's Medical Director.

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

¢. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage. —

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

ICU BEDS
MED/SURG BEDS
DIALYSIS STATIONS

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #14, Exhibit 1.
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"PROPOSED | MET
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | FROVOSED | STATE STANDARD | DIFFERENCE | (o .\onor,

ICU BEDS 21,914 21,920 -6 YES
(32 beds x 685 dgsf /bed)*

MED/SURG BEDS (5 TOWER} 21,831 22,440 -609 YES
(34 beds x 685 dgsf /bed)*

MED/SURG BEDS (2 EAST) 20,330 29,040 -8,710 YES
(44 beds x 685 dgsf /bed)*

Source: Hospital Records/ *State Standard- Sec, 77 1L Adm Code 1100

The ICU Unit was created utilizing Advocate room standards outlined within the existing
footprint of the floors below. The area was calculated using the state standard determination to
calculate square footage of the unit.

The unit will be divided into 3 team stations for better patient acuity separations, providing the
best patient/staff ratios. All required support spaces are included.

The medical-surgical inpatient beds will be built out utilizing the West Tower existing footprint
with all of its existing utilities already in place. The square footage of the medical-surgical
inpatient beds on 2 East will remain in the current configuration.

There are no standards for an Inpatient Dialysis Unit. The proposed 1,700 dgsf for the unit
meets the state standards for freestanding dialysis units.

o The state standard of 470 dgsf/station x 6 stations = the state standard of 2,820 dgsf for 6
stations. The proposed unit is -1,120 less than the state standard.

The Inpatient Dialysis Unit will be expanded to allow for the best care for inpatients requiring
dialysis, outside their patient room. A centralized location allows maximum patient care in a
central location.

Non-clinical additions will include a new elevator with a direct connection to the existing
Emergency Room, allowing for quicker patient access. A new boiler infrastructure will be
included to support these functions.
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be

provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MEET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
{PATIENT DAYS)
{TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #15, Exhibit 1.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #15
- - Page 103




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Projected Services Utilization

#20-004

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 10/2019 Edition

* 2years post completion

Size of Project
Number
Historical Utilization jProjected Utilization  [State Standard Requested Met Standard?
Depariment 2018 2025*
Medical Surgical Patient Days 66,136 78,370 |328.5 days per room = 239 | 217 rooms Yes
ICU Patient Days 5,254 6,521 |219 days per room = 30 32 rooms No

Note: The IP dialysis clinical service is currently operational and included in the Project but does not have utilization standards.
Utilization is found in Attachments 20 in the application.

Source: Hospital records

The projected utilization, as outlined in Attachment 18, was developed using the formula for the
Need Determination Assessment in Part 1100 Narrative and Planning Policies Section 1100.520.

Medical-Surgical Projected Bed Need

The projections for demand are driven by the pattern of growth of patients currently admitted to
the medical-surgical units.

Compound
% Change Annual
% 2014-2018 Growth
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Rate
Med Surg
Days 60,023 63,450 61,499 63,474 66,136 10.2% 2.5%

Scurce: Hospital Profiles

To project demand for the medical-surgical units, the Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR})
was applied to develop the trend line to 2025 (2 years post completion of the project).

Compound

Annual

Growth Rate | 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
2.5% 67759 | 69422 71126 72872| 74660  76492| 78370

Source: Calculated based on past Hospital Profiles

By the second year after the proposed project is completed, the patient days are projected to be 78,370.

The state target of occupancy is 90%. With this occupancy, the 239 medical-surgical beds are needed.

365 days per year x 90% = 328.5 days per bed
78,370 patient days divided by 328.5 days per bed = 239 beds

With 217 beds proposed, the standard was met.

CON = Construction/Modernization
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It was determined that conservatively, the medical-surgical services can be supported by the 217
beds included in the proposed project. Additional capacity will be shifting from the medical-
surgical service to intensive care and additional beds will be needed on the ICU floor.

Intensive Care Projected Bed Need
The projections for demand are driven by the pattern of growth of patients currently admitted to
the Intensive Care Unit.

% Change Co;:' z:::‘d
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 L LA Growth Rate

ICU Days 4,644 4,783 4,977 5,129 5,254 13.1% 3.1%
Source: Hospital Profile
To project demand for the medical-surgical units, the Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
was applied to develop the trend line to 2025 (2 years post completion of the project).

Compound

Annual .

Growth Rate 2019 | 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

3.1%

5,419 5,588 5,764 5,944 6,130 6,322 6,521

Source: Calculated based on past Hospital Profiles

By the second year after the proposed project is completed, the patient days are projected to be
6,521.

The state target of occupancy is 60%. With this occupancy, the 30 ICU beds are needed.

365 days per year x 60% =219 days per bed
6,521 patient days divided by 219 days per bed = 30 beds

Based on the 31% growth in the 65 and older population anticipated in the next years, and the
acuity increases demonstrated, it was determined that 2 additional ICU beds will be needed
within the next 5 years.

These will replace some of the need demonstrated for medical-surgical beds knowing that many
of the medical-surgical patients would appropriately stay in the ICU unit for a longer duration
that will be made available with the increased capacity. The 15 additional ICU beds will help
address the well-documented need for more ICU beds in the A-09 Health Planning Area (See
Attachment #15, Exhibit 1). Further, it will alleviate the pressure at Advocate Condell for ICU
beds and better serve the needs of the patients in the service area.
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Ratio of Medical-Surgical Beds to Intensive Care Beds
The State of Hlinois ratio in 2018 of medical-surgical beds to intensive care is as follows:

e 20,580 state medical-surgical beds + 3,535 ICU beds = 5.8 medical-surgical beds per ICU
bed

The current ratio at Condell is:
e 214 medical-surgical beds + 17 ICU beds = 12.6 medical-surgical beds per ICU bed

In the proposed project, the ratio is as follows:

e 217 medical-surgical beds + 32 ICU beds = 6.8 medical surgical beds per ICU bed

This would bring the current ratio of 12.6 to an appropriate level to meet the needs of patients
progressing from intensive care. This is supported in the needs assessment, prepared by the
consulting firm of Kurt Salmon and Associates (KSA), that recommends that 20-30% of all acute
beds should be classified as critical care.

Increased Need for Intensive Care Beds

Patient days are projected to continue to increase and shift from the medical-surgical service to
the intensive care service. As the only Level 1 Trauma Center in Lake County, the increase in
trauma patients and the increased acuity of inpatients demonstrates the need for a greater number
of Intensive care beds. The projected increased number of 65 and older population in the HSA,
will likewise increase the number of inpatients with co-morbidities that will require intensive
care services. The number of 32 intensive care rooms requested reflects the care shift anticipated
to support the needs of patients living in the Advocate Condell service area.
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SECTION V. SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

This Section is applicable to all projects proposing the establishment, expansion or
modernization of categories of service that are subject to CON review, as provided in the lllinois
Health Facilities Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960]. it is comprised of information reguirements for each
category of service, as well as charts for each service, indicating the review criteria that must be

addressed for each action {establishment, expansion, and modernization). After identifying the
applicable review criteria for each category of service involved, read the criteria and provide the
required information APPLICABLE TG THE CRITERJIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

A. Criterion 1110.200 - Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive
Care

3. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Medical/Surgical,
Obstetric, Pediatric and/or Intensive Care categories of service must submit the following
information:

4, Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by action(s):

D
H opoased

L] Medical/Surgical 214 217

[] Obstetric

[] Pediatric
[ ] Intensive Care 17 32
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required

documentation for the criteria:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.200(b}{1) - Planning Area Need - 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100 X
{formula calculation)
1110.200(b)(2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.200(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110.200(b}(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - Expansion X

of Existing Category of Service

1110.200(b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility

1110.200(c}(1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services

> || X

1110.200(c)(2) - Maldistribution X
1110.200(c){3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers

1110. 200(d)(1), (2), and (3) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.200(d)(4) - Occupancy X
1110.200(e) -  Staffing Availability X X
1110.200(f) - Performance Requirements X X X
1110.200(g) - _ Assurances X X

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 18, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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Category of Service

Medical Surgical Beds
Expansion of (b)(2) - Planning Area Need — Service to
Existing Services Planning Area Residents
(b4 — Planning Area Need — Service

Demand — Expansion of Existing
Category of Service

(e) - Staffing Availability
® — Performance Requirements
(g) — Assurances
Modernization (d)(1) & (2) & (3) — Deteriorated Facilities
(D@ — Qccupancy
) — Performance Requirements

b) Planning Area Need — Review Criterion
The applicant shall document that the number of beds to be established or added is
necessary to serve the planning area's population, based on the following:

2) Service to Planning Area Residents
A) Applicants proposing to establish or add beds shall document that the primary purpose of the project
will be to provide necessary heaith care to the residents of the area in which the proposed project will be
physically located (i.e., the planning or geographical service area, as applicable), for each category of
service included in the praject.

Advocate Condell Medical Center is located in the center of Lake County in Libertyville, IL. The
hospital has been providing medical-surgical services to the service area since 1923.

The proposed medical surgical floor will modernize the Fifth floor of the West Tower to include
a new unit of 34 medical-surgical beds. This unit will be designed with the current standard of
care, supporting pattent safety and quality, enhancing the patient experience, improving staff
efficiency and reducing unnecessary costs. The patient rooms will be right-sized and designed in
the Advocate Aurora Health (AAH) standard developed by a team of clinicians and hospital
facility experts from throughout the AAH system. This will provide the updated infrastructure
for more integrated and advanced technology and offer more appropriate space for patients and
their families.

Tower 5 will replace the original unit on 3 West that is undersized in functional space and
located in an area that is the corridor which connects the two inpatient buildings and functions as
the thoroughfare between the buildings.

The new unit will be designed to support clinicians, nurses and physicians spending more time
with the patient. The larger patient rooms provide improved work space for the multidisciplinary
health care team. The rooms will provide comfortable designated space for family members to
stay with the patient. It will provide improved safety with newest technologic solutions for
alarms, nurse call systems and computers in each room for ease of access to the electronic
medical record (EMR). This medical-surgical unit will have large storage areas for medical
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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supplies and patient care equipment for a variety of medical-surgical patients. The designated
dialysis area will increase access to acute dialysis facilities with more spaces; increasing comfort
and ease in providing care during acute dialysis sessions.

A key principal in the design is flexibility to meet the changing needs of the patients and respond
to changes in the delivery of health care. This flexibility will include the infrastructure for future
implementation of Smart Room technology.

B) Applicants proposing to add beds to an existing category of service shall provide patient origin information for
all admissions for the last 12-month period, verifying that at least 50% of admissions were residents of the area. For
all other projects, applicants shall document that at least 50% of the projected patient volume will be from residents
of the area.

In 2018, 88% of the medical-surgical patients resided in the Hospital’s service area and 91%
within Lake County. The table below provides the medical-surgical inpatient patient origin.

- Medical-Surgical IP Patient Origin 2018 |
Service Area
Primary 74%
Secondary 14%
Other 12%
Lake County 91%

Source: Hospital records
Medical-surgical patient origin by zip code for 2018 is shown in Attachment 18, Exhibit 2.

C) Applicants proposing fo expand an existing category of service shall submit patient origin information by zip
code, based upon the patient's legal residence (other than a health care facility).

The Hospital expects that the additional medical-surgical patients to have similar patient origin.

4} Service Demand — Expansion of Existing Category of Service

The number of beds to be added for each category of service is necessary to reduce the facility's experienced high
occupancy and to meet a projected demand for service. The applicant shall document subsection (b)(4)(A) and
either subsection (b)(4)(B} or (C):

A) Historical Service Demand
i) An average annual occupancy rate that has equaled or exceeded occupancy standards for the category of
service, as specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100, for each of the latest 2 years;

Medical-Surgical Bed Utilization 2014-2018

Beds . Average Daily CON
LD Authorized LCLTL ULV Census Occupancy
2014 214 60,023 164.4 76.8%
2015 214 63,450 173.8 81.2%
2016 214 61,499 1638.0 78.5%
2017 214 63,474 173.9 81.3%
2018 214 66,136 181.2 84.7%

Source: Hospital Profile

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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The medical-surgical occupancy has grown markedly since 2014, increasing by 8% points over
the last 5 years.

Patient days reported are reflective of the census at midnight. The average daily census at 1:00
pm is 6% higher in the medical-surgical units. The fluctuation in seasonality often creates
situations where the medical-surgical units are full, and patients are waiting in the ED for patient
placement.

Advocate Condell is committed to serving all critically ill patients presenting for care. When the
existing ICU beds are occupied, the critical care services are expanded outside of the current
ICU. This is accomplished by caring for the “overflow” ICU population in our current medical-
surgical step-down unit. The appropriately trained ICU staff from the ICU provide the critical
care required. This physical expansion outside of the ICU results in a reduction and/or relocation
of step-down beds onto other medical-surgical nursing units. This is not optimal, as the critical
care patients are located away from the intensivist physicians and the multidisciplinary team and
a redistribution of highly acute medical-surgical step-down patient population.

Medical-surgical step-down units provide the ability to improve patient throughput and improve
ICU utilization. Evidence demonstrates the use of step-down beds “allows an increase of ICU
admissions without increasing mortality, may decrease ICU length of stay without increasing
readmissions to the ICU, and may decrease the proportion of step-down patients residing in ICU
beds” (Prin & Wunsch, 2014, p. 1214). When there is an overflow of ICU patients, there is an
overall negative impact on patient throughput due to this shifting of patients and acuity.

In addition, due to the increased number of critically ill patients, Advocate Condell Medical
Center has experienced an increase in patient acuity on the Medical-Surgical and Intensive Care
units.

National trends project the acuity of inpatient admissions will continue to rise and result in an
increase in average length of stay and patient days. Inpatient days are projected to continue to
increase in part due to the growth of the aging population in Lake County.

The population for the Planning Area A-09 illustrated a projected 8% growth in total population.
The 65+ population is projected to grow by 31%, expecting an increase of over 30,000 additional
older residents.

ii) If patients have been referred to other facilities in order to receive the subject services, the applicant shall
provide documentation of the referrals, including: patient origin by zip code; name and specialty of referring
physician; and name and location of the recipient hospital, for each of the latest 2 years.

Inpatient admissions would not be referred to other facilities as it is the routine practice of the
hospital to admit all patients that present needing inpatient care. No referrals to other facilities
have been included.

B) Projected Referrals
The applicant shall provide the following:

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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The applicant did not include letters of referral from physicians. The patients are already
presenting to the hospital and included in the current demand. The members of the medical staff
continue to send their patients to Advocate Condell Medical Center.

Therefore, criteria i) to iv) are not included.

i) Physician referral letters that attest to the physician's total number of patients (by zip code of residence)
who have received care at existing facilities located in the area during the 12-month period prior to
submission of the application;

ii) An estimated number of patients the physician will refer annually to the applicant's facility within a 24-
month period after project completion. The anticipated number of referrals cannot exceed the physician’s
experienced caseload. The percentage of project referrals used to justify the proposed expansion cannot
exceed the historical percentage of applicant market share within a 24-month period after praject
completion;

iii) Each referral letter shall contain the physician's notarized signature, the typed or printed name of the
physician, the physician’s office address and the physician's specialty; and

v} Verification by the physician that the patient veferrals have not been used to support another pending or
approved CON application for the subject services.

C) Projected Service Demand - Based on Rapid Population Growth:
If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the applicant facility’s existing
market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-month period), the projected service
demand shall be determined as follows:

The growth in population does not meet the criteria for Rapid Growth so criteria i) to vii) are not
included.

i} The applicant shall define the facility's market area based upon historical patient origin data by zip code
OF census tract;

ii) Population projections shall be produced, using, as a base, the population census or estimate for the
most recent year, for

county, incorporated place, township or community area, by the U.S. Census Bureau or IDPH;

iii) Projections shall be for a maximum period of 10 years from

the date the application is submitted;

v) Historical data used to calculate projections shall be for a number of years no less than the number of
years projected;

v) Projections shall contain documentation of population changes in terms of births, deaths and net
migration for a period of time equal to or in excess of the projection horizon;

vi) Projections shall be for total population and specified age groups for the applicant’s market area, as
defined by HESRB, for each category of service in the application; and

vii) Documentation on projection methodology, data sources, assumptions and special adjustments shall be
submitted to HFSRE.

d) Category of Service Modernization

1) If the project involves modernization of a category of hospital bed service, the applicant shall
document that the inpatient bed areas to be modernized are deteriorated or functionally obsolete

and need to be replaced or modernized, due to such factors as, but not limited to:
A} High cost of maintenance;
B) Non-compliance with licensing or life safety codes;
C) Changes in standards of care (e.g., private versus multiple bedrooms); or
D) Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

The proposed modernization to create this replacement medical-surgical unit addresses many
advancements in the standards of care and space for diagnostic and therapeutic purposes. The
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new medical-surgical rooms will be constructed and sized according to industry standards. The
current size of the medical-surgical and ICU rooms are too small. They lack the room
proportions needed for high tech bedside care. The existing rooms average 208 net square feet.
The Advocate Aurora standards and FGI Guidelines are 300 square feet.

The limitations in the current 3West medical-surgical nursing unit include insufficient space:

e to accommodate families, patient care, procedures and/or medical equipment at the patient
bedside,

e for storage of routine pharmaceuticals, patient care supplies and medical equipment utilized
routinely,

o for the multidisciplinary healthcare team to document patient care, provide team education
and private communication regarding patients and families.

The new medical-surgical unit will provide updated facilities and equipment. The technology
demands have changed the way that nurses’ access and use the patient information through
systems in the room. Storage of linens, supplies and medications need to be immediately
available and can be replenished without entering the room thus improving infection prevention.
The new unit will offer improved lighting and in-ceiling lifts to provide a safer environment for
both the patient and staff. Medication safety is high priority and the new unit will provide
multiple large medication rooms utilizing the latest in pharmaceutical dispensing technology and
space for safe medication handling/preparation close to the patient.

2) Documentation shall include the most recent:
A) IDPH Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMMS) inspection reports; and
B) The Joint Commission reports,) Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

No citations from CMMS or accrediting organizations.

3) Other documentation shall include the following, as applicable to the factors
cited in the application:

A) Copies of maintenance reports;

B) Copies of citations for life safety code violations; and

C) Other pertinent reports and data.

The proposed modernization in this project is not related to the high cost of maintenance, non-
compliance with life safety codes or other code issues.

4) Projects involving the replacement or modernization of a category of service
or hospital shall meet or exceed the occupancy standards for the categories
of service, as specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100.

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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Projected Bed Need
The projections for demand are driven by the pattern of growth of patients currently admitted to
the medical-surgical Units.

Y% Compound
Change Annual
2014- Growth
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 Rate
Med
Surg
Days 60,023 | 63,450 | 61,499 | 63,474 | 66,136 10.2% 2.5%

Source: Hospital Profile

The high occupancy of the medical-surgical units poses challenges to providing efficient, patient
focused care. With the increasing patient days on these units and increasing number of days at
high census, patient placement is frequently changed to accommodate additional critically il
patients. The practice of adjusting the patient placement on high capacity days involves many
staff and increases the potential for costly and disruptive patient care. It is important to develop
a better solution to accommodate current and forecasted demand.

To project demand for the medical-surgical units, the Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
was applied to develop the trend line to 2025 (2 years post completion of the project).

Compound
Annual ;
Growth Rate 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

2.3%
67,759 | 69422 | 71,126 | 72,872 74,660 | 76,492| 78370

Source: Calculated based on past Hospital Profiles

By the second year after the proposed project is completed, the patient days are projected to be
78,370.

The state target of occupancy is 90%. With this occupancy, the 239 medical-surgical beds are
needed.

365 days per year x 90% =328.5 days per bed
78,370 patient days divided by 328.5 days per bed = 239 beds

It was determined that 3 additional medical-surgical beds will be needed, knowing that many of
these patients will continue to have critical care needs and the intensive care beds will be
increasing in demand for these patients. Based on the 31% growth in the 65 and older population
and the acuity increases demonstrated, it was determined that 3 additional medical-surgical beds
will be needed within the next 5 years.

These ICU beds will support some of the need demonstrated for medical-surgical beds knowing
that many of the medical-surgical patients will appropriately stay in the ICU unit for a longer
duration with this increased capacity. This was illustrated in the previous medical-surgical

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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section that although 239 medical-surgical beds are projected to be needed, the project would be
conservative and increase capacity by only 3 additional medical-surgical beds to 217.

These three additional medical-surgical beds along with the additional ICU beds will alleviate
the pressure at Advocate Condell for appropriate inpatient placement to better serve the needs of
the patients in the service area.

¢) Staffing Availability — Review Criterion

The applicant shall document that relevant clinical and professional staffing needs for the proposed project were
considered and that licensure and The Joimt Commiission staffing requirements can be met. In addition, the
applicant shall document that necessary staffing is available by providing a narrative explanation of how the
proposed staffing will be achieved.

Advocate Condell has evaluated the staffing needs and does not expect any issues meeting the
licensure and accreditation staffing requirements as a result of the proposed project. The
hospital’s ability to attract and place nurses has historically been strong.

Staffing needs for the medical-surgical units were evaluated and additional staff is not projected
to be needed with an additional 3 beds added in the project.

The Hospital’s current time to fill for RN positions is below industry benchmarks at 40.2 days.
The Advocate Aurora Health system has a dedicated team of Recruiters and Sourcing Specialists.
If there is a significant staff need anywhere in the system, resources are shifted quickly to
address the situation. The staffing consultants at Advocate Aurora Health work in a
collaborative manner.

Advocate Aurora Health enjoys a strong brand name that has made its career website a robust
source of candidate activity and is a primary source for filling open needs. An additional source
for Condell’s applicant pool comes from its active parinerships with local nursing programs such
as College of Lake County and Chamberlain University.

Many nurses are interested in working at Advocate Condell as the only Level 1 Trauma Center in
Lake County and Condell has been designated by the American Nurses Credentialing Center as a
Magnet Hospital for Excellence in Patient Care and Nursing.

Additionally, much of the success can be attributed to the total rewards package that includes
market competitive wages, comprehensive medical and dental insurance plans and a generous
401(k) Plan. Currently, 69.8% of the nurses are BSN, MSN or PhD prepared. All are required
to achieve their BSN within 4 years of employment, and many take full advantage of the robust
Tuition Reimbursement program.

Advocate Condell has continually benefited from the strong reputation of AAH as an excellent
place of employment, as evidenced by consistently being named as one of the Top 100 Places to
work in Illinois.

f) Performance Requirements — Bed Capacity Minimum

1) Medical-Surgical
The minimum bed capacity for a new medical-surgical category of service
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within a Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), as defined by the U.S. Census
Bureau, is 100 beds.

The Hospital will have 217 medical-surgical beds, exceeding the State minimum requirements.

g) Assurances

The applicant representative who signs the CON application shall submit a signed and dated statement attesting to
the applicant’s understanding that, by the second year of operation after project completion, the applicant will

achieve and maintain the occupancy standards specified in 77 1ll. Adm. Code 1100 for each category of service
involved in the proposal.

See Attachment #18, Exhibit 1.

Category of Service
Intensive Care Beds
Expansion of (b)(2) - Planning Area Need — Service to
Existing Services Planning Area Residents
(b)(4) — Planning Area Need — Service

Demand — Expansion of Existing
Catepory of Service

{(e) — Staffing Availability
(f) — Performance Requirements
(g) — _Assurances
Modernization (d)(1) & (2) & (3) — Deteriorated Facilities
(d)(4) Occupancy
8] — Performance Requirements

b) Planning Area Need — Review Criterion

The applicant shall document that the number of beds to be established or added is necessary to serve the planning
area's population, based on the following:

2) Service to Planning Area Residents

A) Applicants proposing to establish or add beds shall document that the primary purpose of the project will be to
provide necessary health primary purpose of the project will be to provide necessary health care to the residents of
the area in which the proposed project will be physically located (i.e., the planning or geagraphical service area, as
applicable), for each category of service included in the project.

Advocate Condell Medical Center is located in the center of Lake County in Libertyville, IL.
Critically ill patients are often admitted to the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) as a phase in their stay
for other services such as surgery, cardiac care, cancer or trauma. As the only Level 1 Trauma
Hospital in Lake County, the ICU unit is often at maximum capacity. Condell has seen an
increasing number of the most critically-ill patients. As the volumes in neurosurgery, cardiac and
critical care services grow, patients flow into the ICU. Many advanced procedures require
patients to be monitored and receive intensive care for extended periods of time. The shortage of
critical care capacity will continue to be compounded with key service line expansion and the
population growth projected in Lake County. Condell’s critical care capacity constraints have
led to an annual average of 104 bypass hours over the last three years.

CON ~ Construction/Modernization
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At a census level of 16 patients, the unit is essentially full, due to the need to keep one ICU bed
available for emergency trauma or ‘code’ patients who require an immediate higher level of care
from a medical-surgical unit or the ED. Lack of ICU capacity puts pressure on clinicians to
continually find alternative locations for the care of patients outside of the ICU. Over the last
year, the ICU was at maximum capacity of 16 patients 62% of the days and 17 patients 32% of
days, requiring critical patients to be cared for in a medical-surgical bed.

The ratio of medical-surgical beds to intensive care beds is significantly higher than needed to
support the patients admitted to Advocate Condell. Compared with other Advocate Hospitals,
Condell’s ratio is three times higher than the 4.5 Advocate average and double the State of
Illinois average. This illustrates the deficiency of Intensive care beds.

Med Surg Beds Per ICU Bed By State of Hlinois and Advocate Site

2018
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Source: Hospital Records & THFSRB Inventory of Health Facilities & Services

The Hospital has 17 CON authorized ICU beds. The proposed project would increase to 32 ICU
beds for a net addition of 15 beds.

The Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board “Health Facilities Inventory Data”
shows the need for 10 additional ICU beds in Planning Area A-09. The proposed project would
fulfill the need and provide for the growth projected over the next 5 years.

B) Applicants proposing 1o add beds to an existing category of service shall provide patient origin information for
all admissions for the last I2-month period, verifying that at least 50% of admissions were residents of the area. For
all other projects, applicants shall document that at least 50% of the projected patient volume will be

Jrom residents of the area.
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In 2018, 85% of the Intensive Care patients resided in the Hospital’s service area and 88% within
Lake County. The table below provides the Intensive Care Unit patient origin.

Intensive Care Patient Origin 2018 |
Service Area |
Primary 72%
Secondary 13%
Other 15%
Lake County 88%

Source: Hespital records
Intensive care patient origin by zip code for 2018 is shown in Attachment 18, Exhibit 2.

C) Applicants proposing to expand an existing category of service shall submit patient origin information by zip
code, based upon the patient's legal residence (other than a health care facility).

The Hospital expects that the additional ICU patients will have similar patient origin.

4) Service Demand — Expansion of Existing Category of Service

The number of beds to be added for each category of service is necessary to reduce the facility's experienced high
occupancy and to meet a projected demand for service. The applicant shall document subsection (b)(4)(4) and
either subsection (b)(4)(B) or (C):

A) Historical Service Demand
i} An average annual occupancy rate that has equaled or exceeded occupancy standards for the category of
service, as specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100, for each of the latest 2 years;

Advocate Condell Medical Center’s ICU occupancy at Advocate Condell has exceeded the State
Standard minimum of 60% for each of the past five years.

Intensive Care Bed Utilization 2014-2018

Beds . Average Daily CON
Year Authorized Patient Days Census Occupancy
2014 17 4,644 12.7 76.8%
2015 17 4,783 13.1 77.1%
2016 17 4,977 13.6 80.0%
2017 17 5,129 14.1 82.7%
2018 17 5,254 14.4 84.7%

Source: Hospital Questionnaire and Hospital Profiles

The occupancy has not only exceeded the minimum, but has grown consistently year over year,
increasing by over 10% over the last 5 years.
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In addition to the increased number of critically ill patients, Advocate Condell Medical Center
has experienced an increase in patient acuity as shown that the Case Mix Index (CMI) increased
from 1.504 in 2015 to a CMI of 1.616 in 2018.

ACMC Inpatient Case Mix Index
17
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Source: Hospital records

Sg2, a national healthcare consulting firm, identified that national trends project the acuity of
inpatient admissions will continue to rise and result in an increase in average length of stay and
patient days in Intensive Care units. The utilization of the ICU at Advocate Condell is expected
to continue to increase in part due to the growth of the aging population in Lake County.

The population for the Planning Area A-09 illustrated a projected 8% growth in total population.
The 65+ population is projected to grow by 31%, expecting an increase of over 30,000 additional
older residents.

i) If patients have been referred to other facilities in order to receive the subject services, the applicant shall
provide documentation of the referrals, including: patient origin by zip code; name and specialty of referring
physician; and name and location of the recipient hospital, for each of the latest 2 years.

Critically ill patients requiring ICU care would not be referred to other facilities as it is the
routine practice of the hospital to admit all patients that present needing inpatient care. The
current critical care services provided are inclusive of all critical care therapies except organ
transplantation which is provided in regional designated centers. No referrals to other facilities
have been anticipated.

B) Projected Referrals
The applicant shall provide the following:

The applicant did not include letters of referral from physicians. The patients are already
presenting to the hospital as shown by the current demand. The members of the medical staff are
sending their patients to Advocate Condell including at times of high occupancy.

Therefore, criteria i) to iv) are not included.

i) Physician referval letters that attest to the physician's total number of patients (by zip code of residence)
who have received care af existing facilities located in the area during the 12-month period prior to
submission of the application;

ii) An estimated number of patients the physician will refer annually to the applicant’s facility within a 24-
month period after project completion. The anticipated number of referrals cannot exceed the physician’s
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experienced caseload The percentage of project referrals used to justify the proposed expansion cannot
exceed the historical percentage of applicant market share within a 24-month period after project
completion;

iti} Each referral letter shall contain the physician's notarized signature, the typed or printed name of the
physician, the physician's office address and the physician's speciaity; and

iv) Verification by the physician that the patient referrais have not been used to support another pending or
approved CON application for the subject services.

C) Projected Service Demand — Based on Rapid Population Growth:
If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the applicant facility's existing
market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-month period), the projected service
demand shall be determined as follows:

The growth in population does not meet the criteria for Rapid Growth so criteria i) to vii) are not
included.

i) The applicant shall define the facility's market area based upon historical patient origin data by
zip code or census tract;

ii) Population projections shall be produced, using, as a base, the population census or estimate
Jor the most recent year, for

county, incorporated place, township or community area, by the U.S. Census Bureau or IDPH;
iii) Projections shall be for a maximum period of 10 years from

the date the application is submitted;

iv) Historical data used to calculate projections shall be for a mumber of years no less than the
number of years projected;

v} Projections shall contain documentation of population changes in terms of births, deaths and
net migration for a period of time equal to or in excess of the projection horizon;

vi) Projections shall be for total population and specified age groups for the applicant’s market
area, as defined by HFSRB, for each category of service in the application; and

vii) Documentation on projection methodology, data sources, assumptions and special
adjustments shall be submitted to HFSRB,

d) Category of Service Modernization

1) If the project involves modernization of a category of hospital bed service, the applicant shall
document that the inpatient bed areas to be modernized are deteriorated or functionally obsolete

and need to be replaced or modernized, due to such factors as, but not limited to:
A) High cost of maintenance;
B) Non-compliance with licensing or life safety codes;
C) Changes in standards of care (e.g., private versus multiple bedrooms); or
D) Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

The proposed modernization in the ICU unit addresses many advancements in the standards of
care and space for diagnostic and therapeutic purposes. In the past 18 years, since the last
renovation of the Intensive Care Unit in 2002, Advocate Condell has expanded its critical care
services to provide current evidence-based critical care services based on the Society of Critical
Care Medicine (SCCM). The increase in services has expanded the population being cared for
and reduced the need to transfer patients for specialty services except on rare occasions. This
proposed modernization will increase the ICU capacity from 17 to 32 beds by adding 15 ICU
beds to its authorized bed count. The new ICU will be constructed and sized according to
industry standards. In addition to the 15 new beds, the existing 17 rooms and adjacent work
spaces will be modernized to meet the same specifications, workflows and resources as the new
spaces. Right-sizing rooms will provide the safest, most flexible environment.

CON - Construction/Modernization
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The current ICU rooms are 208 net square feet and the new standard ICU room with the
bathroom will be an average of 330 net square feet. The new bariatric ICU rooms will be on
average 450 net square feet. The increase in provider, patient and family space will support the
intensity and technology required to care for these patients.

The proposed new unit will provide updated facilities and equipment. The technology demands
have changed the way that nurses’ access and use the patient information through systems in the
room. Storage of linens, supplies and medications needs to be immediately available within the
patient room and can be replenished without entering the room thus improving infection
prevention and time to access essential supplies. The new unit will offer:

L.

2.

i

Improved lighting and in-ceiling lifts to provide a safer environment for both the patient and
staff.
Four specially equipped bariatric rooms to accommodate the special physical needs of this
patient population. The growth in the number of patients with these limitations has increased
in Lake County (Attachment 18 Exhibit 4). These rooms will include a special patient lift
system capable of 1000 1b. limit, bariatric bathroom accommodations, and bariatric critical
care specialty bed and chairs. The larger room size accommodates the size of such
equipment and patient as well as providing enough space for the healthcare team and to
improve safety for the patient and staff during the provision of care.
Three negative air flow isolation rooms, two of which will accommodate the bariatric patient.
Increase the number and size of utility rooms strategically located for improved workflow
and storage of medications, supplies and equipment.
Improved medication safety with three large medication rooms with updated pharmaceutical
distribution technology and space for safe medication preparation strategically located to
reduce the time needed to obtain emergent medications.
Three Consultation Rooms for private medical consultation with families related to the care
of the patients.
Improved educational resources including a library, education office and storage for
educational materials as well as a breakroom that can serve as a multidisciplinary classroom.
Increased space and technology for the multidisciplinary team to provide special critical care
services including:
a. ExtraCorporeal Membrane Oxygen therapy (ECMO) also known as “bypass”
b. Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy (CRRT) also known as “slow dialysis”
c. Bedside bronchoscopy to reduce the need to move the critically ill patient to a
surgical suite
d. Bedside surgical procedures and diagnostic procedures reducing the need to move the
unstable patient to another area of the hospital for services. Reducing movement of
the critically ill increases safety and reduces risk of patient deterioration due to
excessive movement.

2) Documentation shall include the most recent:

A) IDPH Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMMS) inspection reports; and
B) The Joint Commission reports.) Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

No citations from CMMS or accrediting organization.

3) Other documentation shall include the following, as applicable to the factors
cited in the application:
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment # 18
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A) Copies of maintenance reports;
B} Copies of citations for life safety code violations; and
C) Other pertinent reports and data.

The proposed modernization in this project is not related to the high cost of maintenance, non-
compliance with life safety codes or other code issues.

4) Projects involving the replacement or modernization of a category of service or hospital shall
meet or exceed the occupancy standards for the categories of service, as specified in 77 Ill. Adm.
Code 1100.

Projected Bed Need
The projections for demand are driven by the pattern of growth of patients currently admitted to

the Intensive Care Unit.

Compound
Annual

% Change | Growth

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 | 2014-2018 Rate

ICU
Days 4644 | 4783 | 4977| 5129|5254 13.1% 3.1%

Source: Hospital Profite

The high occupancy of the ICU unit continues to pose challenges in providing efficient, patient
focused care. At high census, critical care patients are being cared for with ICU-competent staff,
but in less desirable patient settings (intermediate unit for ICU patients and medical-surgical
units for intermediate patients) or in locations such as the Emergency Department, cath 1ab and
PACU. This further creates bottlenecks in the areas holding these patients. When the ICU is
operating at full or near full capacity, patient placement is frequently changed to accommodate
additional critically ill patients. The practice of adjusting the patient placement on high capacity
days involves many staff and increases the potential for costly and disruptive patient care. It is
important to develop a better solution to accommodate current and forecasted demand. The
Advocate Condell ICU is staffed 24/7 with a specially trained critical care physician responsible
for the direct care of the critically ill.

The Advocate Condell Intensive Care Unit is led by board certified intensive care physicians
(intensivists) to meet the acuity of the patient population it serves. This physician leadership
meets the Society of Critical Care (SCCM) definition of a “high-intensity ICU staffing model”
(Nates, et al., 2016, pp. 1565 - 1566). Research demonstrates this high intensity model improves
clinical outcomes and is supported by the Leapfrog Group and the American College of Critical
Care Medicine. (Leapfrog Group, 2019)

Critical care services provided in a multidisciplinary manner with an intensivist leading the care
has been shown to decrease mortality rates, complications and length of stay in the ICU as well
as the overall hospital stay.
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To project demand for intensive care, the Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) was applied
to develop the trend line to 2025 (2 years post completion of the project).

Compound
Annual
Growth
Rate 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
0
Sl 5419 5,588 5,764 5,044 6,130 6,322 6,521

Source: Calculated based on past Hospital Profiles

By the second year after the proposed project is completed, the patient days are projected to be
6,521.

The state target of occupancy is 60%. With this occupancy, the 30 ICU beds are needed.

365 days per year x 60% =219 days per bed
6,521 patient days divided by 219 days per bed = 30 beds

It was determined that 2 additional ICU beds will be needed in the future, thus the project
included 32 ICU beds. Based on the 31% growth in the 65 and older population and the acuity
increases demonstrated, it was determined that 2 additional ICU beds will be needed within the
next 5 years.

These will replace some of the need demonstrated for medical-surgical beds knowing that many
of the medical-surgical patients would appropriately stay in the ICU unit for a longer duration
that will be made available with the increased capacity. This was illustrated in the previous
medical-surgical section that although 239 medical-surgical beds were needed, the project would
be conservative and increase capacity by only 3 additional medical-surgical beds to 217.

The 15 ICU beds will help address the well documented need for additional ICU beds in the A-
09 Health Planning Area, to alleviate the pressure at Advocate Condell for ICU beds, and betier
serve the needs of the patients in the service area.

e) Staffing Availability — Review Criterion

The applicant shall document that relevant clinical and professional staffing needs for the proposed project were
considered and that licensure and The Joint Commission staffing requirements can be met. In addition, the
applicant shall document that necessary staffing is available by providing a narrative explanation of how the
proposed staffing will be achieved.

Advocate Condell has evaluated the staffing needs and does not expect any issues meeting the
licensure and accreditation staffing requirements as a result of the proposed project. The
hospital’s ability to attract and place nurses has historically been strong.

The Hospital’s current time to fill for RN positions is below industry benchmarks at 40.2 days.
The Advocate Aurora system has a dedicated team of Recruiters and Sourcing Specialists. If
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there is a significant staff need anywhere in the system, resources are shifted quickly to address
the situation. The staffing consultants at AAH work in a collaborative manner.

Advocate Aurora Health enjoys a strong brand name that has made its career website a robust
source of candidate activity and is a primary source for filling open needs. An additional source
for Condell’s applicant pool comes from its active partnerships with local nursing programs such
as College of Lake County and Chamberlain University.

Many nurses are interested in working at Advocate Condell as the only Level 1 Trauma Center in
Lake County and Condell has been designated by the American Nurses Credentialing Center as a
Magnet Hospital for Excellence in Patient Care and Nursing.

Additionally, much of the success can be attributed to the total rewards package that includes
comprehensive medical and dental insurance plans and a generous 401(k) Plan. Currently,
69.8% of the nurses are BSN, MSN or PhD prepared. All are required to achieve their BSN
within 4 years of employment, and many take full advantage of the robust Tuition
Reimbursement program,

Advocate Condell has continually benefited from the strong reputation of AAH as an excellent
place of employment. As evidenced by consistently being named as one of the Top 100 Places
to work in Illinois.

f) Performance Requirements — Bed Capacity Minimum
3) Intensive Care
The minimum unit size for an intensive care unit is 4 beds.

The proposed unit will have 32 ICU beds, exceeding the minimum requirements.

g) Assurances

The applicant representative who signs the CON application shall submit a signed and dated
statement attesting to the applicant’s understanding that, by the second year of operation after
project completion, the applicant will achieve and maintain the occupancy standards specified in
77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 for each category of service involved in the proposal.

See Attachment #18, Exhibit 1.

Attachment # 18
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l:'"l.:! Advocate Condell Medical Center

801 South Milwarkes Avenue |] Libertyvilla, iL 60048 j] T 847.362.2900 || advocateheaith com

A ———— R F— - LS T e e v P

December 3, 2019

llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, Second Floor
Springfield, lllincis 62761

To Whom [t May Concern:

This letter is to provide the lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board the
essurance required with the Certificate of Need application for a modemization project at
Advocate Condell Medical Center.

Based on the information avalfable at this time, it is my understanding that by the second
year of operations after project completion, Advocate Condell Medical Center reasonably
expects to achleve and malntain the occupancy standards for medical/surgical and
intensive care beds, as specified in 77 lll. Administrative code 1100.520 ¢) and

1100.540 c).

Sincerely,

atthew L. Primack
Prasident

A talth-based heatth system gerving Individuals, famities and communities
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THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Patient Zip Code Service Area Med Surg Patient Volume

60073 Primary 1,810
60030 Primary 1,489
60060 Primary 1,342
60031 Primary 1,129
60048 Primary 1,121
60046 Primary 1,005
60061 Primary 939
60085 Primary 759
60002 Primary 637
60044 Primary 70
60045 Primary 58
60099 Secondary 343
60087 Secondary 341
60020 Secondary 248
60069 Secondary 232
60041 Secondary 182
60089 Secondary 170
60064 Secondary 151
60084 Secondary 147

60083 Secondary 140

Other 1,724
Source: Hospital records
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #18
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Patient Zip code Service Area ICU Patient Volume
60073 Primary 238
60060 Primary 182
60030 Primary 170
60046 Primary 134
60031 Primary 132
60048 Primary 127
60085 Primary 107
60061 Primary 91
60002 Primary 85
60044 Primary 10
60045 Primary 9
60099 Secondary 42
60087 Secondary 34
60020 Secondary 30
60069 Secondary 26
60041 Secondary 21
60089 Secondary 16
60064 Secondary 20
60084 Secondary 24
60083 Secondary 16

Other 271

Source: Hospital records
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admin.advacatehealth.thehcn.net

Adults Who Are Obese

County: Lake
25.0
24.3%
24.0
23.0
g
el 22.0
@
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19.5%
.,_
10.0 Sy TR = =
2004-2006 2007-2009 2(Q10-2014
Source: Illinols Behavioral Risk Factor Survelllance System (2010-2014)
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M.  Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other
than categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):

# I°xisting # Proposed

Service Keyv Rooms Key Roanis

|| IP Dialysis 4 stations 6 stations

L

L]

3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) — Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c)(1) — Deteriorated Facilities
AND/OR
(c)(2) — Necessary Expansion
PLUS
(c)(3)(A) — Utilization — Major Medical Equipment
OR

(c)(3)(B) — Utilization — Service or Facility
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 30, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL
ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM

{c) (2) Necessary Expansion

The Inpatient Dialysis Service at Advocate Condell Medical Center provides End Stage Renal
Disease (ESRD) treatment to tertiary inpatients who require treatments during their inpatient
admission for other medical care. The service is outsourced, and treatments are provided by
DaVita Hospital Services, which includes DaVita employed staff and DaVita owned equipment.

The existing inpatient dialysis unit/treatment room has 4 dedicated patient stations located on the
medical-surgical unit within the main hospital.

The proposed project requires relocating the dialysis unit/treatment room to the West Tower st
Floor. The new dialysis suite will increase capacity with a net add of 2 stations totaling 6
stations: 4 patient stations will be located within an open bay and 2 patient stations will function
as private rooms to accommodate contact precaution patients, who cannot be treated within the
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open bay. When not in use for isolation patients, the private rooms can be used to increase
capacity and patient throughput for the service. Patients benefit with increased efficiencies for
their dialysis care, a definitive scheduled time and earlier delivery of treatment to avoid conflict
with other required medical care and testing.

Modernization and expansion of this service is necessary as the volume of IP dialysis patients
has increased by 7% over the last 3 years. As outlined below, the number of patients at Condell
has followed the growing trend for dialysis treatments needed in the service area. The HSA
service area is projected to grow by 8%, with the 65+ population expected to increase by over
30% over the next 5 years. This population has a higher incidence for kidney disease and with
an increase of over 30,000 older adults in the area, there is a demonstrated need in the HSA for
dialysis treatment, (The 2019 Inventory outlines an additional 35 stations are shown to be
needed in the HSA). The inpatient need parallels the increased outpatient need, as this service
supports these patients requiring dialysis during their inpatient stay for other co-morbidities.

Approximately 30-40% of Condell inpatients that require dialysis are currently able to receive
their treatment in the dialysis bay acute suite. The other 60% that require dialysis, receive
treatment at their bed side. This is due either to the need for isolation from other patients and the
inability to co-mingle in this location (for example patients with high risk infections such as C-
diff or MRSA) or the patient’s acuity. It is projected that this proposed project will allow an
additional 10% to 20% of patients to receive dialysis treatment in the new private acute suite
rooms.

The additional stations will support the increasing volume growth and accommodate the
increased number of patients that will now be able to receive dialysis treatment in the private
rooms in the dialysis suite. It is projected that between 220 to 450 additional patients each year
will require dialysis treatment in a private room due to an isolation requirement.

Dialysis treatments 2016 2017 2018 2019 AY Variance
Advocate Condell
1:1 (Bedside) 1,281 1,720 1,315 1,509 18%
2:1 {Acute Suite) 833 669 896 759 -9%
TOTAL Dialysis
Treatments 2,114 2,389 2,211 2,268 7%
% of2:1 vs 1:1 39% 28% 40% 33%

Source: Hospital records

This dialysis unit/treatment room is being designed to support the deficiencies of the current unit.
The current four stations do not have the recommended clearances around each bed. This will be
resolved with the new space. The new space will be designed to include an equipment room and
clean and soiled utility rooms designated specifically for the dialysis service. The existing
dialysis equipment is located in multiple areas that include unoccupied patient rooms. Safety
concerns with the current dialysis unit/treatment includes an inefficient communication system
(Nurse Call notification and emergent rapid response/code buttons) and an insufficient water
source to maintain prescribed dialysis treatments.
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Patient safety and efficiency concerns include:

¢ Patient communication to dialysis and hospital nursing staff is occurring with a phone and
service bell

e No designated isolation bay for patients under contact/droplet precautions

e When at capacity, space between patients who are receiving treatment is insufficient

o Patients who require urgent or emergent care will take priority, creating delay of care for
non-emergent / non-urgent patients

As there are no utilization standards for IP dialysis, the following outlines the anticipated
utilization in terms of incidence for Lake County, IL based on the Sg2 model to forecast demand.

Lake County Kidney Disease Outpatient Volume Projections
Source: Sg2 Market Demand Forecast

Office/Clinic 12,080 13,187 13,862 15%
Hosp OP/ASC 3,677 3,989 4,252 16%
Home 3,274 3,547 3,894 19%
Other 245 257 268 9%
ED 153 157 160 5%
SNF 9 10 11 22%

Virtual 0 20 1180

The total square footage of the proposed dialysis suite is 1,700 DGSF and is within the standards
for 6 dialysis stations. No additional equipment will be needed as part of the new unit.

Appendix 3, pages 220-228 includes Isolation Guidelines to be used for these patients.
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N/A, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from Fitch and
Standard & Poor’s.

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or befter from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

o Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria

e Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria

e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a}
VL. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS
The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutlons) as to;

1}  the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on
any asset from the date of applicant's submission through project
completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated time table of receipts;
d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt

time period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and

the anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent

financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to
issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including
any discounting anticipated;

2)  Forrevenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified
amount and interest rate; _

3)  For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the
expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated,
including the anticipated interest rate and any conditions associated with
the mortgage, such as, but not limited fo, adjustable interest rates,
halloon payments, etc.;

4)  Forany lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property
and provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
conditions.
e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance

accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental
unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms
of the amount and time of receipt;
9] All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other

funds that will be used for the project.

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 33: IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTEH TI'IE LAST PAGE OF THE
_APPLICATION FORM. el g L1 ;
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FitchRatings

Fitch Rates Advocate Aurora Health's Taxable CP Program
'F1+'; Affirms IDR and Rev Bond Rating

Fitch Ratings-Chicago-22 February 2019: Fitch Ratings has assigried an 'F1+' shott-term rating to
Advocate Aurora Health's (AAH) taxable commercial paper (CF) program. Fitch has also affirmed the
foltowing ratings for AAH:

--Issuer Default Rating (IDR) at 'AA,

--Revenue honds issued by the Wisconsin He alth and Educational Facilities Authority, linois
Finance Authonty, and Hinois Health Facilities Authority on behalf of AAH as well as taxable fixed-
rate bonds issued directly by AAH at 'AA,

—-Existing variable rate debt supported by self-liquidity at 'F1+".

The Rating Quttook is Stable.

The taxable CP program will be supparted by AAH's internal liquidity and used initially to refund $49
fiflion of putstanding series 2008-C-2A variable rate demand obligation (VRDO) bonds that are
supported by a standby bond purchase agreement (SBPA). The taxable CP program will also be
available for general comorate purposes.

SECURITY

Bonds are unsecured joint and several obligations of the obligated group. The obligated group
consists of the vast majority of AAH hospitals, the Advocate Aurora Health parent, and the Advocate
Health Care Network and Aurora Medical Group physician practices.

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

The long-term 'AA' rating on AAH is driven by the systemn's very strong financial profile assessment,
leading market position over a broad and diversified service area covering the population centers of
two states (albeit with corpetition in many key markets), and expectations for maintenance of a
sirong operating profile. The Stable Outlook reflects Fitch's expectation that AAH will sustain strong
capital-related ratios through the cycle in the stressed rating case of Fitch's FAST scenario analysis.

The 'F 1+ short-term rating is based on AAH rngintaining a long-termrating of at least 'AA-'as well as
adeguate internal liguidity and wiitten procedures consistent with Fitch's criteria. AAH has "efigible”
discounted cash, U .S. Treasuries, municipal bonds, and corporate bonds in excess of the 125%
threshold of its maximum self-liquidity funding exposure for assignment of the ‘F 1+ rating.
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KEY RATING DRIVERS
Revenue Defensibility; 'bbb’; Largest Health System in Two States

AAH's revenue defansibility is midrange. The system has a broad market reach operating in muKiple
markets across lllinols and Wisconsin, and is the largest health system in both states.

Operating Risk: ‘a'; Expectation of Strong Operating Margins with Manageabla Capital Plans

AAH's operating risk profile is strong. The combined system has a track-record of generating double-
digit operating EBITDA margins. Capital spending plans are manageably elevated.

Financial Profile; 'aa’; Strong Capital-Related Ratios

AAH's financial profile is strong. Continued profitability and strong operating EBITDA margins should
lead to maintenance of favorably negative net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA and strong cash-to-
adjusted debt.

Asymmetric Additional Risk Considerations
There are no asymmetric risk factors identified with AAH's rafing.
RATING SENSITIVITIES

EXPECTATION OF STRONG MARGINS AND CAPITAL-RELATED RATIOS: Fitch expects that the
combined AAH system will maintain strong operating margins, as Advocate Health Care and Aurora
Health Care did separately for years. On a comhined basis, AAH's operating EBITDA margin
averaged over 11% over the last six years. Fitch expects AAH to sustain an operating EBITDA
margin in the 9% range or better in Fitch's FAST base case. Even under the stressed rating case,
Fitch expects AAH to maintain strong capital-related ratios through the cycle. Unexpected material
integration challenges leading to sustalned weakening of operating margins and capital-related ratios
could pressure the rating downward,

CREDIT PROFILE

AAH is the result of the April 2018 metger betwean Advocate Health Care (IL) and Aurora Health
Care (Wi). The system includes 25 hospitals, approximately 3,500 employed physicians, and
operates roughly 500 outpatient locations and 100 retail clinics in contiguous markets stretching from
Bloomington/Normal in centra! lllinois in the seuth, through Chicago and Milwaukee, to Green Bay in
the north. AAH is the largest healthcare provider in both Jllinois and Wisconsin, AAH is utilizing a co-
CEO management model. Combined, AAH recorded $11.5 billion in revenue in 2017 and was on-
track to approach $12 billion in 2018.

Revenue Defansibility

AAH's payor mix is midrange. Combined Medicaid and seif-pay accounted for 18% of 2017
combined gross revenues {18.2% through nine months 2018), and Fitch expects the system will
sustain payor mix well in-line with mid-range cheracteristics (under 25%). lllincis expanded Medicaid
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under the Affordable Care Act (ACA). While Wisconsin did not expand Medicaid under the ACA
guldeiines, the state did expand eligibility in prior years.

AAH's market position is midrange. The system operates 25 hospitals and more than 500 outpatient
locations covering multiple markets between central lliinois and north Wisconsin. AAH is the market
share leader In both states. Despite the leading position, the system operates In many competitive
service ateas, notably Chicago (where AAH is the market share leader in a crowded market) and
Milwaukee, the population hubs of the combined service area. AAH's largest competitor is Ascension
Health {AA+), which also operates multiple facilities in both the Milwaukee and Chicago markets.
AAH also has one of the largest and most sophisticated physician integration models in the industry
with broad population health management capabifities, including employing approximately 3,500
physicians.

Like most large multi-market health systems, AAH operates in varying service area profiles. The
system's service area characteristics are generally stable supporting a midrange assessment. Much
of suburban Chicago (e.g., Lake County), suburban Milwaukee, and other markets such as Brown
County, Wl (Green Bay) demonstrate generally favorable characteristics such as median househcld
income levels in-line with or better than the national average and low poverty rates. Fitch does not
axpect AAH's payor mix to change materlally in the coming years.

Operating Risk

AAH's operating cost flexibility is strong. Combining Advocate's and Aurora's financial statements,
over the last six years (through nine months fiscal 2018) the combined system's operating EBITDA
margin averaged over 11% (including 10.1% in fiscal 2017 and 9.7% through nine months fiscal
2018).

Looking forward, Fitch expects that AAH's operating EBITDA margin may be somewhat compressed
as the system merges funstions and executes strategies. Neverthaless, we assume in the base case
of Fitch's FAST scenario analysis that AAH will sustain an operating EBITDA margin in the 8% range
-- if not better — in the coming years.

Fitch expects AAH's capital expenditure requirements to be only elevated in the coming years. The
system has approximately $1.3 billion of capital spending plans in 2019 (translating to a capital
spending ratio of more than 2.2x). Capital spending Is expected to remain high in 2020 with a capital
spending ratio of approximately 2x. After 2020, the capital spending ratio Is expected to moderate to
the 1.3x-1.4x range. AAH's capital spending s focused on continued ambulatery development. Fitch
belisves the system's capita! plans are flexible, and management would have the ability to
downsize/defer projects if needed. While AAH does not currently have new money debt plans, Fitch
expects a system of AAH's scope and scale will access the capital markets from time-to-time,

Financial Profile
AAR has approximately $3 billion of debt outstanding. Unrestricted cash and investments measured
nearly $7.9 billion at Sept. 30, 2018 (unaudited).

AAH's debt equivalents are manageable, measuring roughly $705 million at fiscal year-end 2017.
Combined, AAH has three defined benefit pension plans, two of which are frozen. The thres plans
combined were only $67 million underfunded at year-end 2017 relative to a projected benefit
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obligation of just over $2.6 billion, translating to a funded status of 97%. Because the pension plan Is
more than 80% funded, Fitch does not include the underfunded status in calculating adjusted debt.
Qperating lease axpenses totaled $141 million In fiscal 2017, translating to a debt equivalent of $705
million (based on Sx lease expense). Consequently, AAH's adjusted debt {direct debt plus
underfunded defined benefit pension plan below 80% funded plus operating leases) measures $3.7
billion. Net adjusted debt (adjusted debt minus unrestricted cash and investmeants) is negative at $4.2
billion, and Fitch expects it fo remain favorably negative, including through the cycle in the rating
case over the next five years.

Per Fitch's FAST scenario analysis, AAH's capital-related ratios should be consistent with the broad
‘AA' category, including in the stressed rating tase. Based on combined fiscal 2017 results, AAH's
net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA measuras nearly negative 3x and cash-to-adjusted debt is
over 200%. In the rating case (which assumes a modest recession in year one followed by a
recovery and then stability), net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA remains below negative 1x
through the cycle and cash-to-adjusted debt does not fall below 150% and measures hearly 200% by
year five.

The 'F1+' short-term rating is based on AAH maintaining a long-term rating of at least 'AA-" and is
consistent with Fitch's "U.S. Public Finance Short-Term Debt Rating Criterla.” AAH maintains
sufficient discounted Internal liquld resources (composed of cash, U.S. Treasuries, municipal bonds,
and corporate bonds) and has implemented written procedures to fund any un-remarketed put on the
$545 million of maximum potantial pro forma debt supported by self-liquidity. AAH's self-liquidity
supportad demand debt is comprised of $70 million of series 2011B VRDO bonds In Windows mode
(due seven months after a put) as well as the $475 million maximum authorized under the expected
taxable CP program {management notes that initlally AAH will only draw $50 million of the CP).
Based on Fitch's rating criteria related to U.S. Public Finance Short-Term Debt, AAH had "elligible”
cash, U.S. Treasuries, municipal bonds and corporate bonds In excess of the 125% threshold of its
maximum self-liquidity funding exposure for assignment of the ‘F1+' rating. Using Fitch's Criteria,
coverage of seif-liquidity debt measures 2.6x. Management notes further that the CP program is
structured that only $50 million of CP can be called within a seven day period. AAH also has $275
million of bank lines of credit available.

Asymmetric Additional Risk Considerations
There are no asymmetric risk factors associated with AAH's rating.

The senior management team is deep and is comprised of members of both the legacy Advocate
and Aurora systems. The combined system currently is utilizing a co-CEO model. AAH's chief
medical officer retired in late 2018. The system does not have any additional near-term senior
management retirements planned.

AAH will have approximately $3 billion of debt outstanding. The initial $50 million draw on the CP
program will refund the series 2008-C-2A bends that are supported by an SBPA. AAH's pro forma
variable rate debt is comprised of the planned taxable CP, mandatory tender bonds, floating-rate
notes, Windows, direct loans, and VRDO bonds. The VRDO bonds are supported by standby bond
purchase agreements (SBPA) that expire in August 2020 and August 2021, respectively. Maximum
annual debt service (MADS) is $191 miflion, Based on nine months fiscal 2018 results {(unaudited, as
of Sept. 30, 2018), MADS coverage is 7.5x and does not pese an asymmetric risk. The MTl includes
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a minimum historical debt service coverage covenant of 1.10x.

AAH has fixed payor swaps with Wells Fargo Bank and PNC Bank. The notional amount of the
swaps outstanding is roughly $325 million and they will mature in November 2038. The swaps had a
net termination value of negative $74 million to AAH at Dec. 31, 2017 and negative $57 million at
Sept. 30, 2018.

AAH had over 260 days cash on hand at Sept. 30, 2018, and cash on hand does not pose an
asymmetric risk.

Contact;

Primary Analyst

Mark Pascaris

Director
+1-312-368-3135

Fitch Ratings, inc.

70 West Madison Street
Chicago, IL 60602

Secondary Analyst
Kevin Holloran
Senior Director
+1-512-813-5700

Committee Chairperson
Joanne Ferrigan

Senior Director
+1-212-908-0723

In additlon to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specified below, this
action was Informed by information from Lumesis.

Media Relations: Elizabeth Fogerty, New York, Tel: +1 212 908 0526, Email:
elizabeth fogerty@thefitchgroup.com

Additional infortmation is available on www.fitchratings.com

Applicable Criteria

Fitch Internal Liquidity Worksheet (pub. 15 Feb 2019)

Rating Criteria for Public-Sector, Revenus-Supported Debt (pub. 26 Feb 2018)

U.S. Not-For-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems Rating Criteria (pub. 04 Feb 2019)
U.8. Public Finance Short-Term Debt Rating Criteria (pub. 01 Nov 2017)

Additional Disclosures

Dodd-Frank Rating Information Disclosure Form
Solicitation Status
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Endorsement Policy

ALL FITCH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS.
PLEASE READ THESE LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS BY FOLLOWING THIS LINK:

HTTPS /MWW .FITCHRATINGS.COM/UNDERSTANDINGCREDITRATINGS. IN ADDITION,
RATING DEFINITIONS AND THE TERMS OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE
AGENCY'S PUBLIC WEB SITE AT WWW.FITCHRATINGS.COM. PUBLISHED RATINGS,
CRITERIA, AND METHODOLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT ALL TIMES. FITCH'S
CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, AFFILIATE FIREWALL,
COMPLIANCE, AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE
FROM THE CODE OF CONDUCT SECTION OF THIS SITE. DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELEVANT INTERESTS ARE AVAILABLE AT
HTTPS/AMWW.FITCHRATINGS.COM/SITE/REGULATCORY. FITCH MAY HAVE PROVIDED
ANOTHER PERMISSIBLE SERVICE TO THE RATED ENTITY OR ITS RELATED THIRD PARTIES.
DETAILS OF THIS SERVICE FOR RATINGS FOR WHICH THE LEAD ANALYST IS BASED IN AN
EU-REGISTERED ENTITY CAN BE FOUND ON THE ENTITY SUMMARY PAGE FOR THIS
ISSUER ON THE FITCH WEBSITE.

Copyright © 2019 by Fitch Ratings, Inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 33 Whitehall Street,
NY, NY 10004. Telephone: 1-800-753-4824, (212) 908-0500. Fax: (212) 480-4435. Reproduction or
retransmission in whole or in part is prohibited except by permission. All rights reserved. In issuing
and maintaining Its ratings and Inh making other reports (including forecast information), Fitch relies
on factual Information it recelves from issuers and underwriters and from other sources Fitch
belleves to be credible. Fitch conducts a reasonable investigation of the factual information retied
upon by it in accordance with its ratings methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that
Information from independent sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given sacurity
or in a given jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party
verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer, the
requirements end practices in the jurisdiction in which the rated security is offered and sold andfor
the Issuer Is located, the availability and nature of relevant public information, access to the
management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing third-party verifications
such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appralsals, actuarlal reporis, engineering
reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third parties, the availability of independent and
compeient third- party verification sources with respect to the particular security or in the particular
Jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety of other factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should
understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure
that all of the information Fitch relies on in conhection with a rating or a report will be accurate and
complete. Ultimately, the Issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the information
they provide to Fitch and fo the market in offering documents and other reports. In issuing its ratings
and its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts, including independent auditors with respect to
financial statements and attorneys with respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and
foracasts of financial and other infermation are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions
and predictions about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result,
despite any verification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected by future events or
conditions that were not anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was Issued or affirmed.

The information in this report is provided "as is" without any representation or warranty of any kind,
and Fitch does not represant or warrant that the report or any of its contents will meet any of the
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requirements of a recipient of the report. A Fitch rating is an opinion as to the crediiworthiness of a
security. This opinion and reports made by Fitch are based on established criteria and
methodologies that Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating. Therefore, ratings and reports are
the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or group of individuals, is solely responsible for
a rating or a report. The rating does not address the fisk of loss due to risks other than credit risk,
unless such risk is specifically mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All
Fitch reports have shared authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are
not solely responsible for, the opinions stated therein. The individuals are named for contact
purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a prospectus nor a substitute for the
information assembled, verified and presented to investors by the issuer and its agents in connection
with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any time for any reason in
the sole discretion of Fitch. Fitch does not provide investment advice of any sest. Ratings are nota
recommendation to buy, sell, or hold any security. Ratings do not comment on the adequacy of
market price, the sultability of any security for a particular investor, or the tax-exempt nature or
taxability of payments made in respect to any security. Fitch receives fees from issuers, insurers,
guatantors, other obligors, and underwriters for rating securities. Such fees generally vary from
US$1,000 to US$750,000 (or the applicable currency equivalent) per issue. In certain cases, Fitch
will rate all or a number of issues issued by a particular issuer, or insured or guaranteed by a
particular insurer or guarantor, for a single annual fee. Such fees are expected to vary from
US$10,000 to US$1,500,000 (or the applicable currency equivalent). The assignment, publication, or
dissemination of a rating by Fitch shall not constitute a consent by Fitch fo use its name as an expert
in connection with any registration statement filed under the United States securities laws, the
Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 of the United Kingdom, or the securities laws of any
particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficiency of electronic publishing and distribution, Fitch
research may be available to electronic subscribers up to three days earlier than to print subscribers.
For Australia, New Zeatand, Talwan and South Korea only: Fitch Austrafia Pty Ltd holds an
Australian financial services license (AFS license no. 337123) which authorizes it to provide credit
ratings to wholesale clients only. Credit ratings information published by Fitch is not intended to be
used by persons who are retall clients within the meaning of the Corporations Act 2001

Fitch Ratings, Inc. is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (the "NRSRO"). While certain of the NRSRO's credit
rating subsidlaries are listed on Item 3 of Form NRSRO and as such are authorized to issue credit
ratings on behalf of the NRSRO (see hitps://www fitchratings.com/site/regulatory), other credit rating
subsidiaries are not listad on Form NRSRQ (the "non-NRSROs") and therefore credit ratings issued
by those subsidiaries are not issued on behalf of the NRSRO. However, non-NRSRO personnel may
participate in determining credit ratings issued by or on behalf of the NRSRO.

SOLICITATION STATUS

The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained at the request of the rated entity/issuer
or a related third party. Any exceptions follow balow.

Endorsement Policy

Fitch's approach to ratings endorsement so that ratings produced outside the EU may be used by
regulated entities within the EU for regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU Regulation
with respect to credit rating agencies, can be found on the EU Regutatory Disclosures page. The
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endorsement status of all International ratings is provided within the entity summary page for each

rated entity and in the transaction detait pages for all structured finance transactions on the Fitch
wehsite. These disclosures are updated on a daily basis.

Fitch Updates Terms of Use & Privacy Policy

We have updated our Temms of Use and Privacy Policies which cover all of Fitch Group's websites. Learn
more.
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S&P Global
Ratings

(/en_US/web/guest/home)
Advocate Aurora Health, IL Series
2019 Taxable Commercial Paper
Notes Rated 'A-1+'

25-Feb-2019 19:26 &ST
View Analyst Contact information

CHICAGO (S&P Global Ratings) Feb. 25, 2019--S&P Global Ratings assigned its
"A-1+" short-term rating to Advocate Aurora Health (AAK), Ill.'s serles 2019
taxable commercial paper (CP) notes, authorized for up to $475 million.

Sirilar to AAH's other bonds outstanding, AAH's CP debt will be secured by the
general, unsecured joint, and several obligations of the AAH obligated group
(also known as Advocate Aurora Health Credit Group).

AAH maintains "AA” long-term ratings on various series of debt. AAH also
maintains an existing "A-1+' short-term component of the dual rating en the
series 20118 (Windows) bonds, which are also backed by self-liquidity.

“The short-term rating on the CP reflects our view of the credit strength
inherent in the 'AA’ long-term rating on AAH's existing debt, and the
sufficiency of AAH's unrestricted reserves to provide liquidity support for
the bonds,” sald S&P Global Ratings credit analyst Suzie Desai.

Specifically, the 'AA" long-term rating reflects ocur expectation that AAH will
continue to build on its already excellent enterprise profile and leading
market position in the broad Chicagoland and eastern Wisconsin markets. AAH
now has considerable size and scale, with more than $11 billion in revenue and
more than $16 billion in assets, servicing a very large population base.
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Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to
express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed
to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such
criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for further
information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of
RatingsDirect at www.capitaliq.com. A1l ratings affected by this rating action
| can be found on SEP Global Ratings' public website at
wwW.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left

column.
Suzie R Desal, Chicago (1) 312-233-7046;
Primpry Crasis Anamt'suzie.desal@spglobal.com (mailto:suzle.desal@spglobal.com)
Secondary Contact: Allison Bretz, Chicago (1) 303-721-4119,

aliison. bretz@spglobal.com {mallto:aliison. bretz®spgichal. com)

No content {Including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valustions, model, scfiware or other application or
output therefrom) or any part thereof (Content) may be modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in
any form by any means, or stored In a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of
Standard & Poor's Financlal Services LLC or Its affiliates {collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be used for any
unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party providers, as well as their directors, officers,
shareholders, employees or agents {collectively S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness,
timeliness or availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or
otherwise), regardiess of the cause, for the results obtained from the use of the Content, ot for the security or
maintenance of any data Input by the user. The Content is provided on an "as Is" basts. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY
AND ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABIUITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR
DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE
WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION, In no event shall S&# Partles be liable to any party for any
direct, Indirect, incldental, exermplary, compensatory, punitive, speclal or consequentlal damages, costs, expenses,
tega! fees, or losses {including, without {imitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses

caused by negilgence) In connection with any use of the Content even If advised of the possibility of such
damages.

Credit-related and other analyses, Including ratings, and statements |n the Content are statements of oplnion as of
the date they are expressed and not statements of fact. S&P's opinlons, analyses and rating acknowledgment
decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any
investment decisions, and do not address the suitabllity of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to update the
Content following publication In any form or format. The Content should not be relied on and Is not a substitute
for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, Its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when
making Investment and other business decislons. S&P does not act as a fiduclary or an investment advisor except
where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not
perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or Independent verification of any Information It
receives. Rating-related publications may be published for a variety of reasons that are not necessarily dependant
on action by rating committees, Including, but not limited to, the publication of a periodic update on a credit
rating and related analyses.

To the extent that regulatory authoritles allow a rating agency to acknowledge In one Jurisdiction a rating issued in
ancther jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P reserves the right to assign, withdraw or suspend such
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acknowledgment at any time and In its sole discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the
assignment, withdrawal or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any damage alleged to
have been suffered on account thereof.

S&P keeps certaln activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence
and objectivity of thelr respective activities. As a result, certain business units of S&P may have information that Is
not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established policles and procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of cartain non-public information recelved in connection with each analytical procass,

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of
securities or from obligors. S&P raserves tha right to disseminate its opinlons and analyses. S&F's public ratings
and analyses are made avalilable on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com
{http://www.standardandpoors.com) (free of charge), and www. ratingsdirect. com (http://www.ratingsdirect.com)
and www.globalcreditportal.com (http://www.globalcreditportal.com) (subscription), and may be distributed
through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional Information about
our ratings fees Is available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees
{http://www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees).

Any Passwords/user IDs issued by S&P to users are single user-dedicated and may ONLY be used by the individual
to whom they have been assigned. No sharing of passwords/user IDs and no simultanecus access via the same
password/user ID is permitted. To reprint, translate, or use the data or Information other than as provided hereln,
contact S&P Global Ratings, Client Services, 55 Water Street, New York, NY 10041; (1) 212-438-7280 or by e-malil
to: research, request@spglobal.com {mallto:research..request@spglobal.com).

Legal Disclaimers (/en US/web/guest/regulatory/legal-disclaimers)

Careers at S&P Global Ratings (https://www.spglobal com/en/careers/overview)
Terms of Use {/en_tUS/web/guest/regulatory/termsofuss)

Privacy and Cookle Notice (/en_US/web/guest/regulatory/privacy-notice)
Copyright ® 2019 Standard & Poor's Financlal Services LLC. All rights reserved.

Reproduction and distribution of this Information in any form is prohibitad except with the prior written
permission of Standard & Poor's Financlal Services LLC and its affillates (together, “S&P"). S&P does not guarantee
the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or availabllity of any information, Including ratings, and is not responsible
for any errors or omlssions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, or for the results obtained from the
use of such information. S&P GIVES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE S&P shall not be liable for
any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, speclal or consequentlal damages, costs,
expenses, legal fees, or losses (including lost income or profits and opportunity costs) in connection with any use
of this Informatlon, including ratings. S&P ratings are statements of oplnions and are not statements of fact or
recommendations to purchase hold or sell securities. They do not address the market value of securities or the
sultability of securities for investment purposes, and should not be relied on as investment advice. Please read our
complete disclalmer here, (/en_US/web/guest/regulatory/legal-disclaimers)
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N/A, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from Fitch and
Standard & Poor’s.

SECTION VII. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All ihe applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:
27. "A’ Bond rating or better
28. All of the project's capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources
29. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

30. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A rated
guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years
Enter Historical and/or Projected
Years: \
Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.

CON - Construction/Modernization ) Attachments #34 & 35

Page 145 —



#20-004

ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 1072019 Edition

SECTION VIil.1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements N/ A

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by

submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1} That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the
balance sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at
least 2.0 times for hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available;

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,

no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves {in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
2. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost and square

footage allocation for new construction andfor modernization using the following format (insert after this
page).
3.

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
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A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* { Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

F. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in cutrrent dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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| Advocate Health Care

3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600 || Downers Grove. lllinois 60515 || T 630 572.9393|| advocatehealth.com

December 23, 2019

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, Second Floor
Springfield, IL. 62761

RE: Advocate Condell Medical Center
Construction & Modernization Project

Dear Ms. Avery:

This letter is to attest to the fact that the selected form of debt financing for the proposed Advocate
Condell Medical Center project will be at the lowest net cost available, or if a more costly form of
financing is selected, that form is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no
required mortgage, access to additional debt, term financing costs, and other factors.

Respectfully,

William Santulli

Chief Operating Officer
Advocate Aurora Health

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
ThisZA day of Deceynloer; 2019.

(Seal of Notary)
- Gq@m GApkor

OFFICIAL SEAL ) Slgnature of Notaty
CRISTIN G FOSTER ' S 7
R V- e
- STATE OF fLLINOIS ¢ OFFICIAL SEAL

CRISTIN G FOSTER

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS ¢
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:03/13/2

A faith-based health system serving indiyiduals, families and communities

749
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Cost & Gross Square Feet by Department

A | B c | D E | F G H
Dent. / Area Total Cost
Pt Cost/ Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. F1. Const, $ Mod. $ {G+H)
New Moed. New Circ.* Mod. Circ.* AxC BXxE (G+H)
REVIEWABLE
ICU $565.00 $417.00 15,388 15% 6,526 15% | $8,694,220 $2,721,342 $11,415,562
Medical/Surgical Nursing
Unit (5 Tower) $ 402.00 21,831 15% $8,776,062 $ 8,776,062
Medical/Surgical Nursing
Unit (2 East) $106.92 538 15% § 57,525 $ 57,525
Dialysis $ 370.50 1,700 15% $ 629,858 $ 629,858
Total Clinical $8,694,220 $12,184,786 $20,879.006
Clinical Contingency $ 921,027
Total Clinical Reviewable
+ Contingency $21,800,033
NON-REVIEWABLE
Administrative offices /
support’ $545.00 $408.00 1,651 15% 566 15% [ $899,795 $230,928 $1,130,723
Staff Support $549.00 $410.00 912 15% 1,525 15% | $500,688 $625,250 $1,125,938
Education Spaces $410.00 0 645 15% | § - $264,450 $ 264,450
Building System/Support $595.00 | $455.00 3266 | 15% | 2317 15% | $1,943,270 | $1,054235 | $2,997,505
Security $ - $ - 0 0 5 - o - $ -
Public Corridors / Waiting | 544,09 $405.00 811 15% | 2284 | 15% | $437,940 | $925,020 $1,362,960
Reception/Waiting $ - $ - 0 0 $ - $ - 3 -
Material Management $590.00 $451.00 597 15% 457 15% | $352,230 $206,107 $ 558,337
Admin Offices (vacated
space 3W) $ - - 0 0 - 3 - § -
Education (vacated space
W) $ - $ - 0 0 $ - $ - $ -
On-call {(vacated space 3W) ) $ - 0 0 $ i $ . $ )
Building Storage {vacated
space 3W) $ - $ - 0 0 b - $ - $ -
Air Handling Units (ro0f) | ¢1 1509 | g - 1,800 | 15% 0 $3447,000 | 3 - | $ 3447000
Boiler Installation $ & $2,930.16 0 1,200 15% | $ o $3,516,19 $ 3,516,192
Elevator $4,375.89 $ - 430 | 100% 0 $1,881,632 $ - $ 1,881,632
Total Non-Clinical $9,462,555 | $6,822,182 | $16,284,737
Non-Reviewable
Contingency $ 2,782,216
Total Clinical Non-
Reviewable + Contingency $19,066,953
Total $37,163,743
Contingency §3,703,243
Total + Contingency $40,866,986
CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #36
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2023 Projected Operating Costs Per Equivalent Patient Day = $159.54

2023 Impact of Project on Capital Costs Per Equivalent Patient Day = $91.34

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #36
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Complexity of Construction Impact on Cost - ICU Expansion

The new ICU expansion requires all waste plumbing lines for plumbing fixtures to be core
drilled through the existing roof deck slab. This includes removing ceilings and walls in
the existing space below and investigating existing conditions in order to connect the
plumbing lines to the existing waste lines below. Existing ceilings and walls will need to
be patched after the fact and other existing mechanical systems need to be re-routed in
1 | order to allow for plumbing connections from above. $512,000

Since the new ICU expansion is built above existing clinical space, precautions will need
to be put in place on the floors below to ensure patient safety. Temporary partitions,
reworking egress doors and signage and equipment to ensure negative pressure will be
2 | required for the interim life safety measures on the floors below the expansion. $105,000

The new ICU expansion is to be constructed directly adjacent to the existing active ICU.
In order to maintain daylight in the adjacent rooms, a temporary light well will need to be
constructed within the new structure. This involves a second mobilization for the steel,
enclosure and roofing trades as well as a temporary exterior enclosure and temporary roof
3 | to create the light well. $285,000

The new ICU expansion is to be constructed on the existing roof of the B & C buildings.
This means protecting the existing roof membrane until the new structure is water tight,
providing temporary roofing in areas to allow for the installation of construction elements
4 | and removing the existing roof once the new expansion is water tight. $425,000

Due to the necessity to keep the existing structure water tight as well as ensure the safety
of patient and staff, the productivity of the steel, curtainwall, and architectural precast
5 | erection is limited compared to building a new green field structure. $205,000

In order to keep the first-floor emergency department open during construction the ICU
expansion requires a canopy constructed at the entrance to ensure public safety, scaffold
access to the project site rather than interior elevator use and several new driveways to not
6 | affect public and ambulance routing. $445,000

In order to allow for the architectural layout of the new ICU expansion, several existing
structural column locations will need to be reinforced. This requires the actual structural
modifications within the existing hospital as well as required patching and mechanical
7 | system rerouting. $180,000

As part of the new ICU expansion the existing air handling unit that serves the existing
ICU will need to be removed and then relocated on top of the new expansion. In the
interim the existing ICU HVAC systems will need to be reworked to ensure no disruption
of patient comfort. Temporary equipment will be provided as well as rework of existing
8 | ductwork. $320,000

In order to feed the new ICU expansion electrical and medical gas systems, piping will
need to be routed through existing spaces. This is a slow process that requires patching
9 | and ceiling rework along the way. $255,000

Due to the location of the expansion above the existing hospital, hoisting material into the
construction space and removal of debris is a much more laborious process than a project
built within green field. All material going in or out needs to be rigged and hoisted via a
10 | crane or similar piece of equipment. $296,000

The new ICU expansion ties into the existing ICU and will require the existing fagade to
be reworked at this tie in point. Curtainwall, roofing, and expansion joints will all need
11 | modifications to allow for the two areas to be combined into the new ICU. $75,000

There will be two stairwells that serve the new ICU Expansion. In order to allow for the
extension of the two existing stairwells the existing structure needs to be removed
12 | including portions of the existing fagade. $74,000

CON - Construction/Modernization Attachment #36
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The existing hospital kitchen exhaust fan in located on the roof where the new ICU
expansion is to be located. This fan will need to be disconnected and relocated on top of
the new ICU. This requires extending the ductwork to the new roof as well as removing
and reinstalling the architectural enclosure around the existing fan.

$250,000

Total

$3,431,000

Complexity of Construction Impact on Cost - ICU Renovation

The renovation work requires routing through the renovation workspace into the completed
ICU expansion. This requires temporary partitions, additional phasing and equipment to
provide negative air in the construction space.

$220,000

Since the new ICU renovation is built above existing clinical space, precautions will need to
be put in place on the floors below to ensure patient safety. Temporary partitions, reworking
egress doors and signage and equipment to ensure negative pressure will be required for the
interim life safety measures on the floors below the expansion.

$75,000

In order to account for the new architectural layout, the existing curtainwall system will need
to be modified to allow for vision glass in each new patient room within the renovation space.

$160,000

The roof deck of the existing ICU is lower than a typical healthcare structure, so the existing
ductwork is routed above the deck within water tight enclosures. In order to allow for the
new architectural layout, the ductwork and roofing will need to be reworked above the
renovation space which includes cutting a new opening through the concrete. This is made
more complex as the hospital helicopter pad is located on this roof as well.

$330,000

Total

$785,000

Complexity of Construction Impact on Cost — Medical-Surgical Unit (S Tower)

The use of hospital elevators to access the 5th floor of the west tower will be limited so an
opening within the side of the building will need to be created and material and debris will be
needed to be hoisted via a crane.

$275,000

Since the 5th floor west tower buildout is built above existing clinical space, precautions will
need to be put in place on the floors below to ensure patient safety. Temporary partitions,
reworking egress doors and signage and equipment to ensure negative pressure will be
required for the interim life safety measures on the floors below the expansion.

$95,000

The existing west tower isolation fans are not performing as designed. The issues will need to
be investigated and the fans replaced.

$180,000

The existing building automation system (BAS) has reached its limit for adding new spaces
that require controlled HVAC systems. A new BAS will be incorporated as part of the 5th
floor west tower buildout in order to prevent any issues with patient comfort.

$245,000

Total

$795,000
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SECTION IX. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is
feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net
services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by
the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting
requirements for charity care reporting in the Illinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shail
report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with
the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and
Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and “Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source" as required
by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.
Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patlents} LG Vear Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year THAF Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue]}
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37 IN NUMERIC £ SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER TH_E LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. i i i
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Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2016 2017 2018
Inpatient 426 398 313
Cutpatient 2,856 2,351 2,909
Total 3,282 2,749 3,222
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient $2,658,000 $3,888,000 $3,386,000
Outpatient $2,452,000 $3,408,000 $4,720,000
Total $5,110,000 $7,296,000 $8,106,000
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) 2016 2017 2018
Inpatient 2921 2,284 1,794
Qutpatient 48,179 40,934 39,201
Total 51,100 43,218 40,995
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $31,969 521 $32,139,966 $30,430,446
Qutpatient $20,731,747 $20,730,817 $19,124,815
Total $52,701,268 $52,870,783 $49,555,261
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATICN FORM.

Advocate Condell Medical Center has a long history of serving Lake County, Illinois, and has
continued to provide high quality, acute care to residents for over 90 years. The hospital takes
great pride in the relationship it has with the neighborhood, communities, organizations, and
agencies it serves. The following illustrates some of the ways that the Medical Center addresses
the needs of the people in its service area.

Advocate Condell is the only Level 1 Trauma Center in Lake County and is Lake County’s
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) resource hospital, providing training and education to
emergency medicine providers. It is responsible for coordinating disaster medical response upon
the activation of the Emergency Medical Disaster Plan. In addition, the Medical Center offers
educational training courses to prepare individuals to earn an emergency medical technician
(EMT) and emergency communications registered nurse (ECRN) certification.

The Sexual Assault Examiner program (SANE) provides services within the Emergency
Department. Developed in 2011, it remains the only Lake County program with certified Sexual
Assault Nurse Examiners available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. These highly-trained
practitioners not only provide compassionate care to victims but are able to collect forensic
evidence, counsel the victim and testify in court, assisting the victim through the entire process.
In addition, the SANE program coordinator works closely with local advocates, law enforcement
and prosecutors to assure victims of sexual assault in Lake County receive the best care possible.
In 2018, the Medical Center’s SANE team trained over 200 professionals on sexual assault, how
CON = Construction/Modernization Attachment #37
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to use medical evidence to prosecute a case and how to talk to victims. In 2018, the Advocate
Condell highly skilled SANE team treated 87 victims of sexual violence.

Advocate Condell devotes resources to training student nurses from Chamberlain, DePaul,
Georgetown, Indiana State, Northern Michigan, Olivet Nazarene, Loyola and Rush universities,
as well as Oakton Community College and the College of Lake County. The Medical Center
also trains students in physical, occupational and speech therapy.

In partnership with several community organizations, including the Round Lake Library, Mano a
Mano Family Resource Center, YWCA of Lake County, Avon Cares Food Pantry and the
Northern Illinois Food Bank, Advocate Condell launched the Rx Mobile Pantry Program in
Round Lake in 2019, to provide access to healthy food for Round Lake Area residents who are
food insecure. Vouchers are provided through these organizations and available in English and
Spanish.

Advocate Condell’s Cancer Institute offers complementary and integrative therapies to serve
patients, their families and community members including, navigation, counseling, and support.

Free education for cancer prevention and screening includes the following:

o The Medical Center partners with the Lake County Health Department to provide medical
imaging (radiology) services to uninsured Lake County Health Department patients through
its Illinois breast and cervical cancer program (IBCCP). The IBCCP helps provide financial
assistance for mammograms and diagnostic screenings.

e Educational sessions on skin cancer prevention along with free skin cancer screenings were
provided in both English and Spanish, in collaboration with the YWCA of Lake County in
Gurnee.

Advocate Condell conducts a Community Health Needs Assessment every three years to identify
health needs for low income and underserved communities and help identify programming to
meet those needs with measurable impact. The 2016 CHNA Report identified needs for service
development in clinical areas including, Mental Health and Obesity.

Community partnerships are important and include the following:

e Advocate Condell collaborated with the Lake County Health Department in the Community
Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) completed in 2016. In partnership with the Medical
Center, the Health Department conducted two additional surveys of underserved
communities within the Advocate Condell service area-Waukegan and Wauconda, Illinois.
Results were used for the Mobilizing for Action Through Planning and Partnerships (MAPP)
process, the Health Department Community Health Improvement Plan and were used to
inform the Advocate Condell CHNA.

e Advocate Condell is continuing to work with the Lake County supplemental nutrition
education for women, infants and children (WIC) program through the “Look What We Can
Do Group.” WIC attends the group’s sessions at Advocate Condell and educates the
participants about WIC services to increase WIC enrollment for clients who qualify.
Provided concussion baseline testing to Lake County schools and sports teams.

¢ Developed the new Condell Medical Center Community Health Worker Program, focused on
decreasing low-acuity visits to the emergency department by educating and navigating
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patients to other options for primary care access. This initiative is part of the Lake County
CHW Partnership and is funded by the Healthcare Foundation of Northern Lake County.

Condell routinely provides services to veterans, active duty, active duty family members and
retirees from the Capt. James A. Lovell Federal Health Care Center (FHCC). The patients are
often transferred to Condell due to the lack of capability or capacity restraints of the FHCC.
Condell prides itself on supporting the Veterans Health Administration and Defense Health
Agency (TRICARE) in this respect and would like to continue to be a resource for the FHCC.

Staff from Advocate Condell are active members of the Live Well Lake County Initiative,
focused on improving the overall health of Lake County through strategies outlined in the Lake
County Health Department Improvement Plan (CHIP). In 2017, Advocate Condell staff
participated with the Lake County Health Department to launch a county-wide initiative named
the Together Summit. The summit gathered over 200 leaders from Lake County to collectively
focus on improving the health and quality of life of all Lake County residents. Advocate Condell
continues to work collaboratively with the health department, participating in action teams
addressing obesity and co-chairing the diabetes action team. The focus is to strategically align
with Lake County partners and address health disparities in the community.

In summary, the impact of the Medical Center is far-reaching and is a critical organization
supporting the communities within Lake County. The communities have come to rely on many
of these programs designed to focus on improving access to care, addressing special needs and
improving overall community health in the service area. Advocate Condell and team members
are aware of changes in health care and in the community and have been developing new
partnerships and services to support the health and well-being of all they serve.
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in lllinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 38.

CHARITY CARE |
" Year I Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care {charges)
Cost of Charity Care e

" APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUHERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #38, Exhibit 1.
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2016 2017 2018

Net Patient Revenue $346,565,758 | $355,279,280 $350,747,922

Amount of Charity Care (charges) | $ 28,561,161 | $ 39,917,731 $ 40,941,841

Cost of Charity Care - $ 5,110,190 | § 7,296,203 $ 8,105,829

Source: Hospital records
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Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and its Affiliates

and Subsidiaries

Consclidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
As of and for the Perlod Ended December 31, 2018

AdvocateAuroraHealth
l.ﬂq Advocate Health Care @ Aurora Health Care®

Doaiment Dated as of March 27, 2019
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: +1 312 879 2000
155 North Wackes Drive fax: +1 312 879 4000
Chicago, IL 60606-1787  eycom
a better
working world

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and its Affiliates and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Advocate Aurora Health Care, Inc. and
Its Affiliates and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2018, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the period from
April 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, and the refated notes to the consolidated financiaf statements.

Management’s Responsibllity for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financlal statements in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of Internal contro} refevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financlal statements that
are free of materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibliity

Our responsibllity Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
thiat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected deperid on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financlal statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s Internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

A mambér firm ofErnst & Young Global Limiisd
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Opinion

In our apinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Advocate Aurora Health Care, Inc. and its Affiliates and Subsidiaries at
December 31, 2018, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from
Aprit 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted acoounting principles.

Ganet + MLLP

March 27, 2019

A meambar firmol Ernst & Young Global Limiksd
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC, AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
{dollars in thousands)

December3l,
2018
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents s 584,887
Assets limited as to use 106,244
Patient accounts receivable 1,486,260
Other current assets 512,556
Third-party payors receivables 17,793
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program 18,869
Total current assets 2,726,609
Asset limited as to use:
Internally designated for capital and other 6,941,646
Held for self-insurance 632,372
Donor restricted 119,759
Investments under securitles lending program 18,310
Total assets limited as to use 7,712,087
Property and equipment, net 5,626,475
Other assets:
Intangible assets and goodwill, net 89,329
investments in unconsolidated entities 202,331
Reinsurance receivable 60,741
Other noncurrent assets 315,217
Total other assets 667,618
Total assets s 16,732,789
4
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDAYED BALANCE SHEET
{doltars In thousands)

December 31,
2018
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt S 49,927
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements 162,025
Accounts payable and accrued liabllities 1,671,124
Third-party payors payables 303,633
Current portion of accrued insurance and claim costs 122,361
Collateral under securities lending program 18,869
Total current liabilities 2,327,938
Noncurrent labilities:
Long-term debt, less current portion 2,796,906
Accrued Insurance and claims cost, less current portion 593,296
Accrued losses subject to insurance recovery 60,741
Obligations under swap agreements 65,376
Other nancurrent liabilities 645,554
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,161,873
Total liabilities 6,489,812
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions:
Controlling interest 9,900,718
Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 118,468
Total net assets without donor restrictions 10,019,126
With donor restrictions 223,791
Total net assets 10,242,977
Total liabilities and net assets 5 16,732,789

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
{dollars In thousands}

Nine Months
Ended
December31, 2018
Revenue:
Patient service revenue 5 7,533,468
Capitation revenue 1,035,995
Other revenue 643,943
Total revenue 9,213,406
Expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 4,993,014
Supplies and purchased services 2,233,107
Contract medical services 478,393
Depreciation and amortization 410,790
Interest 81,385
Other 602,668
Total expenses 8,799,357
Operating income before nonrecurring expenses 414,049
Nonrecurring expenses 55,182
Operating income 358,867
Nonoperating loss:
Investment loss, net (258,118)
Loss on debt refinancing {29,859)
Change In fair value of interest rate swaps 993
Other nonoperating income, net 646
Total nonoperating loss, net {286,338)
Excess of revenue over expenses 72,529
Less noncontrolling interest {34,383)
Excess of revenue over expenses — attributable to controlling interest S 38,146
6
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

{dollars in thousands)

Net assets without donor restrictions, controlling Interest
Excess of revenue over expenses — attributable to controlling interest
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension costs
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment
Other, net

Decrease In net assets without donor restrictions, cantrolling Interest

Net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interest
Excess of revenue over expenses
Distributions to noncontrolting interest
Other, net
Increase In net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interest

Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions
Investment loss, net
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment
Other, net
Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions

Decrease in net assets
Net assets at beginning of period
Net assets at end of period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Nine Months
Ended
December 31, 2018

$ 38,146
(86,283)

5,460

(414)

(43,091)

34,383
(20,572)
(81)

13,730

16,614
{2.347)
(17,720)
(5,460)

858

(8,055)

(37,416)
10,280,393

S 10,242,577
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEAITH, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{dollars in thousands)

Nine Months
Ended
December 31, 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Decrease in net assets $ {37,416}
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 404,012
Loss on debt refinancing 29,859
Gatn on sale of property and equipment {3,853)
Change in falr value of swap agreements (933)
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 86,283
Restricted contributions and gains on investments, net
of assets released from restrictions used for operations {11,304)
Distribution to noncontrolling Interest 33,101
Changes In operating assets and liabilitles:
Trading securities, net 343,851
Accounts receivable, net {(15,547)
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities 141,680
Third-party payors receivable and payable, net (14,993)
Other assets and liabllitles, net {79,962)
Net cash praovided by operating activities 875,718
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures {552,933)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7,626
Sales of investments designated as non-trading, net 10,093
Investments in unconsolidated entities, net {3,100)
Other 3,118
Net cash used in investing activities (535,196)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,226,853
Repayrments of long-term debt and othet obligations (1,371,174)
Distribution to noncontrolling interest (33,10)
Proceeds from restricted contributions and gains on investments 9,682
Net cash used in financing activities {167,740)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 176,732
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 408,105
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S 584,887
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
8
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Dollars in thousands)

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business

On April 1, 2018, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., 2 Delaware nonprofit corporation (the Parent Corporation)
became the sole corporate member of Advocate Health Care Network, an Hlinois not-for-profit corparation
(Advocate) and Aurora Health Care, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock not-for-profit corporation {Aurora) {the
Affiliation), The Parent Corporation, Advocate and Aurora and their controlled subsidiaries and affiliates are
collectively referred to herein as the “System.” The System was formed to further the parties’ common and
unifying charitable health care mission to promote and improve the quality and expand the scope and
accessibility of affordable health care and health care-related services for the communities they serve.

The System is comprised of various not-for-prafit and for-profit entities, the primary activities of which are
the delivery of health care services and the provision of goods and services ancillary thereto.

The System provides a continuum of care through its 25 acute care hospitals, an integrated chifdren’s
hospital, psychiatric hospital, primary and specialty physician services, outpatient centers, physician office
buildings, pharmacies, behavioral health care, rehabilitation and home health and hospice care in northern
and central lllinois and eastern Wisconsin.

Principles of Consolidation

Included in the System’s consolidated financial statements are all of its wholly owned or controlled
subsidiaries and affiliates. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation,

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and notes to the consolidated financial statements at the
date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting perfod. Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time
made, actual resutts could differ materially from those estimates.
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Cash Equivalents

The System considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased
to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The System has designated substantially ail of its investments as trading. Investments In debt and equity
securities with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value using quoted market prices or
otherwise observable inputs. Investments in private equity limited partnerships and derivative products
{hedge funds) are reported at fair value using net asset value as a practical expedient. Commingled funds
are carrled at fair value based on other chservable Inputs. Investment income or loss {including realized
gains and losses, interest, dividends and unrealized gains and losses) is included in the nonoperating section
ofthe consolidated statement of operations and chznges In net assets unless the income or lass is restricted
by donor or law or is related to assets designated for self-insurance programs. Investment income on self-
insurance trust funds is reported in other revenue. Investment income that s restricted by donor or law is
reported as a change in net assets with donor restrictions.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limlted as to use consist of Investments set aside by the System for future capital improvements and
certain medical education and other health care programs. The System retains control of these investments
and may, at its discretion, subsequently use them for other purposes. Additionally, assets limited as to use
Include Investments held by trustees or in trust under debt agreements, self-insurance trusts, assets heldin
reinsurance trust accounts and donor-restricted funds.

Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Recelvable

Patlent service revenue Is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care, These amounts are due from patients, third-
party payors (including managed care payors and government programs) and others and includes variable
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and investigations.
Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed within days after the services are performed or shortly
after discharge, Revenue is recognized as performance obtigations are satisfied. Provisions for third-party
payor settlements and adjustments are estimated in the period the related services are provided and
adjusted in future periods as additional information becomes available and final settlements are
determined.

As the System’s performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the System
has applied the optional exemption provided in the guidancé and, therefore, is not required to disclose the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance

10
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obligations referred to above are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of the
reporting pericd. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally completed when the
patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period.

As provided for under the guidance, the System does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from
patients and third-party payers for the effects of a significant financing component due to the expectation
that the period between the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a
third-party payer pays for that service will be one year or less.

The System has entered into payment arrangements with patients that allow for payments over a term in
excess of one year. The System has evaluated historical collections in excess of one year and current market
interest rates to determine whether a significant financing component exists which would require an
adjustment to the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors. The System has
determined that the impact of implicit financing arrangements for payment agreements in excess of one
year s insignificant to the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

The System does not incur significant incremental costs in obtaining contracts with patients. As permiﬁed
in the guidance, any costs which are incurred are expensed in the period of occutrence, as the amortization
period of any asset that the System would have recognized is one year or less in duration,

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is 2 possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, pharmaceuticals and durable medical equipment, are
stated at the lower of cost {first-in, first-out} or market. Retail pharmaceutical inventories are stated at
replacement cost.

Reinsurance Recelvables

Reinsurance receivables are recognized in a manner consistent with the liabilities relating to the underlying
reinsured contracts.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill, Net

Goodwill of $65,862 is included in intangible assets and goodwill, net in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet. Goodwill is not amortized and is evaluated for impairment at teast annually. Intangible assets
with expected useful lives are amortized over that period,

11
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Asset Impalrment

The System considers whether indicators of impairment are present and performs the necessary tests to
determine if the carrying value of an asset is appropriate. lImpairment write-downs are recognized in the
statement of operations and changes in net assets as a component of operating expense at the time the
impairment is identified,

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are reported at cost o, if donated, at fair value at the date of the gift. Costs of
computer software developed or obtained for internal use, including external and internat direct costs of
materlals and labor directly associated with Internal-use software development projects, are capitalized and
included in property and equipment. Internal labor and interest expense incurred during the period of
construction of significant capital projects is capitalized as a component of the costs of the asset.

Property and equipment capitalized under capital leases are recorded at the net present value of future
minimum lease payments and are amortized on the straight-line method over the lessor of the refated lease
term or the estimated useful life of the asset. Amartization of property and equipment under capital leases
is Included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes In net assets in
depreciation and amortization expense.

Property and equipment assets are depreciated on the stralght-line method over a perlod ranging from 3
years to 80 years.

Investments in Unconsolidated Entitles

Investments In unconsolidated entities are accounted for using the cost or equity method. The System
applies the equity method of accounting for investments In unconsolidated entities when its ownership or
membership interest Is 50% or less and the System has the ability to exercise significant Influence over the
operating and financial policies of the investee. All other unconsolidated entities are accounted for using
the cost method. The income {loss) on health-related unconsolidated entities is included in other operating
revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. Nonhealth-
related unconsolidated entities are included within other nonoperating income, net,

Derlvative financlal Instruments

The System has entered into transactions to manage its interest rate, credit and market risks. Derivative
instruments, including exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts and interest rate swaps,
are recorded as elther assets or liabilities at fair value. Subsequent changes in a derivatives fair value are
recognized in nonoperating loss.

12
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Bond Issuance Costs, Discounts and Premnlums

Bond issuance costs, discounts and premiums are amortized over the term of the bonds using the effective
interest method and are included in long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet,

General and Professional Liabllity Risks

The provision for self-insured general and professional liability daims includes estimates of the ultimate
costs for both reported claims and dlaims incurred but not reported. The System measures the cost of its
unfunded ohligations under such programs based upon actuarial calculations and records a liability on a
discounted basis.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are those assets whose use by the System has been limited by donors to
a speific time period or purpose, or consist of gifts with corpus values that have been restricted by donors
to be maintained in perpetuity. Net assets with donor restrictions are used in accordance with the donor’s
wishes primarily to purchase property and equipment, to fund medical education or to fund health
programs,

Assets released from restrictions to fund purchases of property and equipment are reported in the
consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets as increases to net assets without donor
restrictions. Those assets released from restriction for operating purposes are reported in the consolidated
statement of operations and changes In net assets as other revenue. When restricted, earnings are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions until amounts are expended in accordance with the donor's
specifications.

Other Nonoperating Income, Net

Revenues and expenses from delivering health care services and the provision of goods and services
anclllary thereto are reported in operations, Income and losses that arise from transactions that are
periphera! or incidental to the System’s main purpose are included in other nonoperating income, net,
Other nonoperating income, net primarlly consists of impairment charges that are not related to delivering
health care services, fund-raising expenses, contributions to charitable organizations, income taxes and the
net non-service components of the perlodic benefit income on the System's pension plans.

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets includes the excess of revenues over
expenses as the performance indicator. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions, which are
excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, primarlly include contributions of long-lived assets
{including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes
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of acquiring such assets), pension-related changes other than net periodic pension costs and distributions
to noncontrolling interests.

Nonrecurring Expenses

The System has incurred salary, purchased services and other expenses in connection with the Affiliation
and the implementation of an electronic medical records system. As a result, these costs were recorded as
nonrecurring in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update {ASU)
2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Prafit Entities. The guidance requires net assets to
be categorized either as net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions rather
than the previous three classes of net assets. The guidance also requires additional quantitative and
guazlitative disclosures refated to liquidity and financial performance, as well as disclosure of expenses by
their natural and functional classifications. The System adopted this guidance for annual reporting as of
December 31, 2018.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In August 2018, the FASB Issued ASU 2018-15, Intongibles-Goodwill and Other-internal-Use Software
(Subtopic 35040} Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing
Arrangement That Is a Contract. This guidance requires an entity In a hosting arrangement that is a service
contract to follow the guidance in Subtopic 350-40 to determine which implementation costs to capitalize
as an asset and which costs to expense as Incurred. Also, this guidance requires the entity to expense the
capitalized implementation costs of a hosting arrangement that is a service contract over the term of the
hosting arrangement. Further, the guidance requires the entity to present the expense related to the
capitalized implementation costs in the same line item In the consolidated statement of operations and
changes in net assets as the fees associated with the hosting element {service) of the arrangement and
classify payments for capitalized Implementation costs in the consolidated statement of cash flows in the
same manner 3s payments made for fees associated with the hosting elernent. The entity Is also required
to present the capitalized implementation costs in the consolidated balance sheet in the same line item that
a prepayment for the fees of the associated hosting arrangement would be presented. This guidance is
effective for the fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2020, early adoption is permitted, The System early adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2019, on a
prospective basls.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Mode, This guidance clarifies whether a transfer of assets is a
contribution or an exchange transaction and further clarifies how an entity determines whether a resource
provider is participating in an exchange transaction by evaluating whether the resource provider is receiving
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commensurate value in return for the resources transferred. This standard was effective for the System
beginning January 1, 2019, on a modified prospective basis. This guidance did not have a material impact
on the Systam’s consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets,

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Restricted Cash. This guidance will require restricted cash
and restricted cash equivalents to be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the
beginning of period and end of period total amounts shown on the consolidated statement of cash flows.
This guidance is effective for the fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, The System adopted this standard effective January 1, 2019, This guidance did not have
a material impact on the System’s consolidated statement of cash flows.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Réceipts and Cash Payments,
which amends guldance in Accounting Standards Codification {ASC} 230 on the classification of certain cash
recelpts and payments In the statement of cash flows. This standard is effective for the System beginning
January 1, 2019, This guidance did not have a material impact on the System’s consolidated statement of
cash flows, with the primary change being the movement of certaln distributions from equity method
investees from cash used in investing activities to cash flows from operations.

In February 2016, the FASBissued ASU 2016-02, Leases. This guidance introduces a lessee model that brings
most leases on to the balance sheet, The standard aiso aligns certain of the underlying principles of the new
lessor model with those in ASU 2014-09, the new revenue recognition standard, This standard was effective
for the System effective January 1, 2019, and was adopted using a modified retrospective approach,
The System recorded a right of use asset and right of use fiability of approximately $425,000 due to the
adcption of this standard. This guldance did not have a material Impact on the System’s consolidated
statement of operations and changes in net assets.

3, COMMUNITY BENEAT
Community Benefit

The System provides health care services without charge to patients who meet thecriteria of its charity care
policies. Charlty care services are not reported as patient service revenue because payment is not
anticipated while the related costs to provide the health care are included in operating expenses. Charity
care Is provided to patients who meet the criteria established under the applicable financial assistance
policy. Qualifylng patients can receive up to 100% discounts from charges and extended payments plans.
The System’s cost of providing charity care for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, as determined
using total cost to charge ratios, was $101,192,

In addition to the provision of charity care, the System provides significant financial support to its
communities to sustain and improve health care services.
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These activities include:
¢ The unreimbursed cost of providing care to patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

s The cost of providing services, which are not self-sustaining, for which patient service revenues are less
than the costs required to provide the services. Such services benefit uninsured and low-income
patients, as well as the broader community, but are not expected to be financially self-supporting,

o  Other community benefits include the unrelmbursed costs of community benefits programs and
services for the general community, not solely for those demonstrating financial need, including the
unreimbursed cost of medical education, health education, immunizations for children, support groups,
heaith screenings and fairs,

4. REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES
Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patlent care. These amounts are due from patients, third-
party payors {including managed care payors and government programs} and others and include variable
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and investigations.
Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed shortly after discharge. Revenue Is recognized as
performance obligations are satisfied,

Performance obligations are Identified based on the nature of the services provided. Revenue associated
with performance obligations satisfied over time Is recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation
to total expected (or actual) charges. Performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients receiving
inpatient acute care services. The System measures the performance obligation from admission into the
hosplital to the point when there are no further services required for the patient, which is generally the time
of discharge. For outpatient services, the performance obligation is satisfied as the patient simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided as the services are performed. In the case of these outpatient
services, recognition of the obligation over time yields the same result as recognizing the obligation at a
point in time. Management believes this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services
over the term of performance obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligations.

The System uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective group
rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios consist of major payor classes
for inpatient revenue and major payor classes and types of services provided for outpatient revenue, Based
on the historical collection trends and other analysis, the System believes that revenue recognized by
utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized if an individual
contract approach were used,
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The System determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and judgment, based on
standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit and implicit price concessions,
including contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured and
underinsured patients in accordance with policy and/or implicit price concessions based on the historical
collection experience of patient accounts. The System determines the transaction price assoclated with
services provided to patients who have third-party payor coverage based on reimbursement terms per
contractual agreements, discount policies and historical experience. For uninsured (and underinsured in the
case of Advocate) patients who do not qualify for charity care, the System determines the transaction price
associated with services on the basis of charges reduced by implicit price concessions. Implicit price
concessions included in the estimate of the transaction price are based on historical collection experience
for applicable patient portfolios. Patients who meet the System’s criteria for free care "charity” are provided
care without charge; such amounts are not reported as revenue. Subsequent changes to the estimate of
the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue In the period of the
change. Settlements with third-party payors for retrocactive adjustments due to audits, reviews or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the estimated
transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely outcome method. These settlements are
estimated based on the terms of the payment agreements with the payor, correspondence from the payor
and historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty assoclated
with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted In future
periods as new Information becomes avallable or as years are settied or are no fonger subject to such audits,
reviews and investigations.

For the nine months ended December 31, 2018, changes in the System’s estimates of implicit price
concessions, discounts and contractual adjustments or other reductions to expected payments for
performance obligations in prior years were not significant,

In certain Instances, the System does receive payment in advance of the services provided and would
consider thése amounts to répresent contract liabilities. Contract liabilities at December 31, 2018 were not
significant.

Currently, the state of llinois utilizes supplemental reimbursement programs to supplement reimbursement
to providers to offset a portion of the cost of providing care to Medicaid and Indigent patients. These
programs are designed with input from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services and are funded
with a combination of state and federal resources, including assessments levied on the providers, Under
these supplemental programs, the System recognizes revenue and related expenses in the period in which
amounts are estimable and collection is reasonably assured. Reimbursement under these programs is
reflected in patient service revenue and the assessment Is reflected in other expense in the consolidated
statement of operations and changes in net assets. For the nine months ended December 31, 2018, patient
seyvice revenue includes 5197,614 related to this program and expenses include $124,898 of tax assessment
fees.

17

CON - Construction & Medernization Appendix 1
Pagel83 — e dix 1




#20-004

CON - Construction & Modernization i 3 - Appendix 1

Page184 —



#20-004

The state of Wisconsin assesses a fee or tax on patient service revenue. The revenues from this assessment
are used to increase payments made to hospitals for services provided to Medicaid and other medically
indigent patients. The System's patient service revenue reflects this increase in payment for services to
Medicaid and other medically indigent patients and hospital tax assessment expense reflects the fees
assessed by the state. For the nine months ended December 31, 2018, patient service revenue includes
$79,600, related to this program, and other expenses include $73,800 of tax assessment fees.

The System has filed formal appeals relating to the settlement of certain prior-year Medicare cost reports.
The outcome of these appeals cannot be determined at this time.

Management has determined that the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
are affected by the payors geographical location, the line of business that renders services to patients and
the timing of when revenue is recognized and billed. The composition of patient service revenue by payor
for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, Is as follows:

Managed care 5 4,232,627 56%
Medicare 2,269,578 30
Medicald — Wisconsin 299,951 4
Medicaid ~ lllinols 529,780 7
Self-pay and other 201,532 3

$ 7,533,468 100%

Deductibles, copayments and coinsurance under third-party payment programs which are the patient's
responsibility are included within the primary payor category in the table above.

The composition of patient service revenue by service line and state for the nine months ended
December 31, 2018, Is as follows:

Patient
Service  Percentof
Wisconsin lllinols Revenue Total

Hospital S 2,673,106 S 2927812 $ 5,606918 75%
Clinic 1,235,242 433,896 1,669,138 22
Home Health 88,529 79,310 167,839 2
Other 22 898 66,675 89,573 1
Total S 4025775 $ 3.507.693 $7533468 ____ 100%

Capitation Revenue

The System has agreements with various managed care organizations under which the System provides or
arranges for medical care to members of the organizations in return for a monthty payment per member,
Revenue is earned each month as a result of agreeing to provide or arrange for their medical care.

Substantially all of the System’s capitation revenue is generated in lllinois.
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Other Revenue

Other revenue Is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the System expects to
be entitled in exchange for providing goods and services, The amounts recognized reflect consideration due
from customers, third-party payors and others. Primary categories of other revenue include income from
joint ventures, retail pharmacy revenue, grant revenue, cafeteria revenue, rent revenue and other
miscellaneous revenue,

Patient Accounts Recelvable

The System’s patient accounts receivable is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
it expects to be entitled, in exchange for providing patient care.

The revenues related to patient accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value based on certain
assumptions. For third-party payors including Medicare, Medicaid and Managed Care, the net realizable
value ks based on the estimated contractual reimbursement percentage, which is based on current contract
prices or historical paid claims data by payor. For self-pay, the net realizable value is determined using
estimates of historical collection experience including an analysis by aging category. These estimates are
adjusted for expected recoverles and any anticipated changes in trends including significant changes in
payor mix, shared revenue cycle operations, economic conditions or trends in federal and state
governmental health care coverage.

The composition of patient accounts recelvable is summarized as follows:

Aprl 1,
December 31, 2018 2018
Managed care [ 627,409 42% S 607,349 41%
Medicare 285,837 15 261,674 18
Medicaid - Wisconsin 39958 3 45,394 3
Medicald — lllinois 229,139 15 223,888 15
Self-pay and other 303917 21 332,408 23

S 1,486,260 100% 5 1,470,743 100%

The self-pay patient accounts receivable above includes amounts due from patients for co-insurance,
deductibles, installment payment plans and amounts due from patients without insurance.

5. POOLED INVESTMENT FUND

In September 2018, a pooled Investment fund (pool) was created. The pool investments are owned by
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation {AHHC), a Systemn subsidiary. Each participant in the pool is an
affiliate of AHHC, Per the Investment Agreement, each participant in the poo! has rio ownership interest in
the poo!’s investment assets, The participant receives a commensurate value in units of the pool which is

19

CON - Construction & Modernization Appendix 1

Page 186 ~ =



#20-004

adjusted each month to the current market value. If redemption is sought under the terms of the
agreement, the participant is only entitled to receive the fair market value of its units in cash.

At December 31, 2018, the total value of the pool investments is $7,483,361. The poolinvests In a diversified
portfolio of investments, including alternative investments, such as real asset funds, hedge funds and
private equity limited partnerships, Collectively, these funds have liquidity terms ranging from daily to
annual with notice periods typically ranging from 1 to 90 days. Due to redemption restrictions, investments
in certain of these funds, whose fair value was approximately $3,685,071 at December 31, 2018, cannot
currently be redeemed for periods ranging from one to eleven years, However, the potential for the pool to
sell its Interest in these funds in a secondary market prior to the end of the fund term does exist, for prices
ator other than the then carrying value,

At December 31, 2018, the System had additional commitments to fund alternative investments, Including
recallable distributions of $1,043,005 over the next seven years.

in the normal course of operations and within established Iinvestment policy guidelines, the System may
enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading purposes,
Including futures, options and forward contracts. These Instruments are used primatily to maintain the
System’s strategic asset allocation. These instruments require the System to deposit cash collateral with the
broker or custodian. At December 31, 2018, the collateral provided was $44,560. At December 31, 2018,
the notional value of the derivatives In long positions was $190,305 and those in a short position was
$(129,391).

By using derlvative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market eisk. Credit risk
is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value
of a derivative contract Is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the
System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty, and
therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in derivative instruments by
entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post collateral for the benefit of the System
based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the falr value of the derivative contract. Market risk is
the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in the underlying
reference security. The market risk associated with market changes is managed by establishing and
monitoting parameters that limit the types and degree of market rick that may be undertaken.

Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented with other current assets and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, Unsettled sales resulted In receivables due from brokers of $37,699
at December 31, 2018. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables of $13,494 at December 31, 2018,

20

CON - Construction & Modernization Appendix 1
T Page 187 o




#20-004

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS {including assets limited as to use)

Investments (including assets limited as to use) and other financial instruments at December 31, 2018, are
summarized as follows:

Assets limited as to use:

Internally designated for capital and other $ 6,941,646
Held for self-insurance 738,616
Donor restricted 115,759
Investments under securities lending program 18,310

7,818,331

Other financtal instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents 584,887

S 8403218

The composition and carrying value of assets limited as to use, investments and cash and cash equivalents
at December 31, 2018, are set forth in the following table:

Cash and short-term investments S 807549
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 577,406
United states governmental obligations 609,160
Non-governmental fixed-Income obligations 26,328
Bond and other debt security funds 578,088
Hedge funds 2,593,506
Private equity limited partnerships 1,113,544
Equity securities 1,164,533
Equity funds 933,104

S 8403218

Investment returns for assets limited as to use and cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following
for the nine months ended December 31, 2018:

Interest income and dividends S 55,944

Income from alternative investments 19,556

Net realized gains 156,757

Net unrealized losses {474,189)

Total 5 (241932)
21
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Investment returns are included in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets as
follows for the nine months ended December 31, 2018:

Other revenue S 18,533
Investment loss, net (258,118)
Net assets with donor restrictions (2,347}
Total S (241,932)

As part of the management of the investment portfolio, the System has entered into an arrangement
whereby securities owned by the System are loaned primarily to brokers and investment banks. The loans
are arranged through a bank, Borrowers are required to post collateral for securities borrowed equal to no
less than 102% of the value of the security on a daily basis, at a minimum. The bank Is responsible for
reviewing the creditworthiness of the borrowers, The System has also entered into an arrangement
whereby the bank is responsible for the risk of borrower bankruptey and default. At December 31, 2018,
the System loaned $18,310 in securities and accepted ¢ollateral for these loans in the amount $18,859,
which represents cash and governmental securities and are included in current liabilities and current assets,
respectively, In the accompanylng consofidated balance sheet.

7. FAIRVALUE

The System accounts for certain assets and liabilitles at fair value and categorizes assets and liabllities
measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements based upon whether the inputs used to
determine thelr falr values are observable or unchservable, Observable inputs are inputs which are based
on market data obtalned from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs
that reflect the reporting entity’s. own assumptions about pricing the asset or Hability, based on the best
informatlon available under the circumstances.

The fair value of all assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value Is dassified based on the lowest
level of significant inputs. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are disclosed and classified
in one of three categorles, Category Inputs are defined as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities on the reporting
date,

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or
fiability, either directly or indirectly. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual] term, a Level 2 input
must be observable for substantially the fuli term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability for which there is little or no market data.
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The followingsection describes the valuation methodologies used by the System to measure financial assets
and liabilities at fair value. In general, where applicable, the System uses quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities to determine fair value, This pricing methodology applies to Level 1
investments such as domestic and international equities, exchange-traded funds and agency securities.

If quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are not available to determine fair value,
then quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities or inputs other than quated prices that are observable
either directly or indirectly are used. These investments are included in Level 2 and consist primarily of
corporate notes and bonds, foreign government bonds, mortgage-backed securities, fixed-income
securities, including fixed-income government obligations, commercial paper and certain agency, United
States and international equities, which are not traded on an active exchange. The falr value for the
obligations under swap agreements included In Level 2 Is estimated using Industry standard valuation
models, These models project future cash flows and discount the future amounts to a present value using
market-based observable Inputs, Including interest rate curves. The fair values of the obligation under swap
agreements Include adjustments related to the System’s credit risk.

investments owned by the System are exposed to varlous kinds and levels of risk. Equity securities and
equity funds expose the entity to market risk, performance risk and Liquidity risk for both domestic and
International investments. Market risk is the risk assoclated with major movements of the equity markets.
Performance risk is that risk assoclated with a company’s operating performance, Fixed-income securities
and fixed-income mutual funds expose the System to interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. As
interest rates change, the value of many fixed-Income securities is affected, including those with fixed
interest rates, Credit risk Is the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its obligations. Liquidity risk
is affected by the willingness of market participants to buy and sell particular securities, Liquidity risk tends
to be higher for equities related to small capitalization companies and certain alternative investments. Due
to the volatility in the capital markets, there is a reasonable possibility of subsequent changes in fair value
resulting in additional gains and losses in the near term.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, other current assets and
accrued liabllities are reasonable estimates of their fair values due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments.
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The fair values of financial assets and labilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at

December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Assets

Investments

Cash and short-term investments
Corporate bonds and other debt securities
United States government obligations
Bond and other debt security funds
Non-government fixed-Income obligations
Equity securities

Equity funds

Investments at net asset value
Hedge funds
Private equity limited partnerships

Total investments

Collateral proceeds recelved under
securities lending program

Liabifitles
Obligations under swap agreements

Obligations to return capital under
securities lending program

CON - Construction & Modernization
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Quoted Prices
in Active Other
Markets for  Significant  Significant
Identical Ohservable Unobservable
December Assets Inpurts Inputs
31,2018 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
L3 807549 $ 430,889 S 376,660 $ =
577,406 —_— 577,406 —
609,160 — 609,160 -
578,088 102,552 475,536 -
26,328 - 26,328 —
1,164,533 1,164,533 — -
933,104 185,247 747,857 —
4,696,168 5 1883,221 5 2,812,947 —
2,593,506
1,113,544
$ 8403218
$ 18869 S 18869
S !65,375! S !65,376]
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8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The components of property and equipment at December 31, 2018, are summarized as follows:

land and improvements S 473862
Buildings and fixed equipment : 7,102,622
Movable equipment and computer software 2,956,722
Construction-in-progress 306,531
Total preperty and equipment 10,839,737
Accumulated depreclation and amortization (5,213,262}
Property and equipment, net $ 5626475

Property and equipment include net assets under capitalized leases and other financing arrangements
totaling $157,452 (gross of $232,971, accumulated amortization of §75,519) at December 31, 2018,

For the nine months ending December 31, 2018, depreclation expense was $409,950.
9, INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOUDATED ENTITIES

The System has a 49% interest in Bay Area Medical Center (BAMC), a 99-bed general acute care hospital
located in Marinette, Wisconsin. The System’s investment in BAMC is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting and Is presented within investments in unconsolidated entities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. The System’s investment In BAMC at December 31, 2018, was $26,547. In
January 2019, the System entered into an agreement to acquire the remaining 51% interest in BAMC, See
additional discussion of thls transaction In Note 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS,

The System has a 27% interest in Aurora Bay Area Medical Group (ABAMG]), which provides inpatient,
outpatient and other necessary professional medicat services in Marinette, Wisconsin and its surrounding
communities. BAMC owns the remaining 73% of ABAMG. The System’s investment in ABAMG is accounted
for under the equity method and is presented within investments in unconsolidated entities in the
accompanyling consolidated balance sheet. The System leases employees and buildings to ABAMG and
recognized $12,888 of other revenue for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, under these leasing
agreements. The System made additional capital contributions to ABAMG of $4,361 during the nine months
ended December 31, 2018, The System's investment in ABAMG was $703 at December 31, 2018,

In connection with the acquisition of a medical center, the System acquired an interest in the net assets of
the Masonic Family Health Foundation (MFHF), an independent organization, under the terms of an asset
purchase agreement (the Agreement). The use of substantially all MFHF's net assets are designated to
support the operations and/or capital needs of one of the System’s medical facilities. Additionally, 30% of
MFHF’s investment yield, net of expenses, on substantially all MFHF’s investments is designated for the
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support of one of the System’s medical facilities. MFHF must pay the System, annually, 90% of the
investment yield or an agreed-upon percentage of the beginning of the year net assets,

The interest in the netassets of MFHF amounted to $81,865 at December 31, 2018, and Is presented within
investments in unconsclidated entities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The System’s
interest in the investment income is reflected In the consolidated statement of operations and changes in
net assets and amounted to $(4,270) for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, There were no cash
distributions received by the System from MFHF under terms of the Agreement during the nine months
ended December 31, 2018. In addition, MFHF made 5354 In contributions to the System for program
support during the nine months ended December 31, 2018,

At December 31, 2018, the System had a 49.5% ownership interest in RML Health Providers, L.P. (RML) that
is accounted for on an equity basis. RMLis an lllinois, not-for-profit limited partnership that operates a 115-
bed licensed long-term acute care hospital In Hinsdale, lllinois, and 86-bed licensed long-term acute care
hospital in Chicago, lilinois. The System’s Investment in RML was 533,883 at December 31, 2018, and is
presented within Investments In unconsolidated entities in the accompanylng consolidated balance sheet.

RML leases the Chicago, lllinols, facility from the System. The lease has a fixed term through June 30, 2020,
with a five-year renewal term remaining executable at the option of RML. The System recorded rental
income of $847 for the nine months ended December 31, 2018.

The summarized financial position and results of operations for significant entities accounted for under the
equity method as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2018, is as folfows:

BAMC ABAMG RML MFHF
Total assets S 232239 § 4898 5 125,087 § 85,533
Total liabilities 106,444 2,294 56,994 3,440
Equity 125,795 2,604 68,093 82,093
Total revenue 80,715 17,091 83,208 (3,075)
Net income {loss) 13,478 (14,942) 11,400 (5,265)

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt, net of unamortized original issue discount or premium and unamortized deferred bond
issuance costs, consisted of the following at December 31, 2018:

Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds:

Series 2003A (weighted average rate of 1,38% during the nine-month period ended
December 31, 2018}, principai payable in varying annual installments through
November 2022; interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing $ 10,153
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Series 2003C (weighted average rate of 1.60% during the nine-month period ended
December 31, 2018}, principal payable In varying annual instaliments through
November 2022; interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing 10,169

Series 2008A (weighted average rate of 5.00% during the nine-month pericd ended
December 31, 2018), principal payable in varying annual installments through
Novernber 2030; interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing 123,078

Serles 2008C (weighted average rate of 1,43% during the nine-month period ended
December 31, 2018), principal payable in varying annual installments through

Noverber 2038; interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing 320,718
Series 2010D, 5.00%, principal payable in annual installments through April 2019 15,014
Series 2011A, 4,00% to 5.00%, principal payable in annual installments through April

2041 32,378

Serles 2011B {weighted average rate of 1.78% during the nine-month period ended

December 31, 201B), principal payable in varying annual installments through April

2051, subject to a put provision that provides for a cumulative seven-month notice and

remarketing period; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 69,274

Serlies 2011C (weighted average rate of 2.31% during the nine-manth period ended

December 31, 2018), principal payable in varying annual installments through April

2049, subject to a put provision on September 3, 2024; interest tied to a market index

plus a spread 49,722

Series 2011D {weighted average rate of 2.31% during the nine-month period ended

December 31, 2018}, principal payable In varying annual installments through April
2049, subject to a put provision on September 3, 2024; interest tied to a market Index

plus a spread 49,722
Series 2012, 4,00% to 5.00%, princlpal payable In varying annual installments through

June 2047 147,826
Series 2013A, 5.00%, principal payable In varying annual installments through June

2031 93,356
Series 2014, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through

August 2038 330,682
Series 2015, 4.13% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through

May 2045 102,705
Serles 20158, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual instaliments through

May 2044 72,428
Series 2018A, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through

August 2044 106,345

Series 2018B {weighted average rate of 5.00% during the period August 16, 2018
thraugh December 31, 2018), principal payable in varying annual installments through
August 2054; interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing 211,196
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Series 2018C (weighted average rate of 2,09% during the period August 16,2018
through December 31, 2018}, principal payable in varying annual installments through

August 2054; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 198,182
1,942,948
Taxable bonds:
Taxable Bond Seties 2018, 3.83% to 4.27%, principal payable in varying annual
Installments through August 2048 709,392
709,392
Capital lease obligations and financing arrangements 241,677

Taxable Term Loan, {weighted average rate of 2.61% during the nine-month period ended
December 31, 2018}, principal payable in varying annual installments through September

2024 114,841
3,008,858

Less amounts classified as current:
Current portion of fong-term debt {49,927)
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrange ments (162,025)
(211,952)
S 2,796,906

Maturities of long-term debt, capital leases, and sinking fund requirements, assuming remarketing of the
variable rate demand revenue refunding bands, for the five years ending December 31, 2023, are as follows:
2019--$49,927; 2020 —5$53,631; 2021 — $53,333; 2022 — $56,603; and 2023 — $58,164,

The System’s outstanding bonds are secured by obligations issued under the Second Amended and Restated
Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018, as the same may be amended from time to time,
between Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., the other affiliates identified therein as the Members of the
Obligated Group and U.S. Bank National Assaciation, as master trustee (the System Master Indenture].
Under the terms of the bond indentures and other arrangements, various amounts are to be on deposit
with trustees, and certaln specified payments are required for bond redemption and interest payments. The
System Master Indenture and other debt agreements, including a bank credit agreement, also place
restrictions on the System and require the System to malntain certain financial ratios.

The System’s unsecured variable rate revenue bonds, Series 2008A-3 of $42,795 and Series 2011B of
$70,000, while subject to a long-term amortization period, may be put to the System at the option of the
bondholders in connection with certain remarketing dates. To the extent that bondholders may, under the
terms of the debt, put their bonds within 12 months after December 31, 2018, the principal amount of such
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bonds has been classified as a current obligation in the accompanying consclidated balance sheet.
Management believes the likelihood of a material amount of bonds being put to the System Is remote.
However, to address this possibility, the System has taken steps to provide various sources of liquidity,
including assessing alternate sources of financing, including lines of credit and/or net assets without donor
restrictions as a source of self-liquidity.

The System has standby bond purchase agreements with banks to provide liquidity support for substantially
all of the Series 2008C Bonds. In the event of a failed remarketing of the supported Series 2008C Bond upon
its tender by an existing holder and subject to compliance with the terms of the standby bond purchase
agreement, the standby bank would provide the funds for the purchase of such tendered bonds, and the
System would be obligated to repay the bank for the funds it provided for such bond purchase (if such bond
Is not subsequently remarketed), with the first instaliment of such repayment commencing on the date one
year and one day after the bank purchases the bond. As of December 31, 2018, there were no bank-
purchased bonds outstanding. To the extent that the standby bond purchase agreement expiration date is
within 12 months after December 31, 2018, the princlpal amount of such bonds has been classified as a
current cbligation in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The standby bond purchase
agreements expire as follows: $49,829 in August 2019; $129,456 in August 2020; and $145,919 in August
2021,

In August 2018, the Wisconsin Health and Educational Facilities Authority (WHEFA), for the benefit of the
System, issued its Revenue Bonds, Series 2018ABC, in the amount of $487,895 and the System issued
Taxable Bonds, Series 2018 in the amount of $714,500. The proceeds of the Series 2018ABC Bonds and the
Serles 2018 Taxable Bonds were used to refund certain WHEFA Bonds previously issued for the benefit of
Aurora, refinance Aurora’s taxable bonds, the drawn portion of an Aurora line of credit and to pay certain
financing costs. In connection with this transaction, the System recognized a loss on refinancing in the
amount of $29,859.

The System maintains an interest rate swap program on certain of its variable rate debt as described in Note
11. INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM.

The System's interest paid, net of capitalized interest, amounted to $80,559 for the nine months ended
December 31, 2018, The System capltalized interest of $1,207 for the nine months ended December 31,
2018,

At December 31, 2018, the System had lines of credit with banks aggregating to $585,000. These lines of
credit provide for various interest rates and payment terms and expire as follows: $100,000 in December
2019, $275,000 in August 2020, $50,000 In September 2020 and $160,000 in August 2021, These lines of
credit may be used to redeem bonded indebtedness, to pay costs related to such redemptions, for capital
expenditures or for general working capital purposes, At December 31, 2018, under a line of credit there
were three letters of credit issued totaling $40,947, At December 31, 2018, no amounts were outstanding
on these lines or letters of credit.
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11, INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM

The System has interest rate-related derivative instruments to manage exposure of its variable rate debt
instruments. By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest rates, the
System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform
under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract Is positive, the
counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the System. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The
System minimizes the credit risk in derivative Instruments by entering Into transactions that may require
the counterparty to post colfateral for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the
counterparty and the fair vafue of the derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of
a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated with Interest
rate changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of
market risk that may be undertaken, The System also mitigates risk through periadic reviews of its derivative
positions in the context of its total blended cost of capital.

At December 31, 2018, the System maintains an Interest rate swap program on its Series 2008C variable
rate demand revenue bonds, These bonds expose the Systern to variability in Interest payments due to
changes in interest rates. The System believes that It is prudent to limit the varlability of its interest
payments. To meet this objective and to take advantage of low Interest rates, the System entered into
varlous Interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from Interest rate risk.
These swaps conivert the varlable rate cash flow exposure on the varlable rate demand revenue bonds to
synthetically fixed cash flows. The notional amount under each interest rate swap agreement is reduced
over the term of the respective agreement to correspond with reductions in the principal outstanding under
varlous bond series. The following is a summary of the outstanding positions under these Interest rate swap

agreements at December 31, 2018:
Bond Serles Notional Amount Maturity Date Rate Received Rate Pald
2008C-1 S 129,900 November1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26 bps 3.605%
2008C-2 108,425 November1,2038  61.7%of LIBOR + 26 bps 3.605%
2008C-32 83,000 Novemberl, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 25 bps 3.605%

The swaps are not designated as hedging instruments, and therefore, hedge accounting has not been
applied. As such, unrealized changes in fair value of the swaps are classified as changes in fair value of
interest rate swaps in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. The net cash
settlement payments, representing the realized changes in fair value of the swaps, are included as interest
expense in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of $65,376 and no collateral was posted
under these swap agreements at December 31, 2018.
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Amounts recorded in the consalidated statement of aperations and changes in net assets for the swap
agreements for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Net cash payments on interest rate swap agreements (Interest expense} S 4,850
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps S 993

The interest rate swap instruments contain provisions that require the System to maintain an investment
grade credit rating on its tax-exempt bonds from certain major credit rating agencies. If the System’s tax-
exempt bonds were to fall below investment grade on the valuation date, it would be in violation of these
provisions and the counterparty to the derivative instruments could requestimmediate payment or demand
immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability positions.

12. RETIREMENT PLANS

The System maintains various employee retirement benefit plans avaifable to qualifying employees and
retirees,

Advocate maintalns defined benefit pension plans that cover substantially all its employees. The
consolidated balance sheet contains an other noncurrent liability related to the Advocate Health Care
Network Pension Plan (Advocate Plan) totaling $45,570 at December 31, 2018. In addition, the consolidated
balance sheet contains an other noncurrent assat related to the Condell Health Network Retirement Plan
{Condel Plan) of $1,424 at December 31, 2018. The Condell Plan was frozen effective January 1, 2008, to
new participants and participants ceased to accrue additional pension benefits. During the nine months
ended December 31, 2018, no contributions were made to the Advocate or Condell Plans.

The consolidated balance sheet contains an other noncurrent liability related to the Aurora defined benefit
pension plan {Aurora Plan) of $104,979 at December 31, 2018, The Aurora Plan covers substantially all of
its employees, hired before January 1, 2013, with at least 1,000 hours of work in a calendar year. The Aurora
Plan was frozen on December 31, 2012, During the nine months ended December 31, 2018, cash
contributions of $22,200 were made to the Aurora Plan.

il

CON - Construction & Modernization ) . Appendix 1
— Page 198 =3




#20-004

A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status of
the plans for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, is as follows:

Advocate Condell Aurara Tatal
Change In plan assets:

Plan assets at falr value at beginning of period $1008843 § 66,731 51,511,225 $ 2,586,799
Actual return on plan assets (23,256) {3,956) (119,447) (146,659)
Employer contributions = = 22,200 22,200
Benefits paid (56,222) (4,545) {86,612) (147,379)

Plan assets at fair value at end of period S 929365 5 58,230 51,327,366 § 2,314,961

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit abligation at beginning of perfod $ 960,935 § 70,993 $ 1622605 $ 2,654,533
Service cost 41,279 — — 41,279
Interest cost 26,332 1,877 45,375 73,584
Actuarlal loss {gain) 2611 {11,520) (149,023) (157,932)
Beneflts pald {56,222) {4544}  (86,612) (147,378)

Projected benefit obligation at end of perfod $ 974935 5 56806 $ 1,432,345 $ 2,464,086

Plan assets {less) greater than projacted benefitobligation $ {45,570) § 1,424 5 (104,979) § (149,125)

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period $ 907526 § 56,806 § 1,432,345 $ 2,396,677

The Condell Plan paid lump sums totaling $3,854 in 2018, The amount in 2018 was greater than the sum of
the Condeli Plan’s service cost and interest cost resulting in a settlement charge In the amount of $787.

Pension plan expense {income) included in the consofidated statement of operations and changes in net
assets is as follows for the nine months ended December 31, 2018:

Advocate  Condell Aurora Total

Service cost S 41,279 S - 3 — S5 4279
Interest cost 26,332 1877 45,375 73,584
Expected return on plan assets {49,884) (2,124) (57426) (109,434)
Amortization of:

Actuarial loss 3,974 1,259 8,816 14,049

Prior service cost {2,987) - 2 {2,985}
Settlement/curtailment — 787 —_ 787
Net pension expense {income) $ 18714 $ 1,799 § (3,233} S 17,280

The components of net periodic benefit costs other than the service cost component are included in other
nonoperating income, net in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets,
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The net change recognized In net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows:

Advocate  Condell Aurora Total
Net change recognized S 74763 $ (7486)S 19,033 5 86,310

Included in net assets without donor restrictions at December 31, 2018, are the following amounts that
have not yet baen recognized in net pension expense:

Advocate  Condell Aurora Total
Unrecognized prior credit S (143) 5 -5 105 § (38)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 198,918 11,609 460,317 670,844

$ 198,775 5 11,609 $ 460422 S 670,806

The expected amortization amount to be included in the net pericdic pension cost in 2019 Is as foliows:

Advocate Condell . Aurora Total
Net actuarlat [oss $ 7268 % 108 § 7631 $ 15007
Prior service (credit) cost (143) — 3 (140)

$ 715 S 108 § 7634 5 14,867

Expected employee benefit payments are as follows:

_Advocate _Copndell _ Aurora __ Total

2019 $ 79786 $ 6739 $ 62,238 $ 148,763
2020 66,794 4310 66,384 137,488
2021 71,046 4087 70097 145230
2022 75,632 3,865 73191 152,688
2023 75,410 4982 76022 156,414
2024-2028 409915 18761 413823 842499
Total S 778583 S 42744 $ 761755 $1,583082

Expected contributions to the pension plans employee benefit payments are as follows:

Advocate Condell Aurora Total
2019 S 42400 S — 5 57200 99,600

Employer contributions were pald from employer assets. No plan assets are expected to be returned to the
employer. All benefits paid under the plans were paid from the plans’ assets.

The System’s asset allocation and investment strategies are designed to earn returns on plan assets
consistent with a reasonable and prudent leve! of risk, Investments are diversified across classes, economic
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sectors and manager style to minimize the risk of loss. The System utilizes investment managers specializing
in each asset category and, where appropriate, provides the Investment manager with specific guidelines
that Include allowable and/or prohibited investment types. The System regularly monitors manager
performance and eompliance with investment guidelines.

The System’s target and actual pension asset allocations for the plans at December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Asset Category — Advocate Plan Target Actual
Domestic and international equity securities 35% 34%
Alternative investments 45 46
Cash and fixed-income securities 20 20
100% 100%
Asset Category ~ Condell Plan Target Actual
Domestic and international equity securitles 15% 15%
Cash and fixed-income securities 85 85
100% 100%
Asset Category — Aurora Plan Target Actual
Domestic and International equity securities 33% 33%
Real estate 3 3
Cash and fixed-Income securities 64 64
100% 100%

CON - Construction & Modernization

At December 31, 2018, the Advocate Plan had commitments to fund private equity limited partnerships,
Including recallable distributions of $107,305 over the next six years.

In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the Advocate Plan
may enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading purposes,
including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to maintain the
Advocate Plan’s strategic asset allocation. These instruments require the Advocate Plan to deposit cash
collateral with the broker or custodian,

At December 31, 2018, the collateral provided was as follows:

Advocate Aurora Total
Collateral provided $ 6239 5§ 10357 $ 16,596
Notional value — long position 45,061 65,053 110,114
Notional value - short position {2,610) {46,656} (49,266)
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By using derivative financial instruments, the Systemn exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk
is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts, When the fair value
of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the
System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty, and
therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk In derivative instruments by
entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post collatera! for the benefit of the System
based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value of the derivative contract. Market risk is
the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in the underlying
reference security. The market risk associated with market changes is managed by establishing and
monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.

Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within Advocate Plan assets.
Unsettled sales resulted in seceivables due from brokers of $4,105 at December 31, 2018, Unsettled
purchases resulted in payables of $9,825 at December 31, 2018,

Receivahbles and payables for Investment trades not settled are presented within Aurora Plan assets.
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $1,360 at December 31, 2018. Unsettled
purchases resulted in payables of $3,174 at December 31, 2018.

Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 are consistent with the inputs described in Note 4. Real
estate commingled funds for which an active market exists are included in Level 2, The System opted to use
the net asset value per share, or its equivalent, as a practical expedient for falr value of the plans’ interest
in hedge funds, private equity limited partnerships and real estate commingled funds for which there is not
an active market. There is Inherent uncertainty In such valuations and the estimated falr values may differ
from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed, Private equity
limited partnerships and real estate commingled funds typlcaily have finite lives ranging from five to ten
years, at the end of which all invested capital is returned. For hedge funds, the typical lockup period isone
year, after which invested capital can be redeemed on a quarterly basis with at least 30 days’ but no more
than 90 days’ notice. The plans’ investment assets are exposed to the same kinds and levels of risk as
described in Note 7.
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The following are the plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2018, measured at fair value on a
recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7 FAIR VALUE:

Quoted
Prices
In Active
Markets Other
for Significant  Significant
Identical  Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Cash and short-term Investments s B5131 $ 36453 § 49,678 § -
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 647,429 - 647,429 _
United States government obligations 221,420 - 221,420 -
Non-government fixed-income obligations 571 — 571 =
Bond and other debt security funds 176,550 97,562 78,988 --
Equity securities 229,057 229,057 — —
Equity funds 398,831 248,639 150,242 —
Real estate funds 19,302 2,516 16,786 -

Assets at nat asset value:

Hedge funds 264,726
Private equity limited partnerships and real
estate funds 270,894

Total 5 2,314,961
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2018, are as follows:
Discount rate — Advocate and Condell Plans 4.38%
Discount rate — Aurora Plan 4.48%
Assumed rate of return on assets — Advocate Plan 7.00%
Assumed rate of return on assets — Condell Plan 4.25%
Assumed rate of retum on assets — Aurora Plan 5.50%
Weighted average rate of increase in future compensation (age-based table) —

Advocate Plan 3.7%%
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Assumptions used to determine net pension expense are as follows:

Discount rate — Advocate and Condell Plans 3.60%
Discount rate — Aurora Plan 3.79%
Assumed rate of return on assets — Advocate Plan 7.00%
Assumed rate of return on assets — Condell Plan 5.00%
Assumed rate of return on assets — Aurora Plan 5.50%

Weighted average rate of increase in future compensation (age-based table}
Advocate Plan 3.61%

The assumed rate of return on Advacate and Condell Plans assets is based on historical and projected rates
of return for asset classes in which the portfolio is invested, The expected return for each asset class was
then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the overall expected rate of return on assets
for the portfolio. The Aurora Plan’s expected long-term rate of return is based on the asset allocation of the
total portfolio considering capital return assumptions from various sources.

The 2018 mortality assumption for the Advocate and Condell Plans was the RP-2014 no-collar adjustment
with improvements projected generationally using Scale MP-2018. The 2018 mortality assumption for the
Aurora Plan was the RP-2014 100% white-collar adjustment with improvements projected generationally
using Scale MP-2018.

In addition to these plans, the System sponsors vatious defined contribution plans for its employees.
Contributions to these plans, which are included in salaries, wages and benefits expense In the consolidated
statement of operations and changes in net assets, were $140,381 for the nine months ended December 31,
2018.

13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at December 31, 2018:

Purchases of property and equipment S 22,767
Medical education and other health care programs 201,024
$ 223,791

14, FUNCTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the System are reported as expenses
of those functional areas. Expenses other than interest expense are directly allocated to functional
departments at the time they are incurred. Interest expense that relates to debt financing is allocated based
on the use of the related funds. General and adminlstrative expenses primarily Include legal, finance,
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purchasing and human resources. A majority of fundraising costs are reported as other nonoperating items,
net in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Functional operating expenses for the nine months ended December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Health Care General and
Services Administrative Consolidated
Salaries, wages and benefits S 4,634,289 S 381,527 S 5,015,816
Supplies and purchased services 2,037,979 223,058 2,261,037
Contract medical services 478,393 — 478,393
Depreciation and amortization 346,655 64,380 411,035
Interest 81,385 — 81,385
Other 293,970 312,903 606,873
Total operating expenses 5 7,872,671 S 951,868 S 8,854,539

15, Lauipiry

The System maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be avallable as its general expenditures,
labilities and other obligations come due. In addition, as part of its liquidity management, the System
invests cash in excess of daily requirements in various investments.

As more fully described in Note 10, LONG-TERM DEBT, the System had lines of credit with banks aggregating
to $585,000. These lines of credit may be used to redeem bonded indebtedness, to pay costs related to
such redemptions, for capital expenditures or for general working capital purposes.
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The System’s financial assets available within one year of the consolidated balance sheet date for general

expenditures are as follows:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use
Patient accounts recelvable
Third-party payors receivables
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program

Total current assets
Asset limited as to use:
Internally designated for capital ahd other
Held for self-insurance
Donor restricted
Investments under securities lending program
Total assets limited as to use
Total financial assets
Less:
Amounts unavailable for general expenditures:
Private equity
Hedge funds
Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure
Amounts unavaifable to management without approval:
Held for self-insurance
Donor restricted
Investments under securities lending program

Total amounts unavailzhle to management without approval

Tota! financial assets available to management for general expenditure within one year
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$ 584,887
106,244
1,486,260
17,793
18,869

2,214,053

6,941,646
632,372
119,759

18,310

7,112,087

$ 9,926,140

$ (1,113,544)
(343,603)

(1,457,147

(738,616}
(119,759)

(18,310)
(876,685)

S 7,592,308
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The System has various noncancelable operating lease agreements, primarily for medical support buildings
and equipment. Some leases contaln renewal options, fair value purchase options and escalation clauses.

Net future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initlal or remaining lease
terms in excess of one year at December 31, 2018, are as follows:

2019 5 91,870
2020 86,204
20021 78,659
2022 67928
2023 58,784
Thereafter 139,111
Total $ 522,556

Aurora West Allis Medical Center has the right to operate the hospital under the terms of a lease agreement
with the City of West Allis (the City). In accordance with the lease agreement, the City has title to all assets
and any subsequent additions (with the exception of certain equipment used by Aurora for laberatory
services). Aurora West Allis Medical Center has exclusive right to the use of the assets and the obligation to
maintain and replace them. The historical cost to the System of the leased facilities is included within the
System’s property and equipment, net. The agreement provides for annual payments of less than 5100 in
lieu of annual lease payments and includes payment escalations each subsequent year. The lease expires in
2063,

Rent expense, which is included in other expenses, amounted to $94,821 for the nine months ended
December 31, 2018,

The System is committed to constructing additions and renovations to {ts medical facillties that are expected
to be completed in future years. The estimated cost of these commitments is $455,188, of which $365,262
has been incurred as of December 31, 2018,

The System entered into agreements for information technology services provided by a third parties. The
maximum amount of future payments that the System could be required to make under these agreements
is approximately $250,000 over the next twelve years and approximately $40,000 is included in accrued
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2018. The System hasalso entered into various
other agreements. The future commitments under these agreements is $38,894 over the next seven years.
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17. GENERAL AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RISKS

The System is self-insured for substantially all general and professional liability risks. The self-insurance
programs combine various levels of self-insured retention with excess commercial insurance coverage.
Aurora’s hospitals, clinics, surgery centers, physicians and certified registered nurse anesthetist providers
that provide health care in Wisconsin are qualified health care providers that are fully covered for losses in
excess of statutory limits through mandatory participation in the State of Wisconsin Injured Patients and
Families Compensation fund. In addition, various umbrella insurance policies have been purchased to
provide coverage In excess of the self-insured limits. Revocable trust funds, administered by a trustee and a
captive insurance company, have been established for the self-Insurance programs. Actuarial consultants
have been retained to determine the estimated cost of claims, as well as to determine the amount to fund
into the irrevocable trust and captive insurance company.

The estimated cost of claims is actuarially determined based on past experience, as well as other
considerations, including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued insurance
liabllities and contributions to the trust were determined using a discount rate of 3.00% as of December 31,
2018, Total accrued insurance liabilities would have been $76,620 greater at December 31, 2018, had these
liahilities not been discounted.

The System entities are defendants in certain litigation related to professional and general liability risks, and
other matters. Afthough the outcome of the litigations cannot be determined with certainty, management
believes, after consultation with legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of the litigations will not have a
material adverse effect an the System’s operations or financlal condition.

18. LEGAL, REGULATORY AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject
to Interpretation. During the last few years, due to nationwlide investigations by governmental agencies,
various health care organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged
noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have resulted in organizations
entering Into significant settlement agreements, Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action, including
fines, penalties, exclusion from the Medicare and Medicald programs and revocation of federal or state tax-
exempt status. Moreover, the System expects that the level of review and audit to which it and other health
care providers are subject will increase.

Varlous federal and state agencies have initiated investigations, which are in various stages of discovery,
relating to reimbursement, billing practices and other matters of the System. There can be no assurance
that regulatory authorities will not challenge the System’s compliance with these laws and regulations, and
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it is not possible to determine the impact, if any, such claims or penalties would have on the System. To
foster compliance with applicable laws and regulations, the System maintains a compliance program
designed to detect and correct potential violations of laws and regulations related to its programs.

19. INCOME TAXES AND TAX STATUS

The affiliates and subsidiaries of the System are primarlly tax-exempt organizations under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3) and thelr related income Is exempt from federal income tax. Accordingly, no income
taxes are provided for the majority of the income In the accompanying consolidated financlal statements
for these entities. Unrelated business income is generated by certain of these entitles through the provision
of services or other activitles not directly related to the provision of patient care.

At December 31, 2018, the System had 540,338 of federal and $60,481 of state net operating loss
carryforward with unutilized amounts expiring between 2021 and 2037.

The System calculated income taxes for its taxable subsidiaries and affiliates. Taxable income differs from
pretax book income primarily due to certain income and deductions for tax purposes being recorded in the
consolidated financial statements In different perlods. Deferred Income tax assets and liabilities are
recorded for the tax effect of these differences using enacted tax rates for the years In which the differences
are expected to reverse.

In assessing the realizabllity of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely that not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible,

At December 31, 2018, the System had deferred tax assets of 534,812, including 513,167 related to net
operating loss carryforwards. These deferred tax assets are partially offset by a valuation allowance of
$12,748, which was recorded due to the uncertainty regarding the use of the deferred tax assets,

Provisions for federal, state and deferred income taxes of $(3,480) for the nine months ended December 31,
2018, are included in other nonoperating income, net in the consolidated statement of operations and
changes In net assets.

20. AFFILIATION

On April 1, 2018, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc, became the sole corporate member of Advocate Health Care
Network and Aurora Health Care, inc. The System was formed in furtherance of the parties’ common and
unifying charitable health care mission to promote and improve the quality and expand the scope and
accessibility of affordable health care and health care-related services for the communities they serve.
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The Affiliation was accounted for as a merger in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States; therefore, the System has accounted for the merger by applying the carryover method.

The following pro forma financial information is prepared on a consolidated basis utilizing acoounting
records of Advocate and Aurora as if the System had been operating for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2018 as a combined company. The System’s pro forma revenues have been adjusted to
include a previously non-consolidated lab joint venture {A2CL) as well as associated eliminations of activity
and balances due between Advocate and Aurora. Additionally, certain accounting policies have been
adjusted to align Advocate and Aurora within the pro forma information presented. Management believes
the assumptions underlying the pro forma financial information presented, Including the assumptions
regarding the elimination of inter-company activity and accounting policy changes are reasonable.
Nevertheless, the pro forma information may not reflect the results of aperations and financiat position had
the System been a combinad company and Is not intended to project the System's results of operations for
any future periods.

Total revenue S 12,155,979

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions - attributable to controlling interest $ 74,003

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest $ 2,166

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions ] {10,597}
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

{dollars In thousands)
April 1, 2018
Aurors awdwnh At Eiminations  Consolidated
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash snd cash equivalents 171,402 § 235425 $ 1278 % -3 408,105
Assats limited as to use 4,523 104,543 - - 109,066
Patient sccounts necaivable 744,668 726,045 - - 1470,713
Other current assats 193,669 348,921 12,317 {21,510) 533,397
Total current assats 1,114,262 1,414,934 13,595 (21,510) 2,521,281
Assets limited 23 to use 1,737,381 5,187,437 - - 7,924,818
Froparty and squipment, net 2,445,763 2,987,734 - -_ 5433497
Tota] other stsats 273,788 498,605 1579 {10,075) 763,897
TOTAL 5571104 § 11,088,710 § 15174 § [31,385)$ 16,643,493
UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILTIES:
Current portion of long term-debt 138,239 § 120,901 § -$ —$ 257,140
Accounts payable and accrued liabities 623687 829,635 18,127 {21,510) 1 449,539
Other current liabilitles 34,853 425 462 - - 457,121
Tota) current liabilities 791579 1,876,004 18,127 {21,510) 2,164,200
NONCURRENT LIABILITES:
Long-term dabt, less current portion 1,266,070 1,539,108 - - 2,805,175
Accruad Insurence and claims costs, lass current pertion 17,381 636,856 -— - 664,237
Other [ong-termi llabilities 382919 358,597 — (13,028) 729,488
Total noncurmnt liabilities 1,676,370 1,535,558 — {13,028) 4,198,900
Total llabilities 2,467,949 3,911,562 18,127 {34,538) 5,363,100
NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions:
Controlling intarest 2,934,281 7,009,528 12,953) 2,953 9,943,809
Noncontrolling interest In subsidiaries 104,168 570 — - 104,738
Total net assats without donor restrictions 3,038,449 7,010,098 (2,953) 2,953 10,048,547
Nat assats with donor restrictions 64,796 167,050 - - 231,846
Total nat assets 3,103,245 7,177,148 12,953) 2,953 10,280,393
TOTAL 5,571,134 $ 11,088,710 § 15174 $ (31,585) 16,643,493
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21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2019, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., entered into a definitive agreement to acquire the remaining
51% interest in BAMC in exchange for a donation to a foundation to benefit BAMC. Upon completion of the
transaction, BAMC and ABAMG will be fully consolidated within the consolidated financial statements of
Aurora. This transaction s expected to close on April 1, 2019 pending regulatory approval. As of the issuance
date of this repart, management is unable to estimate the impact of this transaction to the consolidated
financial statements.

On March 5, 2019, the System issued commerciai paper in the amount of $50,000. The proceeds of the
commercial paper were used to redeem the Series 2008C-2A bonds of $49,230 plus accrued interest, and
certain costs related to the issuance of the commercial paper. The remaining proceeds were used for general
corporate purposes. The standby bond purchase agreement related to the Series 2008C-2A bonds was
canceled effective March 5, 2019.

The System evaluated events and transactions subsequent to December 31, 2018 through March 27, 2019,
the date of financial statement Issuance.

L1t
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Ernst & Young LLP Tet: +1 312879 2000
155 North Wacker Drive Fax: +1 312 879 4000
Chicago, IL 60606-1787  ey.com

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
Advocate Aurcra Health, Inc. and its Affiliates and Subsidiaries

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consclidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheet and consolidating statement of operations are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our
opinlon, the information is falrly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a

whole.
é:vmt s MLLP

March 27, 2019
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2018
Credit Noncredit
Assets Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents s 220,354 $ 377,503 S {12970) $ 584,887
Assets limited as to use 102,003 4,241 - 106,244
Patient accounts receivable 1,275,630 210,630 - 1,486,260
Other current assets 436,189 116,691 (40,324) 512,556
Third-party payors recelvables 17,165 628 - 17,793
Receivable from affiliate 75,953 226,679 (302,632) -
Collateral proceeds received under securities
lending program 18,869 - - 18,869
Total current, assets 2,146,163 936,372 {355,926) 2,726,609
Assets limlted as to use:
Internally designated for capltal and other 6,902,505 39,141 - 6,941,646
Held for selfdnsurance 585,605 46,767 - 832372
Donor restricted 61,239 58,520 - 119,759
investments under securitles lending program 18,310 - - 18,310
Total assets limited as to use 7,567,659 144,428 - 7,712,087
Note receivable from affiliate 74,023 - {74,023) -
Property and equipment, net 5,088,044 530,144 8,287 5,626,475
Other assets:
Intanglble asset and goodwill, net 56,740 34,030 (1,441) 89,329
Investment In subsidiaries/afflllates 266,519 - {266,519) -
Investments in unconsolidated entlties 201,948 25,107 (24,724} 202,331
Reinsurance receivable 60,741 - - 60,741
Other noncurrent assets 592,025 37,190 (313,998) 315,217
Total other assets 1,177,973 96,327 (606,682} 667,618
Total assets S 16,053,862 § 1,707,271 S (1,028,344) S 16,732,789
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2018
Credit Noncredit
Liabilities and net assots Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
Current liabllitles:
Currant portion of long-term debt $ 48558 S 21035 § {19,666} S 49,527
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing
arrangements 162,025 - - 162,025
Accounts payable and accrued liabllities 1,391,277 304,710 {24,863 1,671,124
Third-party payors payables 301,444 2,189 - 303,633
Current portion of actrued insurance and
clalms costs 117,815 4,546 - 122,361
Accounts payabla to affillate 226,830 75,06 {301,892) -
Collataral under sacurities lending program 18,869 - - 18,869
Total current Habflitles 2,266,818 407,542 (346,421) 2,327,939
Noncurrent liabllitles:
Long-term debt, less current portion 2,789,659 99,172 {91,965) 2,796,906
Accrued insurance and claims cost, less current
portion £58,859 34,437 - 593,296
Accrued losses subject to ralnsurance recovery 60,741 - - 60,741
Obligations under swap agreements 65376 - - 65,376
Due to affiliate 178,100 {104,086) {74,023) -
Other noncurrent liabilities 618,118 28320 (884) 645,554
Total noncurrent lfabllities - 4,270,902 57,843 166,872) 4,161,873
Total llabllities - 6,537,720 465,385 (513,293) 6,489,812
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions;
Controlling interest 9,146,236 1,140,677 (386,195) 9,900,718
Noncontrolling Interest in subsidlaries 37 2,308 116,123 118,468
Total net assats without donor
restrictions 9,146,273 1,142,985 {270,072) 10,019,186
With donor restrictions 369,869 87,009 {233,177} 223,791
Comemon dtock - 1,863 (1,863) -
Additonal pald-in cepital = 84,672 (84,672} -
Retained {defidt} earnings/partnership losses - {74,733) 74,733 -
Total net assats 9,516,142 1,241,886 {515,051) 10,242,977
Total liabilities and net assets $ 16053862 $ 1,707,271 $ {1,028344) § 16,732,789
48
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Nine Months Ended December 31, 2018

Cradit Noncredit
Group Group Eliminatlons  Consolidated
Revenue;
Patient servica revenue 4 6609409 $ 1210444 S 5{286,385) S 7,533,468
Capltation revenue 479,970 570,112 (14,087) 1,035,995
Other revenue 433,244 521,400 [310,701) 643,943
Tota! revenue 7,522,623 2,301,956 (611,173) 9,213,406
Expensas;
Salarles, wages and benefits 4,253,713 763,311 {24,010} 4,993,014
Supplies and purchased services 1,912,984 423,576 {103,453) 2,233,107
Contract medical services 188,767 631,580 (341,954) 478,393
Depreclation and amortization 374,296 38,216 {1,722} 410,790
intarest 79303 5,748 {3,666) 81,385
Other 353,156 344,509 {54,997) 602,668
Total expenses 7.162,219 2,206,940 (569,802} 8,799,357
Operating Income {loss) before nonrecurring
expenses 360,404 85,016 (41,371} 414,049
Nonrecurring expenses 55,182 - - 55,182
Operating Income (loss) 305,222 95,016 (41,371) 358,867
Nonoperating income (loss)
Investment foss, nat (253,683) (4,435) - {258,118}
Loss on debt refinandng (29,859) - - {29,859)
Change [n fair value of Interest rate swaps 993 - - 993
Other nonoperating Income, net 4,209 {4,163} - 646
Total nonoperating loss, net (277,740) (8,598) - (286,338)
Excess of revenue ovar expenses 27,482 85,418 {41,371) 72,529
Less noncontroliing Interest {610} {355} (33,418) {34,383)
Excess of revenue over expenses - attrlbutable to
controlling interast S 26,872 § 86,063 $ (74,789) $ 38,146
49
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Guida to the Elimination of Infections in B

HBY Isolation/Precautions

Introduction
In addition to Standard Precautions, isolation (scparate room) for HBsAy positive patients is standard of practice
in HD faalitics, for several reasons:
1. Environmental stabifity: HBV can petsist on surfaces and equipment and semain infectious at ambient room
temperature for up to 7 days. HBsAg has been detected on clanaps, machine control surfuces, doorknabs,
und other surfaces in dialysis facilities. These blood-contaminated surfaces can serve as a reservoir for HBY
transmission, creating the potential for contamination of healthcare personnel hands, equipment, and supplies.
2. High viral titer: Persons with HBV infection tend to have high concentrations of virus in their blood. ‘Lhis,
along with its covironmental stubility, makes the risk of HBY transmission from blood contaminated items in
this serting greater than would be expected far other common bloodbome viruses.

While HCV and HIV ako pose patential jnfection risk to employees and patients, the risk is significantly less than
that related to HBV:

+ HIV infection from an expasure occurs at a rate of 0.2%-0.4%.
= HCV infection From an exposure occurs ar a rate of less than 196,
= HBV infection from an cxposure occurs at a rate of up to 3096,

Note: The relative risk of HIV/HCV infection is significantly fess than that of HBV for both HCWs and patients,
though the rates sbove reflect only HCW conversions.

HBY Isolation/Precautions

= TPaticnts are placed In a privats room or segregated area.

* Dedicated dialysis machine is used for HBV-positive patients,

* Dialyzers are discarded in biomedical waste aftee treatment.

* Dialyzers can not be reprocessed/rcused.

* Gown and gloves are required for cach entry into room,

* Musk with eye protection is required for cannulation and decanaulation.

* Staff casing for HBY paticnty cannot care for HBV susceptible patients at the same time

* Staff caring HBV patients should be FIBV-immune.

* Required when the surfac: antigen is poxitive and not required when the surface antigen is not detectable.

Since the introduction of universal HBV vaccination in 1991 in the U5, the prevalence of chronic LMV infection
in the general population including dialysis patients has dececased. In the 19992004 National Health and Nutrition
Exarination Survey (INHANES)," the prevalence was reported to be 0.27%. However, it must be remembered that
certain racial groups have much higher prevalence of positivity, A survey of the genera! population in Rochester
Couaty, Minnesota, showed a prevalence of 2.1 amony Asians, 1.9% among African-Americans, and 0.02%
among Caucasians, A total of 86% of the population with chuonic HBV infection were born outside the US4
Other groups at high risk include men who have sex with men and TV drig users.’
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Guide to the Eliminatlon of Infections In Hemodialysis

Transmission-Based Precautions

Transmission-Based Peecautions are recommended in addition to Standard Precautions by the CDC when
the route(s) of transmission is {are) not completely interrupted using Standasd Precautions alone. There are
three categories of Transmission-Based Precautions: Contact Precautions, Droplet Precautions, and Airborne
Precautions,

1. Airborne Precautions: Transmissible airborne illnesses include varicella, disseminated varicella, TB, and
meusles, Microorganisms can remain airborne for up to 2 houss.

« [Inpaticnt Sceting: Patients are placed in 2 negative airflow room. Respirators ate required for TB and
for anyone not immune to varicella, measles, or other airbosue disease. Jt is recommended that those

individuals who are not immune be reassigned to prevent exposurs to vaccine preventable discascs.
Hospital policies should be followed.

» Ambulatory Setting: Patent ldentified with a suspected sirborne disease should be masked immediately
and geographically separuted from other patients, preferably in a single room. Arrangements should be
made for HT) treatraents at a facility that can provide a negalive pressure isolation room.

2, Droplct Precautions: Ilnesses transmitted by lacge respiratory draplets inchude pertussis, influenza, mumps,
strep throar, rubella, diphtheria, Mycoplasma pneumonis, adenovirus, Neisseria meningitidie, Hacmophius
influenzae type b, and scute respirstory infections with MRSA/VRE/other MDRO.

* TInpatient: Hospital policies should be foltowed.

* Ambualatory Setting: Respiratory Hygiene/Cough Etiquette Precautions thould be followed. 1f
hospitalization is required, the patient should be spatially separated by at leact 6 feet from other patients
and a mask worn uatil transport can be arranged. In HD facilities, dialysis center exposure management
and (OHow-up policies should be followed in the event of 2 vaccine preventable discase exposure or
meningitis. Only immune staff should care for patients with a vaccine preventable disease (i.e., wuraps,
rubella, diphtheria),

3. Contact Precautions: Illnesses transmitted via contact include C. difficite, adenovicus, rotavirus, impetigo,
scabies, pediculosis, and MDROs (e.g., MRSA, vancomycin intermediate-resistant 5. arrews, VRE, and other
MDROs).

* Inpatient Serting: Hospital policy should be followed.

* Ambnlatory Setting: Routine contact precautions rre not required in HD units for paticnts infected or
eolonized with pathogenic bucteria for several reasons. First, 2lthough contact transmission of pathogenic
bucteriu is well-documented fu hogpitals, similar transmission has not been well-documcnted in HID
centers. Transmission might not be apparent in dislysis centers, possibly becanse it vcours Jess frequently
than in acute -case hospitals or results in undeteeted colonization rather than overt infection. Also, because
dialysis paticnts arc frequently hospitalized, determining whether transmission occurred in the inpatient or
outpatient setting is difficult, Second, contamination of the patient’s skin, bedclothes, and environmental
surfaces with pathogenic bacteria is likely to be mote common in hospital scttings (where patients spend
24 hours a day) than in cutpatient HD centers (where patients spend approximately 10 hours a week).
‘Third, the routine use of infection control practices recommended for FIT) units (gloves for all patient
and environmental contact), which are more steingent than the Standard Precautions rontinely used in
hospitls, should prevent transmission by the contact route.

ASSOCIATION FOR PROFESSIONALS IN INFECTION CONTROL AND EPIDEMIOLOGY 47
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2.2 SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR GENERAL HOSPITALS

2.2-3.9.8.1 Reserved

2.2-3.9.8.2 Reception and control station

{1} The receprion and control station shall permit
visual control of waiting and activity arcas.

(2} Combination of the reception and convrol station
with office and clerical space shall be permited.

2.2-3.9.8.3 Resecved

2.2-3.9.8.4 Office aed clerical space. Provision shall
be made for filing end retdeving patient recards.

22-3.9.8.5 -2.2-3.9.8.11 Reserved

2.2-3.9.8.12 Space and utilities for cleaning and

disinfecting resplratory therapy equipment. Facill-

tes for cleaning and decontamlnating respiarory

equipment shall be provided independent of hand-

washing stations.

(1) This equipment processing shall be permitmed to
tzke place In other parts of the facility; such as the

swedlle processing deparument {Secdon 2.1-5, L
Sterile Processing).

(2)‘Whu:cded1nqdmpmoaﬂngroomhpmvﬂd.
it shall meer the following requirements;
(2} The room shall be armnged eo provide a soiled-
to-clean workdlow,
{b) ‘The room shall indude the following:

() Work counters for drop-off, soaking tubs,
and pagpeuriration unies

{il) Documentarion area

(iif) A hand-weshing station

{iv} A lacge sink for washing Instruments
2.2-5.9.8.13 Equipment and supply storuge
2.2-3.9.9 Support Areas for Staff

2.2-3.9.9.1 Reserved

[ readily accessible vo dhe respira

[ shall be provided immediacely a

-3

—%@)Whﬂedhlysilﬁmtﬂomnlt

#20-004

2.2-3.9.9.2 Staff toilet. A seaffs

2.2-3.9.9.3 Saff storage. Lo
arez for securing staff pecsonal o

2.2-3.10 Renal Dialysls Serv|
Chronic) -

2.2-3.10.1 General

2.2-3.10.1.1 Application. This

w renat dialysis facilidles in che hod
patients with 2eute and chronic en
(ESRD).

2.2-3.10.1.2 Location

(1) Where dialysis is provided In-a
.care unir, all support areas foir ¥
provided bug ghall be pe:
- padent care unle

unit, the requirements of this s
2.2-3.10.2 Hemodialysis

2.2-3.10.2.1 General

(1) The ereatment area shall be p
open-plan erca.

{2) The erearment area shall be ¢

sdmininrative waiting areas.

*(3) Built-in cablnetry ehall not be p

= individual hemodialysis pacient

(2231022 Space requirements |
(1) Arca. Individual hemodialysis
shall have a minimum dear f

(2) B0 square feet (7.44 square
dialysis chairs are used

. (b) 90 square feer (8.36 square

are uged '

Guldelines for Design and Consteuction
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2 SPEI’.‘!FI& REQUIREMENTS FOR GERERAL HOSPITALS

cet. The following minimum dlearances .- . 2.2-5.10.8.1 Reservid
(122 meters) becween thesides of beds, -~ 2231082 Nurse station

o dialysis chales - - . [ (YA niorse sracion thar meets the requirernents in
052 (L2 meters) between the sdesiofbods/ | . S4cton2.1.2.8.2 (Adwlnlsmative Ceater or :
- slks or ' 'NumSildon)'shallbclpcnmdinthghemodia}ysis
r . TRRALmENT area, .
() The nunt sution shall be designed o provide
visual observation of all individual dialysic

22-3.10.8.3 -2.2-3.10.8.7 Reterved

Patlent pshvacy. sp,“ shall be ;mlllble €~ - 2.2-3.10.3.8 Medlcation safety rone *®
dxte provisions for patlenc privacy. 7 (1) Sec Section 2, 1-2.6.8 (Medication Sskty Zones)

fok requirements. .
Hond-washing stutions (2) A dedicared medication safery zane thall be
ing stitions shall be provided in _ mu:]lylomadiutb:dialﬁhl_mumdnhnﬂbc
cewith Section 2,1-2.8.7 (Hand Washlng v*  atleast § feet (185 roeren) from any {ndividual
‘ oo dislysis crearment chair or bed. .
starion shall be locaced ac che o . :
? E 2%[048_-9 =2.2-5.10.8.10 Reserved ;

2.23.10.8.11 Cleas workroom or supply rooz. A
.-+ clean workooom shall be provided in 2ccordancs with

hare pacieass are wstnsd o we dinlyeis 2.23.10.8.12 Soiled woikrdoan. A solled wockroo
home, 1 private treatruenrizosm of ay ", shall be providéd tn sccordance with Section 2.1. T
toe foez (1115 square meten) dhall be _ 2.3.1_2_(80!!0&%0510:&!]561{0&:335@_).

h 2:23.10.8.13 Equipment and supply stocege
4 This room shall conuin the following: (1) Clean linen storage. A deas linen storage area
: thall bé provided in scooedance wich Section 2.1-
. 2.8.13.F {Clean linen sworege), ;
2 For Bnid dlsposal _ . (Cligical equipment and supply storege. Storage

. areat ot pzoe for supply cares shall be provided.
{3) Stamage spaice for gurneys and wheedchairs

(%) Where gurmeys are used, storage space shull be

& {b) Where outpaticat dielysis services are

- “provided, a designared acea shall be provided

tﬁﬁf:}__i !‘

(A1 Deslgn and Construction of'-l-lo:pluls

" Sedbn 2.1-28.11 (Clean Workenom or Glean Supply
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merers) beoween the sides of bedds,
t dialysis chairs

metess) betwezn the sides of beds/
iafysis chaits 2nd adjacene walls or

96 centimeters) berween the Foot
eys/diatyss chairs and cubicle

fient privacy. Space shall be available
tovisions for padent privacy.

 privare teatmeat room of ac
(11.15 square merets) thall be

room shall contain the following:

paticats are erained to use dialysls

2.2 SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR GENERAL HOSPITALS

2.2-3.10.8.} Reserved

2.2-3,10.8.2 Nusse station

[ (1) A aursc station that meets the requirements in
Secton2.1-2.8:2 (Adminlstrative Center or
Nurse Searion) shall be locaved in the hemodialysis
treatment arca,

(2) The nurse scation shall be designed 1o provide
mual observation of all mdmduzl dialysis
‘ireatmient bay:

2.23.10.83 ~ 5_2.2-3.10.8.7 Reserved

2.2-3.10.8.8 Medicatlon safety zone

(1) See Section 2.1-2.8.8 {Msdicarion Safeiy Zones)
for requirements.

(2} A dedicared medication safecy zone shall be
centrally Jocaced in the dialysis unic and shall be
at least 6 feet (1.83 meters) Fom any Individual
dialysis trearment chuir or bed.

2.2-3.10.8.9 - 2.2-3.10.8.10 Reserred

2.2-3.10.8.11 Clean workroom ot ¢upply room, A
dean worroom hall be provided in acoordance with
Secdon 2. 1-2.8. 11.{Clesn Warkeoom ot Clean Supply
Rmm) :

2.2-3.10.8.12 Sciled workroom. A sofled workioom
shall be provided in accordance with Secelon 2.1-
2.8.12 (Soiled Workroom or Soiled Holding Room).

2.2-3.10.8.13 Equipment and supply storage

{1) Clezn linen storage. A clean linen storage area
shall be provided in scoordance with Section 2.1-
2.8.13.1 {Clean Yiten svarage).

(2) Clinical equipment and supply scorage. Storage
ateas or space for supply cars shall be provided.

(3} Storage space for pumneys and wheelchalrs

fa} Where gameys are used, storage space shall be
* " provided.

(b) Where cutpaticar diafysis services are
provided, o designated arca shalt be provided
ﬁ:r wheel:hdr pakag

slgn and Congtsucrion of Hospirals -
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() This arca shall belumcd in a non-public
* ar=a. ot of any fequired agress widd: g
other requited dearance,

(i) Andnmumofoncwhedcbmrmrage or
parking space hall be provided forevery |
four paddent care stadons, with gt leas one
storage o parking space provided where

tluus

.2.2-3.10 8. M Enmmmhl nrr.tos mm.An
environmenral serviees room shalk be provided thisr -
Dacers the requirements jo: Section 2.1-2.8'14 (Bavi-
tonmental SewkuRoqm)lswdlurhcldiﬁdnml
vequiternents included besr; -

(1) The eavironmental gecvices mumdmlibnd;m:
onandfaduududveuuo&'dzdmyﬂumk.

&)%mmpplym&dnlnmecdon for teating
muchines sholt be provided.

2.2-3.10.8.1% Ruuwd

. 02.2-8.108.16 Dhlyqu:mmhgrom Whera'
dhl)mnmpmcmd&tmm.lnpm&h;
momshai{brpmvldd. :

for « onc-way Bow of maveriali frong solfed w_
dean. )

&)Thkmmduﬂind:ﬂ:duefdlowhg-

(0] Comymt procusou and libel p:fntnn
& () A packaging erea
2 (g) Dialyzer torage cabinery
P
5 2.2-3.108.17 Dlalyuup::pandon room. Where
& ¢ central diakysate mixing and dellvery syscem Is uscd
i w provide Individual dialysace solusions for eeatraent
i of parients requiring spectal dialysare prauipﬂom.
[ dialysare preparacion poom shalf be ptond:d
k3
]

2.2 SPSCIFIC REQUIBEME"TS FOR GEHER'&L HOSP!ITAI.S.

) themm&wdunfourpzdentmmm a2

. 32-3.10.8.18 Hemodlalysl)
i _-Q)'Ihiumdnﬂbe

' *z.z-s.lo.a.lsl!qdm
t (l)'lhcdhlyqu:mceuhgmmdemghﬂmﬂe .

: f(l)Ey:wuhmdontpd

#20-004

(€} Work counter

. (d) ¥loor drain
-(e) Treared vater ourley

warer diswbution

© Section2.1-8.42.2 ¢

hctnoperﬁ:slon watet

veaer distribution

equipment agea. Waser
locatied in a dedicured pacuge
mmmpmmuéflth_eq Ip
" (1) This area shall fnd

r.onm.

equipment repai
shall be equipped with che

(1} Hand-washing souion
memdmuwdﬂ:ﬁn i

2.2-3.10.5.2 Scaff uzeas provided I

(1} Lockeys
{2) Toiler soomi
(3) Hand weskiing stations. -
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-3 neﬂrlqmmnmun‘ mnuul. Hasnm.s _

: ﬂmﬂmwﬁw”h
pmM.chqubpduﬁuldﬂnr
Hmd.im‘n[mkﬁﬁ Imlpu-ﬂm‘m

. _.--'..'- s
3 mmﬂumuhumr:fmm e

P L

-.\

-"--zm.u.?'rhmndlmn niress uﬁm
-halhpmuﬂmmmmmn-&u

S Deniaal 0y

: me
; n—zﬁgqpiﬁmhﬁmam:' :

i ﬂ}hhﬂlmﬂmmlhpmmmﬁs
Mmmmpﬂdhmﬁuaﬁﬂ
 ¢are upie The Bymber of sddizional ATl rooms
mﬂh‘ﬂnﬂu:qm 1
AN oo shall ﬂiﬁtMHHM'
- it Sectlog 21242 (AT wmm '
'l-llhhlltﬂdﬁ'wkmnqm )
a}m-ummm :

Lspo Huﬂmmmmchnunu

mtmmwmum
ﬁmﬂmemm

B -1 T LI N

-

{!}Miﬁlﬂ.ﬁml_ium_ or hurss stacion dhall be
provided n accondance with Section 2.1-2.6.2
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Additional Resources Avaflable, but Fm unable to access
OSHA Requirements/Standards

. 8092: Kidney Dialysis Center

FDA Requirements/Standards

cMms

AAME

¢ Hemodialysis Horizons publication
s Offers specific Dlalysis related links:

Aamlo sy ontent.as u r=1861
»

fllinols State Regulations { Would not Include as a source, not well written or detailed as compared to
federal agency)

»  PCTS allowed to Administer Hepartn and Saline: NO

e Delegation authority of RNs/Liminations on LPN/LVNs or UAP:

o Delegation: The transfer of responsibility for the performance of selected tasks by the registered
nurse {RN) to qualified, compatent assistive personnef In a selected situation, based upon the
RN's plan of care. hitp://doh.illinofsgov/topics-services/healthi-care.
regulation/facilitles/haspitals
Dialysis Techniclan Leglslation: None
Dialysis Facility Leglsiation: Licensure law passed; no rules promulgated

Resources

Centers for Disease Control and Preventions (CDC]. {2007). Revised 2019, Guideline for isolation
precautlons' Preventlng transmission of infectious agents in heafthcare settlnss Retrieved from:

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention [CDC). (2001). Revised 2016. Recommendations for
praventing transmission of infections among chronic hemodialysis patlents, Morbidity and Mortality
Weekly Report [MMR]. 50, (RR-5). Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health end Humnan Services,
Retrieved from: hittgs:/fwww.cde.gov/dialysis/guldelines/index.htm]

Fetility Guidelines (nstitute. {2018). Guidelines for design and construction of hospitals. 5t. Louis, MO:
The Facility Guldelines Institute.
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. Introduction

critical care unit of & hospltal Is where fifs can hang In the balance every day and where
* skitfut and timely Intervention literally saves fives. The critical care setting, frequently known as
| the Intensive care unit, the ICU, or the CCU, 1s where some of the hospital's most difficult and
| demanding work takes place. The ICU is the stage for many of life's most extraordinary dramas.
. Disign of the setting In which this vitally Important work is done will be Increasingly important to
' physicans, nurses, pharmacists, respiratory theraplsts, patients, families, and hospital executives,
.lnigarmegniyafewofﬂmaffected. !
BRI

. Mlﬁwbhmah&emhdﬁuﬂnmdmmﬁvahﬂﬂtydﬁgnﬂuteﬂhm
s than hinders the work of inidans. It endorses the approach that design informed by the
 findings of credibla research Is tikely to be more successhl than design based on unsupported con-
. Gephs, This book explores key fssues in the design of fadlities for aritical care and provides examples
. of ciedibla evidence relevant to thase Issues. It includes suggestions for a collaborative method In
- which designers and ciniclans can work together to achleve improved results. We hope that design
 crltical care units will be powerfully influenced by strong visions of better, more effective
dinnovative settings, rather than hollow reproductions of what has been built in the past.

: the book will find an audience In the world of architects and designers as well as In the

world of Intensivists, physiclans, nurses, pharmacists, theraplsts, members of the critical
aff, and hospital executives.

i :
I Need for effective design in critical care

Lol

| Afdiity design that supports the crucially important work of aitical care must sesve the mini-

 mum functional needs of physiclans, staff, patients, and their families. If the physical facility can

- beelther an enabler of high performance, or a baner to effective peiformance, then appropriate

1 design ls vitally important. A good facility design will efficlently support functional requirements
~ and will also effectively serva the physical, psychological, and emotional needs of those who use

-t The best facility designs make 1t mare likely that optimum performance can be achleved.

When time s of the essence, needed equipment and supplies should be at the fingertips of the
 chnidans and should be found In familiar locations. The most appropriate technologies and infor-

mation systems should be present, accessible, and simple to use. Staff in one room should be
abls to find things Intuitively based on their familtarity with other standardized raoms.

. Under non-emergency conditions the space should support rautine functions such as the wash-
-f-" Ing of hands, best-practice care models, communication, and documentation. It should dirsctly

. address the psychosocial needs of the patient and family members while serving as a pleasant,
|| stress-free work environment for the staff,
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- Ephience-based design and applied research

i
|y

{ :'.‘.-T’.ma‘dmt:ﬁc founidation
* Régers, Ulrich, P1.D.

hd

. The scientific Joundation for evidence-based healtheare design fs already large and surprisingly
 strong. A joint profect at Texas AGM University and the Georgia Institule of Technology in the
 USA tndentified nearly 700 rigorous studies, most published in international medical journals,
 chout how the architeciure of acute care hospitals affects health. A collaborative of more than 30

| hkealthoare orgarizations set up by the Cenler for Health Design has done scveral multi-year clini-

‘B caland safety cvaluations of specific deslgn interventions and new buildings. Much credible evi-
B dence ot shows thet good design of o losplial's physical environment promotes better clindcal

4 i Euiclgnfq. Increnses safely, and reduces stress for both pailents and staff™ (Ulrich, 2006).

| DV, Roger Ulrich 1 & professor ol Texas AGM Unioersity where he is « Fellow [n the Cener for Health
i & Design,
o

i 1
have used research from medicine, nursing, management, ndustrial design, engi-
and technology. Relevant sources also Include the hterature of psychology, seclolagy,
ppology, and economics. The Joumals of sclence may be a useful source, along with the
press, newspapers and magazines, and documentary films and television programs.
data guides, guidelines from spediality boards, quality review data, infection control
manufacturers’ testing information, assoclation reports, and the documents of accredita-
nces and code authorities provide helpful Information. Practitioners can gather new
ation from conference presentations, workshops, continulng education programs, and
ing tours of exemplary facilities. The Intemet has also become a rich source of Infor-

ahon for designers. The possible sources of relevant findings are fimited only by the issues
atidressed.

.

Therapeutic environments

-

1
e\ YFere | : there are healing environments that have nothing to do with evidence-based design,
- E?R;)“?hi any healing environments are the result of an evidence-based design that has demonstrated
sign (H g » improvements In the physical and/or psychological states of patlents and/or statf,
;, and visitors. If It meets these standards, a healing environment Is therefore a com-
treatment modality that makes a therapeutic contributlon to the course of cara (van
2005). The role played by the environment is certalnly not as therapeutically effective
the mle of surgery, pharmacology, medical interventions, or perhaps even the caring touch of
i empathetic nurse. The therapeutic role of the physical environment 1s, howaver, absolutely
and must therefore be consldered as contdbuting to the course of care and the patient

i

 hora) sbligation to provide critical care environments that are supportive of the teams of health-

pofessionals who work with patients and their famllies. Deslgners have a responsibility to

e environments conducive to the safety, health, therapeutic interventions, and recovery

mifcal care patients. Above all, the envirenment, like every other aspect of healtheare, should
n¢ham.”

¥ Ih%h]rﬂ eavironment can contribute to improved elinlcal outcomes, then surely there is a
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"‘Rmummdfug. ﬂdﬂdﬂﬁaﬁnmmwﬂmub&ahu”ﬂmﬂﬂg fes fo rounds.
Thaining doctors nurses with femiltes present s a real peradigm shift and raises many
= mnfrmrsfnliuuu : -

s Nursing handoffs. Imagine a nurse operating six or seven fntmvenous pumps and trying o
{ Mru:_dnd!m&nswhﬂcwngaﬁn:ﬂynmhhorm«ﬁurmmm—mlhmly

i *_rngbyllukdlide:doyauukalmw? What kind of eupport do they need?
| Wedo not have all the ansevers o auch problems. We are currently studying them and trying to

mmmmmm

s. Most recent Press-Ganey Family Satigfuction
nfig"adbn O!hﬂmﬂad’bmdmuhdq-!ﬂymmmdwmeh
, increased with eritical

cmwwim. mpmmwmwummmu.wm.myrm
ﬁrum?haﬁmﬂy-amdtNmdeaﬂmuofdnmmmmm:m
Starting

[ ﬂH’.ZO!nchD-ICUllutcpmdFebl 2007; 7 located in an older unit
2D-ICU (wewly constructed)
- Departmental gross square feet; 22097
18 ZOthm-llﬂq.ﬂwﬁh‘lhdudaadedw 130sq, f private fumily studio ares
"~ Femily sludio (130sq. ) within the patient room that includes two chairs that conver? to
" beds, lable, sink, white board, WI-EL TV, wardrobe for family personal items
" = Family studio provides family menbers privacy and allows staff to talk to faniily privately.
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the organization’s service area, the Incidence of disease and trauma, market share, and past per-
c# statistics. Experts recommend using a statistically-based service-volume projection method
ming the number of beds needed.

Ite traditional ICU design of the past, as it has evolved from the original recovety toom
concept, has been based on the ability to ses the face of each patient from a single central posi-
. The concept was based an the abserver's need to be able to rapldly identify any significant
diange in the patient's condition and aliow for the timely summoning of help. This concept
s istituted before the advent of heart monitors and other continuous physiologic reporting.
i raditional configuration, the size of the space allotted to each patlent room or bed position
rally limited the number of beds that can be seen from such 4 central position to
where between 8 and 10 beds, Many units have attempted to Indude larger numbers of
s and have experlenced corresponding reductions In visibility from a central posttion
ik ' , 2000).
ladon on the number of beds that can be cbserved from a central station has resulted
pal l‘l in which many larger ICUs hava been divided into dlusters, pods, or separate units,
ch fitting the 8-10-bed stze range, Some have proposed that the smallest unit that can be
L g :e_fﬂdenu;rhaunttofslxbeds (Hamitton, 1999).

i

¥A
e aquity

lted States, the standard critical care ratio for nurses to patints is 1:1 or 1:2. The physi-
mangement of patient rooms and bed locations should allow for optimal assignmant equity
fong the nursing staff, Equity means that particular rooms or groups of rooms should not give
¥ riusa an unusually difficult assignment. The design should not result In one room that is
fike the others that It becomes a dreaded assignment or is always the last bed to be filled,
mupings or dusters of rooms should not result In pattems in which one nurse must always
el signitficantly greater distances than thoss assigned to other rooms, When we are touring
difies and 2sk to see an unoccupled room, there invariably seems to be a less desirable room
i} Is‘thg last bed to be filled.
i7 gﬂnﬂ _ .
e for planners of critical care units Is determining the amount of space that should be aflo-
led Lo serve the expected need. A convenlent measure is the unit area (square feet or square
icters) divided by the number of beds. Chades Cadenhead, an architect specializing in design
Bt aitical care, has collected data on the physlcal space devoted to critical care units {2005). He
5 that in the United States a range from 850 to 1100 departmentaf gross square feet per
be expected. His review of winners of the ICU Design Award, which is jolnily sponsored
American Institute of Architects (AlA), Society of Critical Care Medicine (SCCM), and the
1 Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN), seems to show a trend toward providing
area per bed in newer units (see p. 15). This trend can likely be attributed to the avail-
new technologles like power columns and pendant life support systems, as well as the
%0 larger beds aﬂne: more equipment ta serve higher aculty patients, and provision of space to
odate familles.
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during a crisis. In some ICU models, the normal nrsing support functions and certaln b
P supplies are accommodated within the room. in addition, there Is a dear trend to provide space!
\‘_ﬂ accommodate family within the patient room without creating problems for th staff.

o Today’s standard for a head-to-tos dimension Is In the range of 14-17 feet. A tndy flexible
- of the future might be expected to be 16-20 feet In the head-to-toe length. Contemnporary i
i rooms In the Unlted States are designed with 15-18 feet on the headwall In a side-to-side
t entation. The truly flexible room of the future, suited for the highest-acuity patient and mul
: equipment ltems, might need as much as 18-22 feet of side-to-side dlearance. R

L.
: The new SCCM CU Design Guldelines (expected in 2010, If approved as written by the
e hskhrm,vdlpmbablybeperbnmmﬂasedmﬂm&mpmulpﬂw.mﬂmywﬂlmt_
kg minimum dimension. They are kely to suggest an optimum distarice of at feast four feet from
i bed to the wall at the head and foot, and at least sik feet of space for staff and equipment on
i side of the bed. This Is exclusive of space aflocated to family and a work zone for dlinical staff.

o q The patient room can also be too big. There are procedure rooms in which it Is not pos!

t._ . to reach the patient with equipmient that has been plugged Into the wall without an exts
cord. An oversized patient room can have similar problems. The reach of cords and lines el

8 emeeded.Dishnmbebmenmepaﬁentlndsuppﬂes.orbctweenﬂmp&ﬂentnndsuﬁ_

i areas, can be stretched beyond the dimensions assodated with optimum effictency. ¢

! ;

!

:

Zones of use

iy Smdaﬁgnenhavebeguntoidenufydlsﬂnctmmofu»mmmepauentroom.m:
B B ofummaﬂmﬂmdedymhmnﬂderﬂlepetfammuofﬂuspmfonpedﬁcpurpmq;

7
il Patient zone ¥
il This Is the area comprising the patient, the bed, bedside and overbed tables, and the mme
thy E i area occupled by cinlclans in the act of providing care, %

i Hyglene zone

i This area, usually in & sepasata room, comprises the patient tollet, sink, and activities assods
il g with malntaining the patient’s hygiene. y
it

Staff zone e i
¥t An area Just Inslde or cutside the entry to the patient room that Is suited to support pursing
‘a caregiver functions: this ¢an potentlally Incude a writing surface, provisions for hand hyg
i b patient Information {computer or chart), medication, and supplies. -3

Family zone _ i
j:1 Space dedleated to family use and social support for the patient can Indude seating, pr e
i { for ovemight stay, storage for personal effects, separate lighting, access to the Intemet, and
wiiting surface, among other potential amenities.

S
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g
5;* g of patient and fomily spaces
i
o g unit with medical gases and soplisticated monitoring technology, and 6) lack of adequate

support space for medicotons, equipment, sugplies, and ICU family waiting. Wiile patient rocims
!'rre to provide critical care, the taits themselves lypically were not designed for the

i

ue needs of the unil. Serurily and traffic flow through the wit twas also problematic for some
fals that had patients, famity, and visitors wallking past emergencies and otler life support
| ements. A key lesson learned is that an acuily-adaplable unit should be designed lo acconmrodate
| ithe sickest patients, wilh critical cure operations in mind.
 The clear advaniages of the universal room and the acuity-adaptable unit are the operational flex-
| ihility aver time. As patient populations and sevvice linies grow, acwity-adaplable uits are appeal-
 ing. The initial goal to work around the patient and mininiize transfers and hand-offs in care is
| Just as buportant today, and many bospitals have had success in creating the acuity-adaptable
nurging cere model. Openations mtust be plasned and considered along toith design. By applying
the Lessonts Learned from acuity adaptable-units over the past several years, healtieare profession-
by and designers are planning more wniversality to both patient voonts and critical care units.

gy Ritchey, VicwPresident, nd Josie Evens, Cliicat Adviso,are memibersofthe Cliice! Sfutions and

tairm al HKS,

phypimal mwom
13 notable attempt to consider Rexibility in design, a gmoup of vendors associated with
sechusetts General Hospital In Boston conducted a study of & universal room (Spear, 1957).
b concept tested the idea that it might be effective to build every patient room in a hospital
i the capacity o treat the most critical patients. The patient room s the most often repeated
-+ ponstructed In a hospital. The research group Intended to explore methods to standardize

construction at the upper end of a patient room's functional requirements.

unlvers2 mnwou'ldbe:ludtomeetﬁleneodsofacriticalunpﬂientandwouidbe )
il with the utiiiies and life support systems usually found In 2 critica! care room. These addl-
apabilities might be concealed behind stiding panels until they were required to cars for
her-acuity patient. With this concept, any patient could be edmitbed to any room in the
spital and would not need to be transferred as their aculty changed. Such a design would
: the difficulty assoclated with finding an available bed In the right location, Staff would
e to patients on the bass of thelr diagnosis and dlinical needs and would go to where
 patf Is located, instead of having the patient moved to the unit with approprate staff,
prately the study group determined that it would be too expensive to construct such a room,
o the staffing model might not offer the advantages orginally proposed.

-adaplable room :
model for a patient room that Is sutted to multiple lsvels of care was plloted st Clarlan
st Hospital In Indlanapolls, [ndiana. In this case the experiment was limited to a single
fine. The 56-bed coronary critical care unit had both critical care and stepdown beds
single management. After a bumpy and difficult beginning, the unit became & notable
‘story, with documented performance improvement, improved clinical outcomes, fewer
sdhcalion erors, fewer transfers, and significant financlal savings (Hendrich, Fay & Sorels,
4], Utimately, due to the opening of four nearby heart hospitals which changed the patient
ity mbt, b‘lil,:y unit today does not operate as originally conceived and does not include step-

capal
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level of staff (citical care or stepdown) should be provided for each patient at any phase
course of care, whereas the universal room model implied a more difficuft hospital wide
“apement task for proper staff assignment. )
)

far special conditions

e conisiderations . -
’ﬁdspm,mmuwngmmeumusm:uummmncummmw
qmdamobenpaﬂent.mseumuhavemdymmdhedaumn&mumdm
deslgn,ovetﬂuddwmys,andoﬂlerfeamesbnddress&u
S0 lndlMuanmaywelglnmyﬁingﬁmthODpounds.
- A&‘MmmmsM«ummmwmmstnmu
e mmmmdmemdmmmrnamemum

diagnastic and treatm

el care units diagnostic or procedure capability to be planned
mn.ﬂngoajlsbomdummemedmmovea

i ould be designed to accommodate portable Imaging technolo-
Auding ultrasound, radlography, and fluoroscopy. Additional consideration might ba given

2ed lmaging capabillity, such as catheterizaltion or anglography, In close proximity to the
foom, either on the unit or nearby.

i‘m_lmbemi’ Invasive procedures ars predictably performed on critical care patients. These
Ures can Inclurda line Insertions, catheterization, implants, endoscopic examinations, minor
among others. The abllity 1o perform some of
dlinical benefit and reduces the need for visky patient trans-
it : rooms an the unlt or nearby to handle Instances when a pro-
e cannot be performed In the patient room. Planners showld proceed cautiously, however,
4 the volume of such proceduras Is Insufficlent to suppart a propery tralned and experienced
ol lssues of duplication of Space, equipment, staffing, and supplies must be clearly understood
developing such a model, :

fal procedure carts
carts, used in some unts, are stocked for a spedific procedure and are brought into the
. 100m, or the procedure room, when required. After use, the cart is disinfected and

Appendix 3
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to bear In mind the need for electricity and gases In these locations, The absence of kfe
technology will mean a number of portable devices, Including “splitters” that will allow ons
lce to be provided to a second patient, 3

4.4 Disposal of human waste i

Choosing the correct solution for tolleting or disposal of human waste in the critical care
& major problem for the design team. Thers are ne demonstrated models that sofve af
potential problems assodated with proper hygiene, Infection controf, disposal of contm
biological waste, protection of staff who handle waste, conveniencs for staff, and economy

g

Patient toileting optons g

There are examples of critical care palient rooms with and without toilets. When Io f
present, they may be attached to an individual room or shared between rooms. When a
present, and when the patient Is permitted to usa it, the issue of distance from the bed is
tant because monitoring leads ara usually connected to the patient and there Is usually,
reed to move mulliine infusion pumps with the patient, i

With the exception of medical cardiac patients, the majority of critical care patients do "
tolet. The majority will be catheterized, will use a bedpan, or will soll an absorbent pad s

bedding. Some physicians have declared that any patfent capable of using the toilet shou
be in cettical care.

There are conventional toilet fixtures, and there are fold-out tollets contained in cabings
nearly every case, the tollets are used most often to dump bedpans, rather than as a site
patient to use for elimination. Unfortunately none of these devices allows for the disposa b
completely contained. The washing and spraying activity of disposal s a major source of
contaminants and a frequent source of Infectious organisms, A paper by Michelle &

RN, (see the Appendix), reviewed the literature and described some of the most common
of problems with organisms and nosocomtal infections originating in bedpan disposal andw
Ing (Burrngton, 1999), it

An excellent aiternative to a tollet is 2 mobile commode chalr that contalns a badpan. l;u
of cardiology patients at the University of Michigan, surveys Indicated that the commode |
was the strong preference for that type of patient {Clipson & Wehrer, 1973). The ability tors
the chalr directly adjacent to the bed allowed toileting to occur without disconnecting monind
leads, which contributed to patlent confidence. Sitiing was preferred over using a bedpany
! prone in the bed. Ona could hypothesize that the result would be similar for any type of it
] patient wha is capable of leaving the bed to use a toilet. b

The great toilet debate -

Bauid R. Viucent, AIA, ACHA, LEED® AP

The dilemma of whether or not 1o provide either a separate adjacent ofiet roons o a toflet fixh :
the critical core patient room is only partially spelled out in healthcare Sacility design codes I
| the exception of coronary critical care and critical care isolation roms, the mafority of crie

. - Appendix 3
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Tollets In critical care patient reoms, if they are provided, should assume that every patient is hi
capped in some way, even if only temporarlly Impaired by a regimen of drugs. in the United $t3
2 civil law, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADAY, requires consideration In all public fadilis
persons with a disability. it has been up to the courts to decide what that means In nomal;
except in some states, such as Texas, where the expectations have been carified by other do
ments, The Texas Accessibility Standards clarify this ambiguous situation for projects I that siae.

-

It would appear that best practice in a critical care patient tollet would indlude provisior i
higher than normal height of the tollet fixture, with appropriate handrails to assist In
and from the toilet and sink as well as to assist in fising from a sitting position on the
standard recommendations for handrails in the United States were promulgated based ol
needs of & population of wounded veterans from the Vietnam War who possessed uppér)
strength. A fragile, elderdy woman disorented by medication Is unfikely to be helped by

handralls In rising from the tollet. i

One might question whether someane capable of tolleting without staff assistance be
aitical care unit. it is not often that a critical care patient would be using & wheelchaly,
can expect that a staff member, or members, will be assisting the patient. For this

widmofﬂledoomayhhﬂlebﬂethmksue.Apmbelngmlmd by one or
members needs a wider than normal opening to allow for all to move together. Some il
been docurmented as a result of statf members' Inabifity to accompany the patient through i
row doorway; such falls occur when the staff member Is “peeted off.*

Closed disposal systents i

Deﬂesﬂutmmtndispouﬂnpnphm&chépammmsposeofmewmmdeg
chamber have been used in Europe, and are only recently available In North America. The &
is about the slza of & dishwasher and may offer an altemative for North Amed
designers Interested In a different end safer disposal method. There am currently onlya
installations of this technology In the U.S. and Canada. 3

The design question for a sealed disposal systern Is whether the device should be oided|
evﬂypa'ﬂmtroom.slwedbehnunapa!:ofmoms(uhubeendonuw:eumvemyof_
orprovided in 3 utility room that serves a larger number of beds. The infection control pe ":.:
would iikely suggest a design that avolds tha castying of solled bedpans In the corridor, Infec
control experts are contending that dumping biohazard waste Into a sewer is not a good e
memmeaﬂyexploraﬂomofdmceshmrilhath&wasubefomltlsﬂushedormmw_ll.

Selecting a tolleting option remalngs one of the most difficult dedsions In eritical sare ¢ .

because the oplions are few, and none seems to solve every variation of the problem. This
highly Important area for further study and innovation. 5

4.5 Design for isolation

There Is a need to design for the capability to lsolate certain patients, elther to pmlid
s larger population from the patient's known or unidentified infection or to protect the imen
e} compromised patient from acquiring an Infection present In the farger population. The f ered

E gy o g

CON - Construction/Modernization Appendix 3

7" Page 239



#20-004

:¢sign of the staff support spaces 5
L

;nrﬁon of the space on any citical care unit will be devoted to the staff and their work require-
_gents. These spaces should be configured to optimize the work process, offer convenient sup-
ot for the normal activities of the staff, and contribute to the quality of the work experience.

1 The staff core

fbe quality of patient cars Is thought to Improve when delivered by a dedicated team represent-
o multiple disciplines (Hanson & Aranda, 1999; Rainey, 2000). Interdisciplinary team mem-

3 may include dinical speciallsts, pharmadsts, dieticlans, socla) servies personnel, chaplain
ervices staff, case management workers, child fife spedalists, respiratory therapists, and other

st , centralized critical care nursing station design is & result of dependence on a single
{aper medical record, the presence of central monitors, and a variety of regulations that encour-
igrd the design of a single centrally focated station Intended to offer direct visual observation of
' beds within the unit. This historic model I most appropriate for designs of smaller units with
good visibility of patients from a central position, such as those teaturing an open bay design,
he numerous fachors influencing the design of centralized nursing stations have changed.

sciplinary team center

berdisciplinary teams are more prevalent, and nursing is moving closer to the bedside, The

urses station terminology is therefore less appropriate, as the statipn serves many others
the nurse, and the nurse ks more likely to spend the majority of their time In decentralized
ens. The draft SCCM Design Guidelines proposes to use Inferdisclplinary team center (ITC)
a term to describe a location for the centralized activities and interactions of the interdisclpli-
4y team. The task force felt the “nurse station” language no longer reflected the tnie purpase
‘ofthe team's principal collaborative work setting.

ency crash cart storage : :
must be made for the storage and rapid retrieval of emergency life support equipment
CPR resuscitation cart or an alrway cart. The equipment should be easlly seen and iden-
If there Is more than one ICV, the cast or carts should be hoised in the same location on
unit so that personnel will atways know where life support equipment is located. A unin-
d power supply to charge the batteries of the cart’s equipment should be provided at the
imalion where the cart is stored. These carts can be in an alvove. They should not be located out
dsight, & in & room or behind & door. :

CON- Constructlonﬂ\!lodarnizalt_lon
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ration

fah otical care unit rmust have a secure medication space, centrally located in an alcove or room.
ftshoudd have adequate space for storage of medications and needles, a refrigerator restricted
o pharmaceuticals, a double-locking cabinet for control of narcotics, and & sink with hands-free
jocets, There should be & counter for medication preparation. A disposable sharps contalner
bud be provided, 1f the medication prep area is In a room, windaws or glass walls shaukd be con-
7= to allow for visualization of the patient area during medication preparation, A telephone,
ercom, or other mode of communication should allaw contect with others, Induding the main
famacy. The medication space should allow an individual nurse and a colleague to double-check
ey without Interruption of the task, 1 there Is only one such spacs, it should be located In
ity to the central work zone for the interdisciplinary team, In the case of multiple med prep

L '_' s, they should be evenly distribyted on the unit to minimize nurses' travel distance,

':t medication prep can include the mixing of some IV fiukds or other custom mixés of Ingre-
s, preparation generally Involves the acquisition and adminlstration of drugs, compounds,
1] jds prepared elsewhere. These items can come from the main pharmacy, a satellite phar-

by, of In some cases from a phanmacy outside the hospital. If a satellite phammacy is nearby
d servess the unit, medication prep and storage on the unit may be less extensive.

%

imiajed medication dispensing aystems

mfomated medication dispensing systems are used,
yewm.aecmwouﬁehunddahpods be necetsary. Automated dispensing sys-

m Mhmhﬂybﬂh&ﬁ.hhm%ﬂcﬂﬂdmmmmgmnmmn
u be given to providing more than one device.

ting sird dictation
ybe;needhooﬂeraantrdspacefurlnterdkdpﬂnuymdw personnel ko sit, review
wiite orders, and dictata Into the medical recond . Such areas should be visually and acous-
hate, offering & minimum of distractions, pethaps simllar to & Kbrary carrel. Such a space
s best located adjacent or proximate to the ITC. it should be equipped with dictation
telephones, and monitors.

i

gott and conference space : .
e s frequently & need for & relatively quiet space in which nurses finishing a shift can report
Wthe nufse just arriving for the next shift about the condition of thelr patients, Sometimes this
morting takes place on the fly, in the patient room, 1n the comidor, or in & crowded central sta-
o, This activity should be focused and thorough, as a lapse in reporting can lead to a deteriora-
kn of the patient's condition, and the requiremnent suggests & distinct room with sound control.
N tsoort room can be used at other times for meetings and conferences. Such a room will often
have shetving for reference books and a computer Intended for Internet searches, At times, this
piabls space will be used a5 a classroom or tralning room.

: e'u'ﬂical care units make frequent use of computer-hased education modules. Staff members
Wy a DVD 1o recelve tralning and educational refreshers. A space specifically sulted to this
might be In the form of a study carrel, which could either be separate or included in a
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be following Items: soiled linens, soiled bandages and dressings, sharps and needles, hazardous
o potentially contaminated biohazard waste, white paper waste, colored paper waste, various
fipes of plastics, clear glass, colored glass, aluminum cans, metals, oll or petrochemical products,
gical waste, or radicactive waste. Fach of these categorles must be handled In its own

hazardous, pathological, and radicactive wastes requiring the highest fevel of care and

Nourishmunt
here Is a need for space on the unit to provide nourishment: {ice, food, drink, utensils) for
lients, with minimal facilitles for preparation. The level of patient nourishment items provided
d be based upon the populations served. in addition to a sink with hot and cold water,
aied, self-dispensing loa/coffea machines should be readlly accessible and conveniently
Adequate refrigerator-freezer and storage space should be provided. A micrawave oven
be: useful. Depending on the method of food service deliveries, the nourlshment space may
o be planned for the presence of dietary carts and their electricat requirements.

e presence of food items and molsture require that appropriate infection control measures
® tiken In this communal area. Countertop designs with openings to garbage blns below may
tuce one path for the spread of germs, while designs that decreass the fikelthood of standing
fater wil reduce another. Choosing antimicrobial materals may also be helpful, Space for recy-
bins should be considered.

_|;I!_'r _-E'Hﬂ!

fatlent meal trays that are not collected by dietary personnel are often placed in sofled utllity
g ntl the next meal delivery. A tray storage cart may need to be housed in this room to
mect such meal trays, or space may need to be provided for dietary carts to be held while on
i unit between distribution and coflection, If the sodled utility room is ot intended to serve this

iaction, other space should be planned. Dletary carts should not mutinely be found parked In
k of the unit. ’

ient siorage

storage of equlp%nent on ciitical care units is a persistent problem. Muitiple areas should
§ dedicated for the storage of nonemergency equipment such as specalty beds, stretchers,
the Isolation carts, IV pumps, ventilators, fraction devices, and the like. Each space for
should be capable of being secured. Since storage of mobile electrical equipment is
nle.g., 1t monitors, IV pumps, etc.), adequate electrical capacily for recharging
should be planned. J .

qipment rooms should be readily accessible and generous in size to allow for easy retrieval of
a3 well as for future upgrades in medical equipment. Storing items to keep them out of ICU
improves aesthetics and can help to enhance the retrieval of equipment In emergency
5. Unfortunately it is common for users to sacrifice adequate storage when faced with
ikdget dlemmas during design. Simllarly, equipment space may be converted to other functions
4 stbsequent renovations. These persistent tendencies explain why storage s at such a presmium
jneady every eritical care unit and why every effort to maintain storage space In the design
: , il ba important.

- Construction/Modernization
CON - Constru pder Page 242 e

ey g et |5

Appendix 3



#20-004

INDUSTRY FOCUS | Infection Control

L

. Examine Your Dialysis

%) s;* S pace fo Ensure Room to
r ﬁ'lnfectlous Patients

‘“" By A.J. Plunkett

Hemodiatysts Is one of foor areas The Jolnt Commission (TJC) s2ys It's
Incroasing focus on during surveys, With this ln mind, ensure that your hospital's
hemodialysls patients remain in claar view of staff white undesgoing the procedure,
{n addition, make sure thare's enough space to separate patients with respiratory
Tinesses, fevers, fecal Incontinence, or other infectious conditiens.

That includes & way to cara for
dialysls patients with hepatitts B
completely separate from non-hep
B dialys's patients—using a curialn
for separation s not enough, wams
Kathieen Good, MSN, RN, 8 former
surveyor with TJIC 2nd now an asso-
clate of Patton Healthcare Consufting,
which is based in Maperville, Nlinols,

In & Nowember 7 blog post,
Andrew Bland, MD, MBA, MSAP,
FAAP, FAGP, medical director of
TJC's Division of Healthcare Qual-
fty Evaluation, wrote that among
other infection control practices for
hernodlalysis, surveyors will be oh-
serving water and dialysate testing,

10 PSQH.COM | SPRING/SUMMER 2019
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“HEP B-POSITIVE
PATIENTS SHOULD BE
PLACED IN A SEPARATE
ROOM OR SEPARATE
AREA AWAY FROM OTHER
NON-HEP B PATIENTS."

—Kathlesn Good, MSHN, PN, a former surveyor
with TJC ant nowr an associate of
Pation Healthcare Consuling

~ Page 243

medication storage, preparation and administra-
tion, end "patient placement in full view of staff
during dialysis treatment.”

What thls maans, says Good, s that patlents
st be observable at all times for their safety. In
particular, staff must be able to see “dialysis ines
whera they are connecled to the bovine graft, AV
fistla, Intrajugular cathater, or Permacath™.,”
she says, Staff must also be able to hear and see
the dialysls machines as patients are undargoing
dialysls.

Patients with resprraiory llinesses or fevers must
algn be kept at least six fest away, says Good. While
a curtain Iy that case may be used as a barrler, the
patient st shouldn't be clase fo othar patiems. This
guideline also applias to patients with skdn wound
dralnage or fecal incontinence, to reduce the risk of
transmission of infection, notes Good,

Isolate Hepaiitis B patients

Patients diagnosed as positive for hepatifis B must

be treatad in a sepamita room, ralteratss Good. “This

s according to ESRD [end-stage renal disazss) Con-

dlions of Pavticipation [CoP] for cutpatient dialysis

centers,” which Pation Healthcare Consutting rec-
ommends hospitals review when setting policlas and
procedures fov diatysts.

“Hep B-posiiive patients shoukl ba placed In a
separata room OF separste amf frvay from other
non—hep B patients and taken care of by one nurse
wha doas not taka care of other hemodialysis pa-
tiants,” says Good,

In a recent HCPro webinar on survey hot spots,
including dialysis, Good recommended facHities
should:
= Vaccinate all susceptible patlents against

hepatitis B
> Congider nfluenza (nactivated) and pneumo-

coceal vaccinations for patients

> Conduct routing testing for hepatitis B and
hepatitis C vinuses
To prevent the spread of hepatitis B related to

dialysis, Good recommended the following:

» Hospitals must dialyze hepatitis B {HBsAg4)
patients in a separate rooe, using Separate
machines, equipment, instruments, and
supplies. (HBsAg+ means a hepatitis B surface
antigen in a fab test was positive)}

Sponsored Materdal | Industry Focus Section to PSGH
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DIALYSIS TIPS

Expect more focus on hemodialysis this year. The Joint Commission
{TJC) and CMS hava indicated that surveyors will focus on Infection
condrol practices, inchiding Isolation of infectious patients and med-
Ication storage, preparation, and administration.

Here are soma additional tips from Kathleen Good, MSN, RN, a
former surveyor with T.JC and now an assaciate of Patton Healthcara
Consulting, for ensuring you keep patients safe and meet survayor
expectations. Among other areas, Good has expertise in end-stage
renal disease and dialysls programs.

s janil proteetive equlpmen
In addition to gloves, staff overseeing dialysis of patients should
waar gowns and face protection to protect themselvas as neaded:

During initiation and terminaticn of dialysls

When cleaning dialyzers

When handiing lab samples

M of these procadures are at high risk for splash of contaml-
natad flulds. Personal protective equipment should be chenged if it
becomes dirty,

separate clean from contaminated area:
Diten hospitals have & sigle space for dialysis opsrations. However,
there must be distinct ciean and contaminatad areas, says Good,
Clean areas should be used for the preparation, handing, and stor-
age of medicetions end unused supplies and equipment. Contaminat:
ed areas are where used supplies and equipment are handied,
Do not handle or stora medications or clean supplies kn the same
area as where used equipment or blood samples are handiad, And
remember; Treatment stations are contaminated areas, warns Good.

Nurses or other staff traating patients must

hepatitls B and other infections,

#20-004

edicate supplies to'a single patien
Remember that any ltem taken to a patient's dialysis station could
hecome contaminated.
lterna taken into the dialysls statien should aither ba disposed of
or cleaned and disinfacted before being taken to & commen clean
area or baing used on another patient. Do not retum unused madi-
cations or supplies taken to the patient's station to & common clean
area (2.9., medication vials, syringes, alcoho) swabs),
Here are guidelines for carrying medications:
Do not use the same medieation cart to deliver medica-
tons to muktipls patients
Do not carry medication vials, syringes, alcohol swabs, or
supplias in pocksts
Prepare the medication in a clean area away from the
patisnt station and bring it to the patient station for that patient
only at the time of use

Ciganing and disinfecting the station

Traln staff to take particutar care when cleaning and disinfecting sta-
tians between patients, wams Good, Parsonnel must be abils to talk
about the process with surveyors,

Ciganing should be done using clsaning detergent, water, and
{riction, and it Is Intended to remove blood, body flulds, and other
contamnants from objects and surfaces, notes Good.

Meanwhtle, disinfection Is a process that kills “many or all re-
malning infection-cairsing germs on clean ohjects and surfaces.”

Remember to use an EPA-registered hospital disirfectant and
follow the label's Instructions for proper dilution, Also, wear gloves
during the cleaning/disinfection process.

= What the facility’s policles and proce-

wear a separate gown with hep B patlents. says Good. dures are regarding hepatitis testing and
Staff caring for hep B patients shouldn't care Among other things, according o contro! among patients and staff

for HBV-susceplible patients at the same the ESRD CoPs, yout can expect CMS = How tha staff collects and disposes of
time, Including during the same shiftor even  surveyors to ask the diafysis nurse: waste, including needles

during a patient changeover. (HBV-susceplible > What the faciity will do to = When and where protective clothing fs
means anyong who has never been Infected prevent and control the spread worn, and where tha clothing is stored
and lacks Immunity to the hepatitis B virus, of infections during breaks ¥

explains Good)

SEnSored BY:

Train staff on talking

with surveyors

Ensure that nurses and other staff understand how
to clean and disinfect the dialysis station, and that
they know the procedures to prevent the spread of

Tru-D SmartUVC

Sponsored Materisl | industry Focus Section 1o PSGH PSQH.COM | SPRING/SUMMER 2019 11
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Davidson et al _

Executive Summary of Recommendations i
All recommendations in these guidelines are made from moder-
ate, low, or very low quality evidence and constitute weak recom-
mendations per GRADE methodology (23). When cutcomes ate
listed at the conclusion of a tecommendation, it is because these
outcomes have been tested {whereas others may not have been).
We note the lack of research addressing the use of multiple simul-
tanegus interventions. Although it seems likely that some cotn-
bination of the interventions may improve oltcomes; thére are
currently no data on the additive or synergistic ‘effects of com-
bined interventions. Clinicians and institutions will need to make
ajudgment about which intervention or combination oﬂntﬂ'\(en-
tions are likely to be most successfirl in spedific tircurmstances. We
also note that adverse effects have not been described for most-of
the interventions, but are possible, Statements as to advarse effects
or risks for each PICO question are ot repated below; unless the
intervention's specific adverse effects or risks were described, Rec-
ommendations apply to neonatal ICU (NICU), PICU, and adul
1CUs unless otherwise specified. When specified, it is because the
evidence was available in only one age category.

ICU Family-Centered Care Recommendations :
We suggest the following:
1. Family presence in the ICU

1,1. Family members of critically ill patients be offered
open or flexible family presence at the bedside that

meets their needs while providing support for staffend -

positive reinforcement for staff to work in partnership
with families to improve family sstisfaction. (2D)

1.2, Family members of critically ill patients be offered
the option of participating in interdistiplinary team

rounds to improve satisfactibn with mmmuniﬂﬁnn"

and increase family engagement. (2C) -

1.3. Family members of critically ili pau:nu be affered. the

option of being present during resuscitation efforts,
witha staff member assigned to support the family. (2C)

2, Family support

2.1. Family members of critically ill neonates be offeied the
option 1o be taught how to assist with the care of their
critically ill neonate to improve parental confidence and
competence in their caregiving role and improve parental
psychological health during and after the 1CU stay. (2B)

2.2. Family education programs be induded as part of dini-
cal care as these programs have demonsteated beneficial
effiscts for family members in the ICU by veducing anxi-
ety, depression, post-traumatic stress, und generalized
stress while improving family satisfaction with care. {2C)

2.3. Peer-to-peer support be implemented In NICUs to
improve family satisfaction, reduce pavental stress, and
reduce depression. (2D)

2.4. 1CUs provide family with leaflets that give information
about the ICU setting to reduce family member auxi-
ety and stress. (2B) ;

106 www.cernjournal.org

2.5, 1CU diaries be implemented in 1CUs to reduce fam-
ily member “anxiety, depression, and post-traumatic
- stress, (2C)

2,6, Validated decision support tools for family members

be iniplemented in the ICU setting when relevant vali-
dared wools exist to optimize quality of communication,

medical comprehension, and reduce family decisional
conflict, (ZD) :

27 'Among suirogates of icu patients who are deemed by
2 tlinicidn.to have 2 poor prognosis, clinicians use a
‘commiinicifion approach, such as the “VALUE” mne-
ronic (Value fanmly statements, Acknowledge emo-
tlons, Listen; Understand the patientas a person, Elicit
Quiestions), during family conferences to facilitate cli-
nician-family communication. (2C)

. Communitntion With family members

3.1. Routine mtc:duaplmary family conferences be usedin
the ICU to improve family satisfaction with commau-
nication aad trust in cliniclans and to reduce conflict
between dinicians and family members. (2C)

32 Hulthuzg clinicians in the ICU should use structured
upproachu to communication, such as that Indluded
in the "VALUE” maemonic, when engaging in commu-
nication with family members, specifically including
active listening, expresslons of empathy, and making
supportive statements atound nonabandsament and
decision meking. In addition, we suggest that fam-
ily members of critically ill patients who are dying be
offered a viritten bereavemnent brochure to reduce fam-
ily angiéty, depmuon. and post-trsumatic stress and
improve farrily satisfactlon with communication. (2C)

33 100 dinicigns recelve family-centered communication

iraintrigas Gheelement of eritical care teaining to improve
“clmmgn self-ct'ﬁgacy and family satisfaction. (2D)

. Useof q.xciﬁdoohs\ilutions and ICU tearn members

".4.1. Proactive palliative care consultation be provided to

“decrease [EU and hospital length of stay {LOS) ameng
selécted critically ill patients {e.g., advanced dementia,
globial cerebral ischemia after cardiac arrest, patients
with pmlonged ICU stay, and pauents with subarach-
noid hemorrhage {SAH] requiring mechanical ventila-
tion). (2C) . -

4.2, Ethjcs consultation be provided to decrease ICU and
hospital LOS among critically ill patients for whom
there is a value-related conflict between clinicians and
family. (2G)

- 4.3, A psychologist’s intervention be provided to specifi-

- cally incorporate a multimodal cognitive behavioral
technique (CBT)-based approach to improve outcomes
jn mothers of preterm babies admitted to the NICU;
furthermore, targeted video and reading materials be
provided in the ‘context of psychological support to
mothers of preterm babies admitted to the ICU. (2D)

January 2017 « Volume 45 * Number 1
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The American Collega of Crilical Gare Medicine (AGCM), which hon-

ors individuals for their achi ils and contributions to mudtidisci-

plinary critical care medicine, is the consuftative body of the Socialy of

Critical Gars Medicine (SCCM) that p recognized exy in

the practice of critical care, Tha College has developed adminiatrative

guidelines and clinical practica parametars for the critical care practitio-
ner. New guidelings and practice parameters ara continually devaloped,
and curent ones are syslematically reviewed and revised.
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Chjectives: To update the Socisty of Critical Gare Medicine's
guidefines for K3U admission, discharge, and triage, providing a
framework for dlinical practice, the developmant of institutional
policies, and further research.

Design: An appointed Task Force foflowed a standard, system-
atic, and evidence-based approach in reviewing the literature to
davelop these guidelines,

Mezswements ated Maln Resulls: The asssssment of the evidance
and recommendations was based on the principles of the Grading
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that do not fit into one of the specialty ICUs, However, the com-
plexities of critical care make jt difficult to conclusively demon-
strate efficacy for specialization (63). Studies have suggested that
the organization and management of an ICU may have more
of an effect on outcomes {64, 65). ICU spaciatization is likely
mativated by physician convenience and the pooling of clinical
resources around specialty departments to imprové efficiency
(68). Although some studies have shown the benefit of specal-
ization of ICUs for certain fields, the literature does not support
a survival benefit for specialized over general ICU care in the
case of common admitting diagnoses sach as acuts coronary
syndrome, ischemic stroke, intracranial hemorrhage, poeumo-
nia, abdominal surgery, or coronary artery bypass graft surgery.
Admission to a specialized ICU of a patient with a primary diag-
nosis not associated with that specialty (i.e.,“boarding”} is asso--
ciated with increased risk-adjusted mortality (66). :

Although thers 2ré notable Limitations in published
studies, cumulative evidence suggests that neurocritical
care unit patients show improved ontcomes when compared
with the treatment in a general ICU, especially for intra-
cerebral hemorrhage and head injury (67-70). Neuro:ICU
patients were reported to undergo movre invasive intracra-
nial and hemodynamic monitoring, continuous electroen-
cephalogram monitoring, tracheostomy, and nutritional
support as well as to receive less [V sedation compared with
general ICU patients, possibly explaining the observed dif-
ferences in outcome between neurocritical care and general
ICUs {68, 69).

Modemn trauma care has also become highly specialized
for the critically ill patient with multiple-system injuries.
Despite the development of surgical trauma [CUs, litde
information currently exists to compare outcomes with gen-
eral ICUs. Most patients admitted to a trauma ICU appear
to be sicker and more severely injured than genecral-ICU
patients, making accurate comparisons and retrospective
studies difficult (71).

Different Staffing Models,
Recommendations:

o We recommend a high-intensity ICU model, characterized
by the intensivist being responsible for day-to-day man-
agement of the patient, either in a “closed ICU" setting (in
which the intensivist serves as the primary physician) or
through a hospital protocol for mandatory intensivist con-
sultation {grade 1B).

o We do not recommend a 24-hour/7-day intensivist model
if the ICU has a high-intensity staffing model (as described
above) during the day or night (grade 1A).

o We suggest optimizing ICU nursing resources and nursing
ratios, taking inte consideration available nursing resources
{e.gr., levels of education, support personnel, specific worke-
loads), patients’ needs, and patients’ medical complexity
{grade 2D).

& Because of current constraints on the availability and cost
of 24-hour intensivist coverage, further studies are needed

Critical Care Medicine

Spacial Article

to address the efficacy of coverage with critical care—trained
advanced practice providers, indvding nurse practitioners
and physician assistants, and critical care telemedicine
{ungraded).

This section will assess staffing models in regard to inten-
sity of ICU physician participation in treatment of the criti-
cally ill patient, both in terms of low- and high-intensity ICU
models and 24-hour intensivist care. The high-intensity model
is characterized by the intensivist being responsible for day-
to-day management of the patient, ¢ither in a closed ICU set-
ting or theough a hospital protocol for mandatory intensivist
consultation. A low-intensity model involves elective inten-
sivist consultation, either in an “open ICU” setting (in which
patient management is mainly by another primary physician)
or because there is no intensivist available, The superiority of
closed ICU and high-intensity staffing in improving the out-
comes of critically ill patients is supported by an abundant
amount of evidencs, as-well as recommendations from the
Leapfrog Group and the American College of Critical Care
Medicine (72-79). Results of the latest systematic review and
meta-analysis of ICU physician staffing models (80) further
support the high-intensity staffing model. The authors showed
that when compared with low-intensity staffing, the high-
intensity mode! was associated with lower hospital mortality
(pooled RR, 0.83; 95% CI, 0,70-0.99) and lower ICU mortality
(pocled RR, 0.81; 95% CI, 0.68-0.96),

Qur assessment of the literature reveals that the greater use
of inteasivists in the ICU led to significant reductions in ICU
and hospital mortality and LOS. Although most of the studies
were observational, these findings were consistent across a vari-
ety of populations and hospital settings, Thes¢ improved out-
comes were ot only limited to medical ICUs but also included
neurological and surgical ICUs and oncologic patient popula-
tions (81-85). Patients receiving care under the high-intensity
intensivist staffing model were more likely to reccive evidence-
based care, including prophylaxis for deep vein thrombosis,
stress ulcer prophylaxis, and spontaneous breathing trials (85).
Interestingly, one study showed a higher mortality rate with
the use of a high-intensity staffing model, but it was limited
to patienis with low severity of illness, suggesting that patients
who are not critically itl may be exposed to unnecessary risk in
the ICU (74, 87).

The literature supporting the need for 24-hour/7-day inten-
sivist coverage of the ICU is not as abundant end presents
several controversial issues. Although continuous 24-hour on-
site critical care specialist coverage of an ICU has benefits in
improved processes of care, increased staff and family satisfac-
tion, decreased complication rate, and shorter hospital LOS, the
evidence on improving patient mostality is weaker (88-90). In
a retrospective study of 49 ICUs, the mortality rate improved
with nighttime coverage of the ICU only when a low-intensity
daytime staffing model was used (90). Although there was no
difference in mortality in comparison with partial-day high-
intensity coverage, 24-hour intensivist coverage was associated
with improved compliance with evidence-based processes of
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Preventmg Transmission of Multidrug-Resistant Pathogens in
the Intensive Care Unit

Jeffrey R. Strich, MD? and Tara N, Paimore, MD%"

2Critical Care Medicine Department, National Institutes of Health Clinical Center, 10 Center Drive,
MSC 1662, Bethesda, MD 20892-1662, USA

®Hospita! Epidemlofogy Service, National institutes of Health Clinical Center, 10 Center Drive,
MSC 1899, Belhesda, MD 20892-1899, USA

Keywords
Intensive care unit, Infection control; Transmission; Drug resistance

INTRODUCTION

Intensive care unit (ICU) beds in the United States are increasing as a proportion of all
hospital beds, reflecting increasing need for critical care, particulerly among neonates and
the elderdy.! Although nosocomial infections complicate 4% of overall hospital admissions,2
9%!0Zo%ofamullylllpaﬁemdevelopmfecumuwhlemﬂnlCU“Nearlyhulfofa]l
health care-associated infections that occur in hospitals are attributable to the ICU.2 At the
same time, the proportion of nosacomial infections caused by multidmg-resistant organisms
is increasing, limiting treatment options and i increasing length of stay, mortality, and cost.
Increasing use of critical care resources and high risk of nosocomial infection i the context
of increasing antimicrobial resistance make infection preveotion a leading priority in the
ICuU.

Guidelines from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) from 20065 and the
Society for Hospital Epidemiology of America from 2003,7 provide infection control
guidance to prevent the spread of multidrug-resistant pathogens. This article examines more
recent evidence for methods of preventing the transmission of multidrug-resistant pathogens
in the ICU.

Importance of Preventing Transmiasion of Rasistant Organlsms

ICU patients are highly vulnerable to nosocomia! infection because of invasive devices,
immune compromise caused by underlying diseases or medications, poor nutritional states,
uncontrolled hypesglycemia, and sepsis, whick can lead to a paradoxical immune
suppression.® Multidrug-resistant pathogens represent a substantial proportion of
nosocomiel infections in the ICU, including 10% to 16% of US device-related infections.®
Infection with multidrug-resistant organisms causes siguificant mortality in hospitalized

“Corresponding suthor. tpalmors@mail.nth.gov.
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patients. Approximately 23,000 persons in the United States die each year from these
organisms, most of which are acquired in health care settings.!® Nosocomial bloodstream
infections with resistant gram-negative organisms can have mortality as high as 80% to
85%.14L12 '

In additlon to host susceptibility, the logistics and complexity of critical care medicine put
patients at risk of acquiring nosocomial organisms, Invasive procedures and indwelling
devices, often essential to providing supportive care to critically ill patients, serve as portals
of entry for pathogens. Lifesaving critical care treatment requires the concurrent
contributions of many health care team members and the use of many patient care devices,
potentially posing additive risk of transmission from personnel or fomites. Infection control
precautions may not be the predominant priority in situations in which seconds matter, such
as resuscitating patients suffering trauroa, sepsis, cardiac arvest, and other emergencics.
Antimicrobial use may select out resistant strains that are potentially transmissible from
patient to patient.

wduosnuew Joyiny

Transmission of Resistant Organisms in the intensive Care Unit

Bacterial pathogens of epidemiologic concer in the ICU tend 1o inhabit specific sites on or
in the buman body, or in the hospital environment, that serve as reservoirs for transmission.
The reservoirs of resistant organisths include niches in the human microbiome. The
microblota of skin, respiratory epithelium, and the gastrointestinal tract are altered within a
few days in the hospital. Patients’ flora can be deranged by antiblotics, chemotherapy, or
acquisition of nosocomial organisms, among other sources. Patients who are colonized with
resistant bacteria serve inadvertently ‘as potential reservoirs for transmission. Colonization
pressure, or the propottion of paticnts in a given unit who are colonized with resistant
bacteria, is an independent risk factor for transrission. 1314 Resistant organisms are
generally thought to be transmitted from person to person via the hands of health care
personael, or from contaminated patient care equipment or contaminated surfaces in the
health care environment. Antimicrobial stewardship, hand hygiene, and proper disinfection
of equipment and hospital surfaces are thus important means of preventing spread.
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Hospitals should have policies and procedures in place that outline clear infection controk
guidelines, along with contingency procedures for special situations. ICU stabf must receive
periodic training and education in infection control, which should be informed by data on
infection rates, hand hygiene rates, and other relevant outcome measures, In addition,
compliance with infection control procedures requires adequate staffing, infrastructure (such
as handwashing sinks), and supplies (such a3 gloves, masks, and alcohol-based hand gel).

dl

1

ANTIMICROBIAL STEWARDSHIP

Antimicrobial stewardship has an important and distinct role to play in the ICU, and has
been shown to improve the treaiment of critically il patients and reduce antimicrobial
resistance, 1516 The goals of antimicrobial stewardship are to improve the quality of care and
avert adverse outcomes, including antimicrobial resistance, by optimizing dosing and
selection of drugs, along with reducing duration of therapy.’” Intensivists face a challenge of
balancing the need to administer broad antibiotic coverage for the immediate welfare of
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The Role of Stepdown Beds in Hospital Care

Meghan Prin' and Hannah Wunsch'??

‘Departmeant of Anssthasiology, Columbia Us
Sclencas Centre, Toronto, Ontario, Canada; and

Abstract

Stepdown beds pravide an intermediate level of cate for patients with
requirements somewhere between that of the general ward and

the intensive care unit. Models of cace Include incorporation of
stepdawn beds into intensive care units, stand-alone units, or
incorporation of beds into standard wards. Stepdown beds may
be used to provide a higher level of care for patints deterlorating

%

ew York, New York; Depanmant of Critical Care Meadicine, Sunnybrook Health
ent of Anssthesta, University of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario, Canada

Thése units are one possible strategy to improve critical care

on a ward (“step-up”), a lower level of care for patients

transitioning out of intensive cave ("stepdown”) or'a lateral
trans{er of care from a recovery room for postoperative patients.

Improvements In healthcare have
contributed to longer life expectancy in
countries, But with an escalation
in healthcare delivery, the demands and
casts of healthcare have risen dramatically,
Intensive care provision contributes to
these costs: from 2000 to 2005 in the United
States, the number of critieal care beds
increased more than 6.5%, and eriticsl care
spending is now estimated to sccount for
almost 1% of the Gross Domestic Product
(1). The increasing availabllity of kntensive
care unit (ICU} beds is costly, but the
alternative option of foregaing this
expansion raises the concern of potential
delays in admission of patients from wards
and emergency departments (EDs} (2)
and in ective sugery (3). In 2005 the Joint
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare
Organizations (JCAHO) approved a new
standard calling on U.S. hospital leadership
to implement plans that identify and
mitigate barriers to efficient patient flow
across the continuum of care (4). Stepdown

beds, also veferced to as intermediate care
beds or high-dependency beds, are one
possible approach to providing higher levels
of care while improving the efficlency of
patient flow. The concept of u stepdown
unit {(SDU} Is not & new-one: In 1995

a study of 40 U.S. hespitals reported that
639 had at teast one such unit (5), and
the number of respiratory SDUs in laly
nearly doubled from 1997 to 2007 (6).
Yet SDUs and their role in hospital care
receive llttde focus.

Deﬂnlt!on of a Stepdown
Unit Bed

Gotsman and Schrire introduced the
concept of SDUs in 1968, They proposed
a patient-care area with specialized
monitoring and nursing care for cardiac
patients no longer requiring full intensive
care but not ready for discharge to a regular
ward (7). Since then, terminclogy and

cost-effectiveness and patient low without compromising quality,
but these potential benefits remain primarily theoretical as few
padent-level studjes provide concrete evidence. This narrative
review provides a general overview of the theory of stepdown beds
in the care of hospitalized patlems and a summary of what is
known |bout their impact on patient flow and outcomes and
highlights areas for future research.

Keywords; critical care; intermediate care; intensive care unit;
* continuity of patient care

definitions of SDU beds remain diverse
(Table 1) (5, 8-14), slthough implidt is
the provision of a levet of care that is
intermediate between what is available in
8 ward bed end in an intensive care bed.
Two themes emerge from attempts to
define an SDU bed: (1) the nurse to patient
ratio for these beds, and (2) the ability to
provide specific organ support.

In England, patient care is stratified
into levels from 0 (general ward
care) to 3 (full intensive care). In this system,
level 2 corresponds to SDU care and is
defined as: “Patients requiring more detalled
abservation or intervention including
support for a single failing organ system or
post-operative care and those stepping
down' from higher levels of care” (14). The
definition also explicitly excludes respiratory
support in the form of invasive mechanical
ventilation and states that this is only
available in level 3 (full intensive care).

In the United States, critical care
has remained more heterogeneous and
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Table 1. Examples of Terms and Definitions for Stepdown Units

Reference T Temm Cw'lo 00 Definition Gountry

MNguyen et al., 2010 (8) Stepdown unit "... ta allow for the care of patients who  Nonspacific
dao not require full intensive care but
cannot be safely cared for on a normal
ward, These palient requirements may
Inelude {pbut are not fimited to) specific
organ support, nursing needs, vital sign
monitoring, or veniilalor weaning.”
.. provides the capability for all the Auairalia
Invastve monitoring of ICU but without
tha provision of mechanical ventilation.
With a nursing ratio that is typically 1:2,
HOU is belisved 10 be & lower cost
altemative ta ICU In crtically ill patients
who do not require machanical
vantilation.”
Keenan of al, 1928 {10) Tranaltional care unit *... units ware developed to provide Canada
varying levels of noninvasie
monitoring with or without the
capabllity to venitilate patiants ..,
[pati require a jower nurse:patient
ratio may require fawer
investigations when compared to
patlants in I[CUs.”
Ambrosino et al., 2010 {11) Resplratory Intermediate unit ‘Ruspiratory intermedlate care units Iraky
{RICUSs) within acuts care hospitals

Mellroy et al., 2006 (9) High dependency care unit

also provide multidisciplinary
hr-hah&lﬁm and serve .l:n‘g bridge to
OMs CAIY or ~tern care
faciities mmm also as
'ﬂap-dcmn_' untts for difficult-to-wean

Comprehensiva Critical Care, 2000 (14) Leve! 2 care © “Patients requiving more detsfiad UK
observation or intervention mcluding
support for a single failing organ
system or post-operative care and
those l‘lcpplr‘; down’ from higher
tevels of care,
Amesican Assoclatlon of Critical-Care Progressive care unit patients whoss needs fall dlong tha  United States
MNurses Progressive Gare Task Force (12) Iass acute snd of fihe pationt care]
] : continuum .. v stable with
less oon'ple:dty. require moderata
tesources and require intermitient
nursing vigitance or are stable with
1 a hlgh potential for bacoming unstable
and require increased intensity of care
] and vigilancs.®
1 Nasraway ef al., 1608 {13) Intermediate care unit ....does not require Intensiva care but United States
nseds more cars than that provided on
a general ward, Thesa patierds may
require frequent monitoring of vital
signs and/or nursing interventions, but
usually do not require Invasive
monitoring.”
... patients who recelved only United States
rnonito:ing and floor care services ...
and were at such low risk of receiving
activa life-supporting treatment that
routing [CU admission might not ba
necessary.”

Dasinition of abbrevialions: AGRF = acute on chronlc respiratory fallure; ARF = acuterespiratory faiure; HOU = high-density care unk; ICU = Intensive care
unit.

Zirmmerman et al, 1995 (5) Intermediate care unit
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